
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
AUGUST 14, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

August 14, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Richard Peacock – First United 
Methodist Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Proclamation International Day of Peace – September 21, 2006 – Presented 
to Pastor Peacock ................................................................................................ 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Rezoning Application (File Number Z 716) – Proposed City Initiated Rezoning, 
South of Big Beaver, West of Coolidge, Section 30 – R-1C to R-1E 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of 
Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to 
B-2 and E-P 2 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

D-2 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care 
Center, Northwest Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 3 

D-3 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 717) – Proposed Medical/General Office Building, 
Northwest Corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to O-1 5 

CONSENT AGENDA: 6 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 6 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 6 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 6 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: 7 

a) International Day of Peace – September 21, 2006............................................... 7 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 7 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – 
Troy Community Coalition .................................................................................... 7 

E-5 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County 7 

E-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain from Suburban 
Maplelawn 5, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-29-401-013 7 

E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Detention Basin from Harmony 
Developers, LLC for West Oak Subdivision No. 1 and 2 – Sidwell #88-20-23-409-
008 8 

E-8 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain and 
Abandonment of Part of Original Watermain Easement from St. George Syrian 
Orthodox Church of Detroit – Sidwell #88-20-36-100-067, Project No. 03.919.3 8 

E-9 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Sapphire Estates Subdivision 
Detention Basin – Section 21, Sidwell #88-20-21-104-001 8 

E-10 Private Agreement for Hyundai and Infiniti – Project No. 05.936.3 9 

E-11 Private Agreement for Briggs Park Condominiums – Project No. 05.949.3 9 



 

 

E-12 Relocation and Renovation of the Engineering Field Office 9 

E-13 Amendment #1 – Troy Daze Amusement Rides Contract 9 

E-14 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Troy Party Store 10 

E-15 Sole Source – Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center 
and Troy Community Center 11 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 11 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 11 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  b) City Council Appointments: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; 
Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic District 
Commission; Historical Commission; Library Advisory Board; Municipal Building 
Authority; Parks & Recreation Board; Traffic Committee; and Troy Daze 
Committee 12 

F-2 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal 
League 14 

F-3 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Eight Ellipticals for Troy Community Center 14 

F-4 Approval of MDOT Contract No. 06-5352 for CMAQ Projects – Coolidge at Wattles 
(Project No. 00.109.5), Square Lake at John R (Project No. 99.205.5), and Square 
Lake at Dequindre (Project No. 99.206.5) 15 

F-5 City of Troy Master Plan 15 

F-6 Schedule a Special Meeting to Discuss the Big Beaver Corridor Study 16 

F-7 Amendatory Cost Participation Agreement for the Long Lake/Livernois/Crooks 
Concrete Pavement Replacement Project No. 05.106.5 16 

F-8 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 19, 2006 17 



 

 

F-9 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel #88-20-22-426-057, Section 22, All of 
Lot 42 and Part of Lots 43, and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 17 

F-10 Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris 18 

F-11 Bid Waiver- Troy Daze Large Tents 18 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 19 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 19 

a) Rezoning Application (File Number: Z 632-B) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, 
West Side of Rochester Road, North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to 
R-1T – August 28, 2006 ..................................................................................... 19 

b) Proposed Amendment to Planned Unit Development – Woodside Bible 
Church/Northwyck Condominium Planned Unit Development (PUD 1), 
Located on the East Side of Rochester Road, North of Square Lake Road and 
South of South Boulevard, Section 2 – August 28, 2006.................................... 19 

c) Parking Variance Request – 35 W. Square Lake Road – September 11, 2006.. 19 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 19 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 19 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 19 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 19 

I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 19 

REPORTS: 20 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 20 

a) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – April 18, 2006............................... 20 
b) Library Advisory Board/Final – May 11, 2006..................................................... 20 
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 7, 2006 ............. 20 
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 7, 2006 ............. 20 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 20, 2006................................................. 20 
f) Downtown Development Authority/Final – June 21, 2006 .................................. 20 
g) Traffic Committee/Final – June 21, 2006............................................................ 20 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 27, 2006............................... 20 



 

 

i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 27, 2006............................... 20 
j) Planning Commission/Draft – July 11, 2006....................................................... 20 
k) Planning Commission/Final – July 11, 2006....................................................... 20 
l) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 18, 2006 .................................................. 20 
m) Downtown Development Authority/Final – July 19, 2006.................................... 20 
n) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – July 24, 2006 ........................................ 20 
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 25, 2006 ................................ 20 
p) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 25, 2006 ................................ 20 
q) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft- August 2, 2006...................................... 20 

J-2 Department Reports: 20 

a) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML Board of 
Trustees Meeting................................................................................................ 20 

b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of July, 2006.............. 20 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 20 

a) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Mark Weigand Regarding the 
Election Sensitivity Training................................................................................ 20 

b) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Julie O’Donovan in Appreciation 
of the Election Sensitivity Training...................................................................... 20 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Carol Anderson and Staff from Vicki Richardson 
Regarding the Outstanding Efforts during the Family Festival............................ 20 

d) Letter of Appreciation to the Aquatic Center from Melissa Watkins Regarding 
the Dedicated, Helpful and Cautious Lifeguards................................................. 20 

e) Letter of Appreciation to Ann Blizzard from Diana Rae Regarding the 
Professionalism of the Lifeguards at the Aquatic Center .................................... 20 

f) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Cindy Eisenbraun in Appreciation of the 
Kindness of Officer Dungjen............................................................................... 20 

g) Letter of Appreciation to Tonni Bartholomew from Susan Werpetinski 
Commending the Clerk’s Office for the Efforts in Implementing the Help 
American Vote Act.............................................................................................. 20 

h) Letter of Thanks to Phillip Nelson from Ping Wang Regarding the Efforts and 
Thoughtfulness of Lance Oakley ........................................................................ 20 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 20 

J-5  Calendar 20 

J-6  Communication from Rehmann Robson Regarding the Financial Audit Services for 
the Year Ended June 30, 2006 21 

J-7  Communication from Michigan Municipal League Regarding the Workers’ 
Compensation Fund Loss Control Award 21 

J-8  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding the Hooters Lawsuit 21 



 

 

J-9  Report of the Twenty-Sixth Annual Actuarial Valuation of the City of Troy Incentive 
Plan for Volunteer Firefighters – December 31, 2005 – Available for Viewing at the 
City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 21 

J-10  Report of the Forty-Second Annual Actuarial Valuation of the City of Troy 
Employees Retirement System – December 31, 2005 – Available for Viewing at 
the City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 21 

J-11  Communication from Director of Building and Zoning Mark Stimac Regarding the 
Results of Blight Strategies Survey and Suggested Action Plan 21 

J-12  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding 2307 
Rochester Court Sewer Backup 21 

J-13  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Appeal of Hooters Lawsuit 21 

J-14  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Mowing of 
Ditches on County Roads 21 

STUDY ITEMS: 21 

K-1 Disposal/Sale of Excess Property 21 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 21 

CLOSED SESSION: 22 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 22 

ADJOURNMENT 22 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 22 

Monday, August 28, 2006 Regular City Council.................................................... 22 
Monday, September 11, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 22 
Monday, September 18, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 22 
Monday, September 25, 2006 Regular City Council ............................................. 22 
Monday, October 2, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................... 22 
Monday, October 16, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................. 22 
Monday, October 23, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................. 22 
Monday, November 13, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 22 
Monday, November 20, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 22 



 

 

Monday, November 27, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 22 
Monday, December 4, 2006 Regular City Council ................................................ 22 
Monday, December 18, 2006 Regular City Council .............................................. 22 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Pastor Richard Peacock – First 
United Methodist Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
a) Proclamation International Day of Peace – September 21, 2006 – Presented to Pastor 

Peacock  
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application (File Number Z 716) – Proposed City Initiated Rezoning, 
South of Big Beaver, West of Coolidge, Section 30 – R-1C to R-1E   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to R-1E rezoning request, located south of Big Beaver, west of 
Coolidge, part of the north ½ of Section 30, being 49.69 acres in size, is described in the 
following legal description and illustrated on the attached drawing: 
 

Part of the North ½ of Section 30 described as: 
 

Lots 1 through Lot 116, inclusive, and Lots 120 through Lot 140, inclusive, of “Troyton 
Manor Subdivision”, being part of the Northwest ¼ of Section 30, Town 2 North, Range 
11 East, City of Troy, Michigan, as recorded in Liber 73, Pages 23-24, of Oakland 
County, Michigan records; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

Lots 11 through 31, inclusive, of “John F. Englehardt Subdivision”, being part of the 
Northwest ¼ of Section 30, Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Michigan, as 
recorded in Liber 76, Page 39, of Oakland County, Michigan records; and 
 
Lots 1 through 3, inclusive, of “Buckingham Woods Subdivision”, being part of the 
Northeast ¼ of Section 30, Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Michigan, as 
recorded in Liber 117, Pages 3-4, of Oakland County, Michigan records; and 
 
Lots 1 through 36, inclusive, of “Adrienne Manor”, being part of the South ½ of the 
Northeast ¼ of Section 30, Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, Michigan, as 
recorded in Liber 76, Page 3, of Oakland County, Michigan records; and 
 
Part of the Northeast ¼ of Section 30, Town 2 North, Range 11 East, City of Troy, 
Oakland County, Michigan.  Being more particularly described as commencing at the 
East ¼ Corner of said section 30; thence N 01° 13' 30" E, 42.86 ft. and N 88° 44' 30" W, 
60.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning; thence continuing N 88° 44' 30" W, 237.00 ft.; thence 
N 01° 13' 30" E, 150.00 ft.; thence S 88° 44' 30" E, 237.00 ft.; thence S 01° 13' 30" W, 
150.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning.  Containing 0.816 Acres, more or less. 
 
All containing a total area of approximately 49.69 acres more or less, and subject to 
easements and restrictions of record. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin Donuts, South Side of 
Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to 
B-2 and E-P 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1E to B-2 and E-P rezoning request, located on the south side of 
Vanderpool, west of Rochester Road and East of Ellenboro, Section 22, part of parcel 88-20-
22-426-045, being approximately 0.5 acres in size, is described in the following legal 
descriptions and illustrated on the attached exhibit drawing: 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF E-P PARCEL (WEST 30 FEET):
 
T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 22 
 
Part of Lot 41, Supervisors Plat No.17, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

More particularly described as commencing at a point distant S 00°00'00" W, 156.78 feet 
& N 89°49'22" W, 100.00 feet from the northeast corner of Lot 41; thence proceeding N 
89°49'22" W, 30.00 feet; thence N 00°00'00" E, 183.02 feet; thence along a curve to the 
right with an arc length of 30.23 feet, a radius of 143.42 feet, chord bearing and distance 
of S 83°46'06" E, 30.18 feet; thence S 00°00'00" W, 179.84 feet to the point of beginning.  
Parcel contains: 0.13 acres more or less. 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF B-2 PARCEL (EXCLUDING WEST 30 FEET):
 
T2N, R11E, SE ¼ of Section 22 
 
Part of Lot 41, Supervisors Plat No.17, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan. 
More particularly described as commencing at the northeast corner of Lot 41 and 
proceeding S 00°00'00" W, 156.78 feet; thence N 89°49'22" W, 100.00 feet; thence N 
00°00'00" E, 179.84 feet; thence along a curve to the right with an arc length of 26.71 
feet, a radius of 143.42 feet, chord bearing and distance of S 72°23'36" E, 26.67 feet; 
thence along a curve to the left with an arc length of 76.63 feet, a radius of 193.42 feet, 
chord bearing and distance of S 78°24'28" E, 76.13 feet to the point of beginning.  Parcel 
contains: 0.38 acres more or less. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
D-2 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 180-B) – Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care 

Center, Northwest Corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – R-1B to B-1  
 
Pending Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the R-C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, Section 3, being 39,000 square feet in size, is hereby DENIED for the 
following reasons, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission: 
 
1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. Making a recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan would weaken 

the validity of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend future zoning decisions.   
3. Rezoning this parcel to B-1 would result in the enlargement of an undesirable 

commercial “spot zone” along an area along the Rochester Road corridor that is planned 
for medium density use.   

4. Approval of the rezoning request could open the door for further commercial rezoning 
applications along the Rochester Road corridor. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the Planning 
Commission to consider amending the Future Land Use Plan in the Rochester Road corridor 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

between Square Lake and South Boulevard before the first City Council meeting scheduled for 
March 2006. 
 
Substitute Amendment 
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the preceding resolution for Rezoning Application (File No. Z 180-B) – 
Proposed Binson’s Home Health Care Center, Northwest Corner of Rochester and Marengo, 
Section 3 – R-1B to B-1 be SUBSTITUTED with the following: 
 

Proposed Resolution A (Denial) 
 

RESOLVED, That the R-C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, Section 3, being 39,000 square feet in size, is described in the 
following legal descriptions and illustrated on the attached drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE ¼ of Section 3 
 

Lots 5,6,7,8, and 9 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision (Liber 42, pg. 8 of Oakland 
County Plats).  Containing ±0.895 ac. more or less, and subject to easements of 
record. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby DENIED for the 
following reasons, as recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission: 
 
1. The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. Making a recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan would 

weaken the validity of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend future zoning 
decisions.   

3. Rezoning this parcel to B-1 would result in the enlargement of an undesirable 
commercial “spot zone” along an area along the Rochester Road corridor that is 
planned for medium density use.   

4. Approval of the rezoning request could open the door for further commercial 
rezoning applications along the Rochester Road corridor. 

 
Or Proposed Resolution B (Approval)

 
RESOLVED, That the R-C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Rochester and Marengo, Section 3, being 39,000 square feet in size, is described in the 
following legal descriptions and illustrated on the attached drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NE ¼ of Section 3 
 

Lots 5,6,7,8, and 9 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision (Liber 42, pg. 8 of Oakland 
County Plats).  Containing ±0.895 ac. more or less, and subject to easements of 
record. 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby APPROVED. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
D-3 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 717) – Proposed Medical/General Office Building, 

Northwest Corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to O-1  
 
Pending Resolution  
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Broomfield 
 
RESOLVED, That the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of Lovell 
and Rochester, in Section 3, part of parcel 88-20-03-226-104, being 0.994 acres in size, is 
described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached Certificate of Survey 
drawing: 

 
T2N, R11E, NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 3 

 
Commencing at the East ¼ Corner of said Section 3; thence N 01°46'00" W (Recorded 
as N 01°21'08" W) along the east line of Section 3, 1831.21 ft. and S 88°38'24" W, 80.00 
ft. to the Point of Beginning being at the intersection of the west line of Rochester Rd. 
(M-150) and the north line of Lovell Ave.; thence continuing S 88°38'24" W, along the 
north line of Lovell Ave., 221.00 ft.; thence N 01°46'00" W, 195.90 ft.; thence N 88°38'24" 
E (Recorded as N 89°03'37" E), 221.00 ft. to the west line of Rochester Rd.; thence S 
01°46'00" E along said west line, 195.90 ft. to the Point of Beginning. Containing 0.994 
ac., more or less, and subject to easements and restrictions of record; and 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby GRANTED, as 
recommended by City Management and the Planning Commission. 
 
Substitute Amendment 
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the preceding resolution for Rezoning Application (File No. Z 717) – 
Proposed Medical/General Office Building, Northwest Corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, 
Section 3 – R-1C to O-1 be SUBSTITUTED with the following: 
 

WHEREAS, That the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located on the northwest corner of 
Lovell and Rochester, in Section 3, part of parcel 88-20-03-226-104, being 0.994 acres 
in size, is described in the following legal description and illustrated on the attached 
Certificate of Survey drawing: 

 
T2N, R11E, NE ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 3 

 
Commencing at the East ¼ Corner of said Section 3;  thence N 01°46'00" W 
(Recorded as N 01°21'08" W) along the east line of Section 3, 1831.21 ft. and S 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

88°38'24" W, 80.00 ft. to the Point of Beginning being at the intersection of the 
west line of Rochester Rd. (M-150) and the north line of Lovell Ave.;  thence 
continuing S 88°38'24" W, along the north line of Lovell Ave., 221.00 ft.;  thence N 
01°46'00" W, 195.90 ft.;  thence N 88°38'24" E (Recorded as N 89°03'37" E), 
221.00 ft. to the west line of Rochester Rd.;  thence S 01°46'00" E along said west 
line, 195.90 ft. to the Point of Beginning.  Containing 0.994 ac., more or less, and 
subject to easements and restrictions of record. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning is hereby POSTPONED to the August 28, 2006 
City Council meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 6:00 PM Special City Council Meeting and the 7:30 PM 
Regular City Council Meeting of July 24, 2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation be APPROVED: 
 
a) International Day of Peace – September 21, 2006   
  
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Approval to Expend Budgeted Funds – Troy 

Community Coalition  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That approval to expend funds budgeted in the 2006/2007 fiscal year to the Troy 
Community Coalition to provide community services to prevent drug and alcohol abuse in the 
amount of $100,000.00 is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
E-5 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Winter Maintenance Agreement between the Road Commission for 
Oakland County and the City of Troy for snow and ice control of certain primary and local roads, 
which are described and outlined in Exhibit A, is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the necessary documents, a copy of this agreement, 
which is authorized by the provisions of 1951 PA 51 (MCL 247.651 et seq.), shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
E-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain from Suburban 

Maplelawn 5, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-29-401-013   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for watermain received from Suburban Maplelawn 
5, LLC, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-29-401-013, is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of said document shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

 
E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Detention Basin from Harmony 

Developers, LLC for West Oak Subdivision No. 1 and 2 – Sidwell #88-20-23-409-008
   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the warranty deed for a detention basin from Harmony Developers, LLC, 
owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-23-409-008, is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document of Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain and Abandonment 

of Part of Original Watermain Easement from St. George Syrian Orthodox Church 
of Detroit – Sidwell #88-20-36-100-067, Project No. 03.919.3    

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for watermain from St. George Syrian Orthodox 
Church of Detroit, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-36-100-067, is hereby ACCEPTED; 
and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN a 
quit claim deed to complete the abandonment of that part of the original watermain easement 
that is no longer needed; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
easement and deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Sapphire Estates Subdivision 

Detention Basin – Section 21, Sidwell #88-20-21-104-001    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the warranty deed received from Bhudia G. Patel and Veena G. Patel, 
owners of a parcel having Sidwell #88-20-21-104-001, is hereby ACCEPTED for a detention 
basin for Sapphire Estates Subdivision; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
warranty deed with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

E-10 Private Agreement for Hyundai and Infiniti – Project No. 05.936.3    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Suburban Maplelawn, LLC, is hereby APPROVED for 
the installation of water main and paving on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Private Agreement for Briggs Park Condominiums – Project No. 05.949.3    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and APR Development LLC, is hereby APPROVED for 
the installation of public and private roads pursuant to Chapter 39 of the City Code, Section 
12.50.04, water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, sidewalks, soil erosion and 
landscaping on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12 Relocation and Renovation of the Engineering Field Office    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That City staff is AUTHORIZED to relocate and renovate office space for the Field 
Engineering Department, as outlined in Detailed Cost Estimates listed in Appendix A, for an 
estimated total cost of $27,060.80 using in-house personnel, approved contracts, and standard 
purchasing procedures; and 
  
BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED, That the 2006-07 Capital Budget be AMENDED to transfer the 
funds from the sale of the remnant parcel adjacent to the Rochester Road property to the 
Capital Budget to cover this expenditure. 
 
E-13 Amendment #1 – Troy Daze Amusement Rides Contract    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
WHEREAS, On February 21, 2005, Troy City Council approved a three (3) year contract to 
provide amusement rides for the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall Festival to the sole bidder, Arnold 
Amusements, Inc., of Traverse City, MI, at a 40% rate of return of gross ride receipts and in 
accordance with their bid proposal opened February 2, 2005 (Resolution #2005-02-083-E6);  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

WHEREAS, Arnold Amusements has requested to make changes to their proposal due to the 
new festival schedule, as follows;  
 

• Change the ride wristband prices from $18 to $20,  
 

• Change the times wristbands are available on Sunday to 12 – 5 pm.  Sunday’s time had 
been 5 – 8 pm,   

 
• Change the Thursday special from 10 rides for $10 to 1 less ticket per ride, 

 
• Eliminate the free Senior Sensation rides on Friday morning; and   

 
WHEREAS, The Troy Daze Festival Committee has reviewed the changes and endorses them, 
and in addition requests to have a dunk tank as a fundraiser for the Police Honor Guard; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 
recommended changes to the contract for Arnold Amusements, Inc., as well as allowing a dunk 
tank for the Police Honor Guard as a fundraising activity.   
 
E-14 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Troy Party Store    
 
(a) New License
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Czaryd Enterprises, Inc., to transfer all stock in 2005 SDD 
and SDM licensed corporation by dropping John Czarnota as stockholder through transfer of 
1,000 shares of stock to existing stockholder, Stanley Rydzewski, sometime in 1986; and 
wherein sole stockholder, Stanley Rydzewski, transfers 2,000 shares of stock to new 
stockholder, Daniel Rydzewski, located at 6990 John R, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland, be 
CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES 
an agreement with Czaryd Enterprises, Inc., to transfer all stock in 2005 SDD and SDM 
licensed corporation by dropping John Czarnota as stockholder through transfer of 1,000 
shares of stock to existing stockholder, Stanley Rydzewski, sometime in 1986; and wherein 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

sole stockholder, Stanley Rydzewski, transfers 2,000 shares of stock to new stockholder, 
Daniel Rydzewski, located at 6990 John R, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-15 Sole Source – Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center and 

Troy Community Center    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-08- 
 
WHEREAS, The American Red Cross is the sole known provider of Red Cross training supplies 
in Michigan; and   
 
WHEREAS, The American Red Cross has been providing training supplies for lifeguard and 
CPR programs and classes at the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center for 
the past two years;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a contract to purchase American Red Cross training 
supplies for the Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center from the sole known 
provider in Michigan, the American Red Cross, is hereby APPROVED at an estimated total cost 
of $25,000.00, expiring December 31, 2007. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  b) City Council Appointments: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; 
Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic District 
Commission; Historical Commission; Library Advisory Board; Municipal Building 
Authority; Parks & Recreation Board; Traffic Committee; and Troy Daze 
Committee    

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor (5) – 4 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 06/30/2007 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

(Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/09 
 
Cable Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 &/or 2 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 09/30/07 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
Historical Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Library Advisory Board 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

Troy School District Rep Term Expires 07/01/07 
 
Traffic Committee
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of the Michigan Municipal 

League 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That ____________________________ is hereby DESIGNATED as Voting 
Delegate and __________________________________ is hereby DESIGNATED as the 
Alternate Voting Delegate to cast the vote of the City of Troy at the Annual Meeting of the 
Michigan Municipal League to be held September 27 through September 29, 2006 in 
Marquette, Michigan.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Eight Ellipticals for Troy Community Center 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On October 18, 2004, a contract to purchase and install ten (10) ellipticals at the 
Troy Community Center was awarded to All Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI, the only 
authorized Precor dealer in Michigan (Resolution #2004-10-555);  
 
WHEREAS, All Pro Exercise, Inc. has agreed to provide eight (8) additional Precor ellipticals at 
an average price of $3,872.00 with three-year service agreements of $175.00 each, and allow 
$800.00 for each trade-in, which is less than the originally quoted prices of $3,895.00 and 
$335.00 respectively; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

WHEREAS, All Pro Exercise, Inc. is the only authorized Precor dealer in the State of Michigan; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bidding procedures are hereby WAIVED and a 
contract to purchase eight (8) Precor ellipticals less eight (8) trade-ins is hereby APPROVED to 
All Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI for an estimated net total cost of $26,965.00, 
which includes delivery, set-up, and three-year maintenance agreements for parts and labor. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Approval of MDOT Contract No. 06-5352 for CMAQ Projects – Coolidge at Wattles 

(Project No. 00.109.5), Square Lake at John R (Project No. 99.205.5), and Square 
Lake at Dequindre (Project No. 99.206.5) 

 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That MDOT Contract No. 06-5352 between the City of Troy and the Michigan 
Department of Transportation for the CMAQ Projects at Wattles at Coolidge; Square Lake at 
John R; and Square Lake at Dequindre, Project No. 00.109.5, 99.205.5, 99.206.5 is hereby 
APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy not to exceed $588,500.00, and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 City of Troy Master Plan 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The responsibility of cities and villages to adopt and update a master plan is 
outlined in the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended;    
 
WHEREAS, The Municipal Planning Act requires that at least 5 years after the adoption of a 
plan, a municipality shall review the plan and determine whether to commence the procedure or 
adopt a new plan;  
 
WHEREAS, The Future Land Use Plan was last amended on January 8, 2002.  The 
determination of whether to update the plan or adopt a new plan must be made prior to January 
8, 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Planning Commission passed Resolution # PC-2005-05-091 on 
May 24, 2005, which found that the Future Land Use Plan is deficient and in need of a 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

comprehensive update, and recommended that the City begin the process of preparing the City 
of Troy Master Plan;  
 
WHEREAS, On April 18, 2005, the City of Troy entered into an Agreement for Consulting 
Services with Carlisle/Wortman, Inc. and under this contract, Carlisle/Wortman, Inc. provides 
Planning Consultation, including special projects such as master plan preparation; 
 
WHEREAS, City Management negotiated a proposal to provide professional services for 
master plan preparation within the terms of the April 18, 2005 Agreement for Consulting 
Services with Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.; 
 
WHEREAS, City Management recommends approval of the Proposal to Provide Professional 
Services, Master Plan Preparation, Revised June, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, On June 27, 2006, the Planning Commission recommended that the City utilize the 
services of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. to assist the City in preparation of the City of Troy 
Master Plan, as per the Proposal to Provide Professional Services, Master Plan Preparation, 
revised June, 2006; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby APPROVES the Proposal to 
Provide Professional Services, Master Plan Preparation, as prepared by Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc., revised June, 2006, and AUTHORIZES commencement of the master plan 
preparation process.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Schedule a Special Meeting to Discuss the Big Beaver Corridor Study 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That a special meeting is SCHEDULED for Monday, August 28, 2006 at 6:15 PM 
in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan for the purpose 
of discussing the Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-7 Amendatory Cost Participation Agreement for the Long Lake/Livernois/Crooks 

Concrete Pavement Replacement Project No. 05.106.5 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 17 - 

RESOLVED, That the Amendatory Cost Participation Agreement between the City of Troy and 
the Board of Road Commissioners for Oakland County for the Long Lake and Livernois 
Concrete Pavement Replacement Project, Project No. 05.106.5, at a cost to the City of Troy not 
to exceed $772,916.00 is hereby APPROVED and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting.     
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 19, 2006 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
(a) No Changes on East Lovell at Westaway
 
RESOLVED, That there be NO CHANGES on East Lovell at Westaway. 
 
(b) No Changes on Songbird at Meadowlark
 
RESOLVED, That there be NO CHANGES on Songbird at Meadowlark. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-9 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel #88-20-22-426-057, Section 22, All of Lot 

42 and Part of Lots 43, and 45 of Supervisors Plat #17 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of a remnant parcel; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council FINDS that the public interest will 
best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 85-254 Policy 
Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess City owned property and APPROVE the sale of the 
remnant parcel having Sidwell #88-20-22-426-057, described in Attachment “A” attached 
hereto, to Troy-Rochester Properties L.L.C. for $200,000.00, the appraised value as outlined in 
the Offer to Purchase, with conditions, plus closing costs; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 18 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That closing WILL TAKE PLACE when all conditions have been 
met; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed, on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made a part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-10 Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, on March 27, 2006, a one-year contract with an option to renew for one additional 
year to provide hauling and disposal of dirt and debris (Items B and C) was awarded to the low 
bidder, Enviro-Vac Services, Inc. of Troy, MI (Resolution # 2006-03-153-E-4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Enviro-Vac Services, Inc. has defaulted on the contract due to their unwillingness 
to obtain the required insurance; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract to haul and dispose of dirt and debris for 
(Items B and C) be RESCINDED with prejudice from Enviro-Vac Services, Inc., and RE-
AWARDED to the next lowest acceptable bidder, Luke’s Trucking and Excavating LLC of Holly, 
MI (Items B and C) at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 28, 2006, with 
the contract expiring March 27, 2007; and 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That if the price of on-road diesel fuel exceeds 
$3.00/gallon during the contract term, the City is AUTHORIZED to pay a $.25/ton fuel 
surcharge, and up to a $.50/ton surcharge if prices exceed $3.50/gallon, to Luke’s Trucking and 
Excavating LLC for hauling broken asphalt and fill dirt. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-11 Bid Waiver- Troy Daze Large Tents 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-08- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 19 - 

WHEREAS, The Troy Daze Festival requires tents to house various community, cultural, and 
entertainment activities for their annual event; 
 
WHEREAS, No companies submitted a bid during the formal bid process on the two large tents; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has been able to locate a company, Dial Tent and Awning, of Saginaw, MI 
who does have the sizes of the two large tents and can make them available for the event; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That formal bid procedures are hereby WAIVED and a 
contract is APPROVED to rent two large tents from Dial Tent and Awning, of Saginaw, MI for 
the estimated total cost of $11,176.00. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Rezoning Application (File Number: Z 632-B) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, West Side 

of Rochester Road, North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T – August 28, 
2006  

b) Proposed Amendment to Planned Unit Development – Woodside Bible 
Church/Northwyck Condominium Planned Unit Development (PUD 1), Located on the 
East Side of Rochester Road, North of Square Lake Road and South of South 
Boulevard, Section 2 – August 28, 2006  

c) Parking Variance Request – 35 W. Square Lake Road – September 11, 2006 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 20 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – April 18, 2006  
b) Library Advisory Board/Final – May 11, 2006  
c) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – June 7, 2006  
d) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – June 7, 2006 
e) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 20, 2006  
f) Downtown Development Authority/Final – June 21, 2006 
g) Traffic Committee/Final – June 21, 2006  
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 27, 2006  
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 27, 2006 
j) Planning Commission/Draft – July 11, 2006  
k) Planning Commission/Final – July 11, 2006  
l) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 18, 2006 
m) Downtown Development Authority/Final – July 19, 2006  
n) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – July 24, 2006 
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 25, 2006  

06  p) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 25, 20
) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft- August 2, 2006 q

 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML Board of Trustees 

Meeting  
) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of July, 2006   b

 
  J-3 Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Mark Weigand Regarding the Election 
Sensitivity Training   

b) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Julie O’Donovan in Appreciation of the 
Election Sensitivity Training  

c) Letter of Appreciation to Carol Anderson and Staff from Vicki Richardson Regarding the 
Outstanding Efforts during the Family Festival  

d) Letter of Appreciation to the Aquatic Center from Melissa Watkins Regarding the 
Dedicated, Helpful and Cautious Lifeguards  

e) Letter of Appreciation to Ann Blizzard from Diana Rae Regarding the Professionalism of 
the Lifeguards at the Aquatic Center  

f) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Cindy Eisenbraun in Appreciation of the Kindness of 
Officer Dungjen  

g) Letter of Appreciation to Tonni Bartholomew from Susan Werpetinski Commending the 
Clerk’s Office for the Efforts in Implementing the Help American Vote Act  

h) Letter of Thanks to Phillip Nelson from Ping Wang Regarding the Efforts and 
Thoughtfulness of Lance Oakley 

         
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 21 - 

J-6  Communication from Rehmann Robson Regarding the Financial Audit Services for 
the Year Ended June 30, 2006  

 
J-7  Communication from Michigan Municipal League Regarding the Workers’ 

Compensation Fund Loss Control Award  
 
J-8  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding the Hooters Lawsuit  
 
J-9  Report of the Twenty-Sixth Annual Actuarial Valuation of the City of Troy Incentive 

Plan for Volunteer Firefighters – December 31, 2005 – Available for Viewing at the 
City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library  

 
J-10  Report of the Forty-Second Annual Actuarial Valuation of the City of Troy 

Employees Retirement System – December 31, 2005 – Available for Viewing at the 
City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library  

 
J-11  Communication from Director of Building and Zoning Mark Stimac Regarding the 

Results of Blight Strategies Survey and Suggested Action Plan  
 
J-12  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding 2307 

Rochester Court Sewer Backup  
 
J-13  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Appeal of Hooters Lawsuit  
 
J-14  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Mowing 

of Ditches on County Roads  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Disposal/Sale of Excess Property 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  August 14, 2006 
 

- 22 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, August 28, 2006.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 11, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 18, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 25, 2006 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 2, 2006 .......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 16, 2006 ........................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, October 23, 2006 ........................................................Regular City Council 
Monday, November 13, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 20, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 27, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 4, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 18, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



 PROCLAMATION  
 INTERNATIONAL DAY OF PEACE 

 SEPTEMBER 21, 2006 
 
WHEREAS, The issue of peace embraces the deepest hopes of all peoples and remains 
humanity’s guiding inspiration; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1981 the United Nations proclaimed the International Day of Peace be 
“devoted to commemorating and strengthening the ideals of peace both within and among all 
nations and peoples”; and  
 
WHEREAS, The United Nations expanded the observance of the International Day of Peace 
in 2001 to include the call for a day of global ceasefire and non-violence, and invited all 
nations and people to honor a cessation of hostilities for the duration of the Day; and 
 
WHEREAS, There is growing support within our City for the observance of the International 
Day of Peace, which affirms a vision of our world at peace, and fosters cooperation between 
individuals, organizations and nations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Global crises impel all citizens to work toward converting humanity’s noblest 
aspirations for world peace into a practical reality for future generations, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby 
proclaim September 21, 2006 as International Day of Peace in the City of Troy and urges all citizens 
to join us in recognizing this day.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council urges all government agencies, 
organizations, schools, places of worship and individuals in our city to commemorate, in an 
appropriate manner, the International Day of Peace. This may include community service 
projects, cultural exhibits and performances, a moment of silence, ringing of bells, sharing the 
universal wish ‘May Peace Prevail On Earth’ at noon, vigils, religious services in our places of 
worship, and other education and public awareness activities in order to help establish a 
global day of peace in our homes, our communities and between nations. 
 
Signed the 14th day of August 2006. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
A-01a



 1

 
DATE: July 31, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Public Hearing – Rezoning Application (File Number: Z 716) – 

Proposed City Initiated Rezoning, South of Big Beaver, West of Coolidge, 
Section 30 – R-1C to R-1E 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and compatible 
with existing zoning districts and land uses.  The Planning Commission recommended 
approval of this item at the June 13, 2006 Regular meeting.  City Management concurs 
with the Planning Commission and recommends approval of the rezoning request.   
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The range of uses permitted in the proposed R-1E One Family Residential Zoning District 
is the same as the existing R-1C Zoning District.  
 
Under the current R-1C classification, the majority of the existing lots do not meet the 
current minimum lot area and minimum lot width requirements.  The lots and homes in this 
area were originally developed under a different set of ordinance provisions that were 
similar to the current R-1E zoning district requirements.  This causes nearly all of the 
properties to be non-conforming lots containing non-conforming structures due to lot width, 
lot area and setbacks.  This status places a significant and unnecessary burden on the 
property owners when attempting to make improvements to their property.   
 
The following table was created using plat maps.  The table illustrates that of the 193 lots 
proposed for rezoning, only 20 (10.4%) meet the minimum lot area requirements and only 16 
(8.3%) meet the minimum lot width requirements of the R-1C district.  If rezoned to R-1E, 94 
(48.7%) would meet the minimum lot area requirements and 85 (45.1%) would meet the 
minimum lot width requirements of the R-1E district. 
 
Note that the percentage of lots meeting setback requirements cannot be determined 
using plat maps, and would require measuring the existing setbacks of all 193 homes.   
 
Since the rezoning would eliminate non-conforming status based on lot area or lot width for 
a significant number of lots, it is prudent to address this situation by rezoning the property 
to the R-1E classification. 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 2

 
 Adrienne Manor 

Subdivision 
Troyton Manor 
Subdivision 

John F. Englehardt 
Subdivision 

Number of lots proposed 
to be rezoned 

36 136 21 

R-1C: Number of lots 
meeting lot area 
requirements (%) 

0 (0%) 12 (9%) 8 (38%) 

R-1C: Number of lots 
meeting lot width 
requirements (%) 

0 (0%) 16 (12%) 0 (0%) 

R-1E: Number of lots 
meeting lot area 
requirements (%) 

36 (100%) 37 (27%) 21 (100%) 

R-1E: Number of lots 
meeting lot width 
requirements (%) 

2 (6%) 70 (51%) 15 (71%) 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The request was initiated by the City on behalf of property owners of non-conforming 
parcels in the area of Troyton Manor, Adrienne Manor and the southern portion of John F. 
Englehardt Subdivisions. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located south of Big Beaver and west of Coolidge, in Section 30. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The property to be rezoned is approximately 49.69 acres.  Specifically, the property includes 
the entire Troyton Manor Subdivision, lots 11-31 of John F. Englehardt Subdivision, lots 1-3 
of Buckingham Woods Subdivision, the entire Adrienne Manor Subdivision, and the 3 
parcels immediately east of Adrienne Subdivision.  At the March 28, 2006 Special/Study 
meeting, the Planning Commission determined the Pembroke Elementary School site should 
not be included in the request. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Single family homes. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
R-1E One Family Residential. 



 3

Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
No changes in the current uses are proposed. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential, Pembroke Elementary School and St. Alan Church. 
South: Single family residential, park area (City of Birmingham) and school (City of 

Birmingham). 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Railroad and multiple family residential (City of Birmingham). 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: R-2 Single Family Residential and PP Public Property (both City of Birmingham). 
East: R-1C One Family Residential and RM-1 Residential Multiple-Family Low Rise. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential and R-5 Multiple Family (City of Birmingham). 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Density Residential.  The 
application therefore complies with the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
 
 
cc: File (Z 716) 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-716 NON CONFORMING LOTS R-1C TO R-1E SEC 30\CC Public Hearing Z-716 8 14 06.doc 



W
ATE

R
LO

O

N
O

R
W

ICH

KIN
G

S
TO

N

W
E

X
FO

R
D

D
AR

TM
O

O
R

ROXBURY

GLOUCHESTER

DERBY

W
A

R
W

IC
K

OAK LEAF

W
R

E
N

W
O

O
D

C
EDAR 

RID
G

E

ETO
N

DOROTHEA CT

NAMPA CT

MEDFORD

VILLAGE CT

YORK

ESSEX

M
AY

FA
IR

BROOKLAWN

ENGLE CT

WITHERBEE

G
RA

EF
IE

LD

ROSEGLEN

GOLFVIEW

C
O

O
LID

G
E

 H
W

Y

W BIG BEAVER

26
23

26
49

26
65

26
89

27
11

27
41

27
61

27
7118
70

27
85

18
84

27
93

18
56

19
00

19
14

28
01

28
0918
42

18
26

18
14

18
1017

4083
5

17
26

1061

12631080

1262
110

01071

1081
1091 1112 1076

10
68

1072 1301 1302

92
0

1315 1316

98
0

96
0

94
0

93
4

9261040 10
51

1215 12161041 10
55

1064
10

2810
85 1227

10
36

12281050

1051 10
95

1060

1239
941

961

1240

98
110

64 92112511092

15
511001

10
05

99
9

99
1

10
11

98
3 97
5

96
7 96

1 931 910

10
17

15
43

1011

10
2315

01

15
3515

17 10
27

1021

15
27 918

1024
10

33
1031

10
39 10

06
99

8

98
2

97
4

96
6

95
8

95
0

10
20 94

2

15
74 870

86
8 875

16
7916

69

15
64905 89

0 878

15
54 881915 904

16
5916
25

16
35

16
41

16
51

886

16
11

15
44

15
99

891925

15
8115
30926 894

15
65

901935

15
59

902

17
1484
5

17
04

16
9485
5

16
84

81
8

16
74

86
5

16
6482
8

16
54 854

16
44

87
5

16
34

16
24

83
8

16
14

16
0484

8

88
5 862

15
9415

84 168985
8895

20
75

21
05

21
25

21
51

21
71

21
85

21
99

22
15

22
39

22
57

22
87

23
05

23
27

23
51

23
75

23
93

24
01

24
25

24
47

24
63

24
89

24
95

25
03

25
29

25
51

25
77

25
95

26
05

20
25

20
51

CITY INITIATED REZONING
EXISTING NON CONFORMING RESIDENTIAL LOTS
FROM R-1C TO R-1E
S OF BIG BEAVER, W OF COOLIDGE
SEC. 30  (Z-716)

±0 200 400
Feet

Legend
Lots Proposed to be Rezoned



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



W
ATER

LO
O

N
O

R
W

IC
H

K
IN

G
S

TO
N

W
E

XFO
R

D

D
A

R
TM

O
O

R

AM
BE

R
LY

ROXBURY

GLOUCHESTER

DERBY

W
AR

W
IC

K

OAK LEAF

W
R

E
N

W
O

O
D

C
E

DAR R
ID

G
E

ETO
N

DOROTHEA CT

EDENBO
RO

UG
H

NAMPA
CT

MEDFORD

VILLAGE CT

YORK

ESSEX

M
AY

FAIR

BROOKLAWN

CT

ROMANY

ST
AN

D
R

EW
S

B
R

O
O

K
LAW

N

ENGLE
CT

KI
N

G
SL

E
Y

WITHERBEE

G
R

AE
FI

EL
D

ROSEGLEN

C
O

O
LID

G
E

 H
W

Y

GOLFVIEW

W BIG BEAVER
REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO R-1E
S OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN ADAM & COOLIDGE
SEC. 30 (Z-716)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 300 600150
Feet



W
ATER

LO
O

N
O

R
W

IC
H

K
IN

G
S

TO
N

W
E

XFO
R

D

D
A

R
TM

O
O

R

AM
BE

R
LY

ROXBURY

GLOUCHESTER

DERBY

W
AR

W
IC

K

OAK LEAF

W
R

E
N

W
O

O
D

C
E

DAR R
ID

G
E

ETO
N

DOROTHEA CT

EDENBO
RO

UG
H

NAMPA
CT

MEDFORD

VILLAGE CT

YORK

ESSEX

M
AY

FAIR

BROOKLAWN

CT

ROMANY

ST
AN

D
R

EW
S

B
R

O
O

K
LAW

N

ENGLE
CT

KI
N

G
SL

E
Y

WITHERBEE

G
R

AE
FI

EL
D

ROSEGLEN

C
O

O
LID

G
E

 H
W

Y

GOLFVIEW

W BIG BEAVER

(O-M)

(O-M)

(R-1B)
(B-
2)

(R-1C)

(OSC)

(O-1)(P-1)

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1C TO R-1E
S OF BIG BEAVER, BTWN ADAM & COOLIDGE
SEC. 30 (Z-716)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 300 600150
Feet



W
ATE

R
LO

O

N
O

R
W

ICH

KIN
G

S
TO

N

W
E

X
FO

R
D

D
AR

TM
O

O
R

ROXBURY

GLOUCHESTER

DERBY

W
A

R
W

IC
K

OAK LEAF

W
R

E
N

W
O

O
D

C
EDAR 

RID
G

E

ETO
N

DOROTHEA CT

NAMPA CT

MEDFORD

VILLAGE CT

YORK

ESSEX

M
AY

FA
IR

BROOKLAWN

ENGLE CT

WITHERBEE

G
RA

EF
IE

LD

ROSEGLEN

GOLFVIEW

C
O

O
LID

G
E

 H
W

Y

W BIG BEAVER

26
23

26
49

26
65

26
89

27
11

27
41

27
61

27
7118
70

27
85

18
84

27
93

18
56

19
00

19
14

28
01

28
0918
42

18
26

18
14

18
1017

4083
5

17
26

1061

12631080

1262
110

01071

1081
1091 1112 1076

10
68

1072 1301 1302

92
0

1315 1316

98
0

96
0

94
0

93
4

9261040 10
51

1215 12161041 10
55

1064
10

2810
85 1227

10
36

12281050

1051 10
95

1060

1239
941

961

1240

98
110

64 92112511092

15
511001

10
05

99
9

99
1

10
11

98
3 97
5

96
7 96

1 931 910

10
17

15
43

1011

10
2315

01

15
3515

17 10
27

1021

15
27 918

1024
10

33
1031

10
39 10

06
99

8

98
2

97
4

96
6

95
8

95
0

10
20 94

2

15
74 870

86
8 875

16
7916

69

15
64905 89

0 878

15
54 881915 904

16
5916
25

16
35

16
41

16
51

886

16
11

15
44

15
99

891925

15
8115
30926 894

15
65

901935

15
59

902

17
1484
5

17
04

16
9485
5

16
84

81
8

16
74

86
5

16
6482
8

16
54 854

16
44

87
5

16
34

16
24

83
8

16
14

16
0484

8

88
5 862

15
9415

84 168985
8895

20
75

21
05

21
25

21
51

21
71

21
85

21
99

22
15

22
39

22
57

22
87

23
05

23
27

23
51

23
75

23
93

24
01

24
25

24
47

24
63

24
89

24
95

25
03

25
29

25
51

25
77

25
95

26
05

20
25

20
51

CITY INITIATED REZONING
EXISTING NON CONFORMING RESIDENTIAL LOTS
FROM R-1C TO R-1E
S OF BIG BEAVER, W OF COOLIDGE
SEC. 30  (Z-716)

±0 200 400
Feet

Legend
Lots Proposed to be Rezoned





 1

Date: August 8, 2006 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
From: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Rezoning Application (File Number: Z 704) – Proposed 

Dunkin Donuts, South side of Vanderpool, West of Rochester Road and 
East of Ellenboro, Section 22 – R-1E to B-2 and E-P 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The rezoning application is compatible with surrounding land uses and zoning districts.  
Further, the request is consistent with the existing B-2 zoning located south of 
Vanderpool.  The proposed 30-foot wide E-P strip on the western side of the property 
will assist in buffering the property from the single-family lot to the west.  The Planning 
Commission held a public hearing on this item on April 11, 2006 and recommended 
approval of the rezoning request from R-1E to B-2.  City Management recommended 
approval of the rezoning request as submitted and furthermore supports the addition of 
the 30-foot E-P buffer. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
A public hearing was held for this item at the June 5, 2006 City Council Regular 
meeting.  During the public hearing, some residents expressed concern regarding the 
proposed buffer between the subject property and the abutting single-family residential 
neighborhood to the west.  The petitioner proposed to rezone the western 30 feet of the 
property to E-P Environmental Protection District, which would ensure that the buffer 
would remain undeveloped in the future.  The item was postponed to the June 19, 2006 
City Council Regular meeting to provide the petitioner with time to prepare a revised 
legal description that clearly illustrates the 30-foot wide E-P buffer.  The revised legal 
description was provided.  The item was postponed to the August 14, 2006 meeting due 
to the petitioner’s illness.  
 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 
 
The subject property is designated as non-center commercial on the Future Land Use 
Plan.  Both the B-3 and H-S zoning districts correlate with the non-center commercial 
future land use designation.  Most of the uses permitted in the proposed B-2 district are 
permitted in the B-3 district; however, the B-3 district includes a wider range of uses.  
Within the B-3 district, the front yard setback is 40 feet and the rear yard setback is 30 
feet.  The proposed B-2 district setbacks are greater; the front yard setback is 75 feet 
and the rear yard setback is 30 feet.  Therefore, the potential land uses are less 
intensive within the proposed B-2 district and the building setbacks are greater, when 
compared to the future planned B-3 district.  

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



 2

The proposed rezoning would extend the existing western boundary of B-2 property to 
line up precisely with the abutting property to the south, which is also within the B-2 
zoning district.  This proposed B-2 boundary extends slightly further to the west than the 
B-3 district to the north and across Vanderpool.  However, the depth of the proposed B-2 
zoning towards the west is consistent with properties along the western side of the 
Rochester Road corridor, between Big Beaver and Wattles.   
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owners of the property are Glenn and Barbara Carter.  The applicant is John 
Glasnak of Troy-Rochester Properties, LLC. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the south side of Vanderpool, west of Rochester Road and 
east of Ellenboro, in Section 22. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 0.5 acres in area.  
 
Parcel History: 
The applicant submitted an application to rezone the subject parcel on May 16, 2005.  
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning request on June 14, 
2005.  City Council denied the request on August 1, 2005.  The applicant modified the 
site plan by eliminating the entry drive on Vanderpool.   
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject parcel is a single family residence. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1E One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-2 Community Business. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to acquire three City-owned remnant parcels that abut the 
subject parcel to the east.  The four parcels will be combined and developed as a 
Dunkin Donuts restaurant.  Rezoning and combining these parcels creates a desirable 
commercial site.  The applicant has provided a site plan that indicates all traffic will enter 
the site from Rochester Road.  The site plan also proposes a 6-foot high screen wall on 
the western property line and significant landscaping on the east side of the wall.   



 3

The remnant parcels are Lot 42 and part of Lots 43 and 45 of Supervisor’s Plat Number 
17.  The subject parcel is part of Lot 41 of Supervisor’s Plat Number 17.  The purchase 
of the remnant parcels will be approved upon the rezoning request being granted. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single-family residential. 
South: Troy Point Plaza (retail strip mall). 
East: Vacant. 
West: Single-family residential. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1E One Family Residential and B-3 General Business. 
South: B-2 Community Business. 
East: B-2 Community Business. 
West: R-1E One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed B-2 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Any retail business or service establishment permitted in B-1 Districts as Principal 
Uses Permitted and Uses Permitted Subject to Special Conditions,  
 
Any retail business whose principal activity is the sale of merchandise in an 
enclosed building, except for those limited to or first permitted in the B-3 General 
Business District. 
 
Any service establishment of a showroom or workshop nature, of an electrician, 
decorator, dressmaker, tailor, baker, painter, upholsterer; or an establishment doing 
radio or home appliance repair, photographic studios and reproduction and similar 
service establishments that require a retail adjunct. 
 
Business establishments which perform services on the premises, such as but not 
limited to:  banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance offices, travel services, and real estate offices. 
 
Private clubs, fraternal organization, and lodge halls. 
 
Restaurants, or other places serving food or beverage, except those having the 
character of a drive-in or open front store. 
 
Theaters, assembly halls, concert halls or similar places of assembly, when 
conducted completely within enclosed buildings. 



 4

Business schools and colleges or private schools operated for profit, not including 
nursery schools. 
 
Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above permitted uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
Drive-up Windows or Service Facilities, as Accessory to Principal Uses Within B-2 
Districts, Apart from Restaurants 
 
Outside seating areas, of twenty (20) seats or less, for restaurants or other food 
service establishments 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 
Drive-Up Windows or Service Facilities, as an Accessory to Restaurants Permitted 
Within this District 
 
Bowling alley, billiard hall, indoor archery range, indoor skating, rinks, indoor tennis 
courts, athletic or health clubs, or similar forms of indoor commercial recreation, 
when the subject uses are located at least 100 feet from any Residential District. 
 
Open air business uses when developed as uses subordinate to primary uses and 
structures within the B-2 District as follows: 
 
A. Retail sales of plant material not grown on the site, and sales of lawn 

furniture, playground equipment and garden supplies. 
B. Recreational space providing shuffleboard, miniature golf, tennis, or similar 

outdoor recreation, when part of a planned development. 
C. Outdoor driver training and testing areas on or abutting the site of a driving 

school. 
 
Outside seating areas, in excess of twenty (20) seats, for restaurants, or other 
food service establishments. 
 
Facilities within a retail establishment for installation, in vehicles, of items sold at 
retail at that location. 

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Vanderpool. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 



 5

Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Non-Center Commercial.  The 
Non-Center Commercial designation has a Primary Correlation with the B-3 General 
Business Zoning District and a Secondary Correlation with the H-S Highway Service 
Zoning District.  The Non-Center Commercial designation does not correlate with the B-
2 Zoning District.  However, the B-2 district is a commercial zone as is B-3, and the B-2 
district is less intense in terms of potential uses than the B-3 district.  Further, the 
request is an expansion of an existing B-2 zoning district.  The Rochester Road frontage 
has been planned for Non-Center Commercial since 1965. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
The B-2 Local Business Zoning District does not have Location Standards to apply to 
rezoning requests. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Statement of Applicant. 
3. Letters of opposition. 

 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 704 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-704 DUNKIN DONUTS SEC 22\CC Postponed Item Z 704 08 14 06.doc 
 
 







R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



VANDERPOOL

TORPEY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
STER

W
IN

TH
RO

P

CHARRINGTON

REZONING REQEUST
PROPOSED DUNKIN DONUTS
FROM R-1E TO B-2
E SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD., N OF BIG BEAVER
SEC. 22  (Z-704 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 10050
Feet



VANDERPOOL

TORPEY

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

R
O

C
H

E
STER

W
IN

TH
RO

P

CHARRINGTON

(H-S) Highway
Service District

(R-1E) One Family
Residential District

(B-3) General
Business
District

(B-2) Community
Business District

REZONING REQEUST
PROPOSED DUNKIN DONUTS
FROM R-1E TO B-2
E SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD., N OF BIG BEAVER
SEC. 22  (Z-704 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 10050
Feet



























 1

 
 
DATE: August 8, 2006 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Rezoning Application – Proposed Binson’s Home Health 

Care Center, Northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, Section 3 – 
R-1B to B-1 (Z 180-B) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan.  Making a 
recommendation that is contrary to the Future Land Use Plan would weaken the validity 
of the Plan and make it more difficult to defend future zoning decisions.  While the 
proposed zoning district may appear to be compatible with the retail development to the 
south, this development is also non-compliant with the Future Land Use Plan.  This 
rezoning application would result in the enlargement of an undesirable commercial spot 
zone on the Rochester Road corridor that is planned for medium density residential use.  
Furthermore, it could open the door for further commercial rezoning applications along 
the Rochester Road corridor. 
 
The Planning Commission recommended denial of the rezoning request at the June 14, 
2005 Regular Meeting.  On August 1, 2005, City Council postponed the item to the first 
Regular City Council meeting in March 2006.  On March 6, 2006, City Council 
postponed the item to the first Regular City Council meeting in August, 2006.  City 
Management recommends denial of the rezoning application.   
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
City Council initiated an amendment to the Future Land Use Plan in August, 2005.  The 
Planning Commission developed a draft amendment of the City of Troy Future Land 
Use Plan for the Rochester Road Overlay District.  The draft amendment proposes 
flexibility for future development along the Rochester Road Corridor through the 
application of an overlay zoning district.  At the May 23, 2006 Special/Study meeting, 
the Planning Commission submitted the draft amendment to City Council for approval of 
distribution of the Plan amendment for review and comment, as per the Municipal 
Planning Act.  On July 24, 2006, City Council approved distribution of the draft Plan 
amendment.  The mailing list and notice language have been prepared and will be 
distributed to neighboring communities, the County planning commission and public 

campbellld
Text Box
D-02



 2

utilities and railroads within the City the week of August 7, 2006.  These entities have 
between 65 and 95 days to review the draft Plan amendment and provide comment to 
the Planning Commission.  
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner is Fred Flaim.  The applicant is James Gerback.  
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northwest corner of Rochester and Marengo, in Section 3. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 39,000 square feet in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property is currently vacant. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1B One Family Residential District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
B-1 Local Business District. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to construct a one-story, 8,600 square foot retail development 
on the property. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Retail. 
East: Woodside Bible Church and Northwyck PUD (PUD-1). 
West: Single family residential. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1B One Family Residential. 
South: B-1 Local Business. 
East: CR-1 One Family Residential Cluster and PUD-1. 
West: R-1B One Family Residential. 



 3

ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed B-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 

PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
Local retail businesses which supply commodities on the premises, for persons 
residing in adjacent residential areas, such as but not limited to: Groceries, 
meats, dairy products, baked goods or other foods dispensed for consumption off 
the site, hardware, drugs and pharmaceuticals. 
 
Specialty shops such as, but not limited to:  Antique shops, craft shops, and 
shops for the sale of gifts and notions. 
 
Personal service establishments which perform services on the premises, such 
as, but not limited to: repair shops (watches, radio, television, shoe, etc.) beauty 
parlors and barber shops, and self-service laundries. 
 
Dry cleaning establishments, or pick-up stations, dealing directly with the 
consumer.   
 
Business establishments which perform services on the premises such as but not 
limited to: banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, loan companies, 
insurance companies, and real estate offices.  
 
Professional services including the following:  medical clinics, (out-patient only) 
and offices of doctors, dentists, osteopaths and similar or allied professions. 
 
Post office and similar governmental office buildings, serving persons living in the 
adjacent residential area.  Other uses similar to the above uses. 
  
Accessory structures and uses customarily incident  to the above permitted uses. 
 
USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
 
City and School District buildings, public utility buildings, telephone exchange 
buildings, electric transformer stations and substations, gas regulator stations, and 
water and sewage pumping stations, without storage yards. 
 
Nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers (not including dormitories). 
 
Incidental Customer Seating as an accessory to food sales establishments, 



 4

Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on both Rochester and Marengo. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will be required to provide on-site storm water detention.  
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property.   
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the Rochester Road frontage in this area as 
Medium Density Residential.  The Medium Density Residential classification correlates 
with the R-1T Zoning District in the Plan.  The application does not comply with the 
Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
The B-1 Local Business Zoning District does not have Location Standards to apply to 
rezoning requests.  
 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 180-B 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-180 B BINSONS\CC Postponed Item Z-180 B 08 14 06.doc 





JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

AD
A

M
S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
EQ

U
IN

D
R

E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

ST
E

PH
E

N
S

O
N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

I75

MAPLE

CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM R-1B TO B-1



VILLA PARK

MARENGO

DEETTA

QUILL CREEK

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

WOODSIDE

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED BINSON'S HOME HEALTH CARE CENTER
FROM R-1B TO B-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD & MARENGO
SEC. 3 (Z-180 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 100
Feet



VILLA PARK

MARENGO

DEETTA

QUILL CREEK

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

WOODSIDE

CJ-32

(PUD)

(R-1B)

(B-1) (CR-1)

(E-P)

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED BINSON'S HOME HEALTH CARE CENTER
FROM R-1B TO B-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD & MARENGO
SEC. 3 (Z-180 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 100
Feet





 1

 
 
DATE: August 7, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Rezoning Application (File No: Z 717) – Proposed 

Medical/General Office Building, Northwest Corner of Lovell and 
Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to O-1 

 
 
 
On June 19, 2006, City Council postponed this rezoning request.  The petitioner, Franco 
Mancini, requested a further postponement to August 28, 2006. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Petitioner’s letter, dated August 2, 2006. 
2. City Management report, June 19, 2006. 
3. Letters of opposition (2). 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 717 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-717 Proposed Medical Office Bldg. Sec 3\CC Postponed Z-717 08 14 06.doc  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-03









 1

 
 
DATE:  June 9, 2006 
 
TO: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Public Hearing – Rezoning Application (File No: Z 717) – 

Proposed Medical/General Office Building, Northwest Corner of Lovell and 
Rochester Road, Section 3 – R-1C to O-1 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of this application at the May 9, 
2006 Regular meeting.  City Management agrees with the Planning Commission and 
recommends approval of the rezoning application.   
 
 
JUSTIFICATION FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan nor does it meet the 
Location Standards of Section 24.40.00.   
 
However, the application is compatible with existing zoning districts and land uses.  The 
property to the north is an attached condominium development, to the south a retail use 
and a single-family residence.  Across Rochester Road to the east sits a restaurant and 
an attached condominium development.  To the west is a City-owned detention basin.  
Note that the two parcels to the south front on Rochester Road and are used for retail 
and office uses.   
 
The subject parcel is relatively isolated from other single-family homes.  There is not a 
strong relationship between the subject parcel and the existing homes on Lovell.  The 
residences on the south side of Lovell front on Hannah and have driveways on Hannah; 
their back yards abut Lovell.  The detention basin to the west serves as a significant 
buffer between the subject parcel and the houses on the north side of Lovell to the west. 
 
Additionally, the Planning Commission is considering an amendment to the Future Land 
Use Plan that would create a Rochester Road Overlay District and permit a range of 
uses to serve as a transition between Rochester Road and the abutting single-family 
residential neighborhood.  This application appears to be consistent with this direction. 
 



 2

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Franco Mancini. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the northwest corner of Lovell and Rochester Road, in 
Section 3. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 0.994 acres in area.  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is presently vacant.  
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
O-1 Office Building. 
 
Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to develop the property as a medical and general office 
building.   
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Sandalwood Condominium. 
South: Retail and single family residential. 
East: Alibi Restaurant and Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck PUD. 
West: Detention basin (City-owned). 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: R-1T One Family Attached. 
South: B-1 Local Business. 
East: B-3 General Business and PUD #1. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in Proposed O-1 Zoning District and Potential Build-out 
Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 

Office Buildings for any of the following occupations: executive, administrative; 
professional; accounting; writing; clerical stenographic; drafting; and sales. 



 3

 Medical office, including clinics. 
 

Banks, credit unions, savings and loan associations, and similar uses. Such uses 
may include drive-in facilities only as an accessory use. 

 
 Publicly owned buildings, exchanges, and public utility offices. 
 
 Other uses similar to the above uses. 
 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

Uses customarily supporting or serving the Principal Uses permitted in this District, 
such as pharmacies or drug stores, optical services, copy services, office supplies, 
book stores, art galleries, or restaurants. 

 
Data processing and computer centers, including sales support, service and 
maintenance of electronic data processing equipment.   

 
Technical training uses. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 

Mortuary establishments. 
 
 Private service clubs, fraternal organizations and lodge halls. 
 
 Private ambulance facilities. 
 

Utility sub-stations, transformer stations or gas regulator stations (without 
storage yards). 

 
Mechanical or laboratory research involving testing and evaluation of products, or 
prototype or experimental product or process development. 

 
Child care centers, nursery schools, or day nurseries (not including dormitories).  

 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Rochester Road. 
 
Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands, woodlands and floodplain 
located on the property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The parcel is classified on the Future Land Use Plan as Medium Density Residential.  
The Medium Density Residential classification correlates with the R-1T, R-2, R-M and 



 4

R-EC zoning districts.  The application therefore does not comply with the Future Land 
Use Plan.  The parcel has been planned for Medium Density Residential since 1999. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards 
Section 24.40.00 includes Location Standards to apply to rezoning requests: 
 
 24.40.00 LOCATION STANDARDS 
 
 24.40.10 Location Standards: the O-1 (Office Building) District may be applied 

when the application of such a classification is consistent with the 
intent of the Master Land Use Planning and policies related thereto, 
and therefore involves the following types of areas: 

 
 24.40.11 Areas indicated as low-rise office. 
 
 24.40.12 Portions of areas designated as community service centers or 

neighborhood service centers. 
 
 24.40.13 Areas designated for commercial or other non-residential 

development, or higher intensity office development, when one or 
more of the following determinations are made: 

 
   A. When the adjacent area and/or the total community would be 

more effectively served by the application of O-1 zoning than 
by the application of a commercial or other non-residential 
zoning District of a more intense office District. 

 
   B. When development in accordance with O-1 zoning would 

serve as a transitional element and would thus be more 
compatible with adjacent properties than would development 
under commercial or other office classifications. 

 
The application does not meet the Location Standards of Section 24.40.00. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Letter from applicant, dated April 5, 2006. 
3. Letters of opposition (2). 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File / Z 717 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-717 Proposed Medical Office Bldg. Sec 3\CC Public Hearing Z-717 06 19 06.doc 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

 R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

M
A

IN

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

SUBJECT PARCEL



HANNAH

E LOVELL

HARTWIG

ALAMEDA

SANDALWOOD

ALAMEDA

ALAMEDA

A
LA

M
E

D
A

ALAM
ED

A

E
D

G
E

W
ATE

R

ALAMEDA

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED ROCHESTER PROFESSIONAL BLDG.
FROM R-1C TO O-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD. & LOVELL
SEC. 3  (Z-717)

SUBJECT PARCEL



HANNAH

E LOVELL

HARTWIG

ALAMEDA

SANDALWOOD

ALAMEDA

ALAMEDA

A
LA

M
E

D
A

ALAM
ED

A

E
D

G
E

W
ATE

R

ALAMEDA

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

CJ-32

(PUD)
Planned Unit
Development

(P-1) Vehicular
Parking
District

(R-1D) One Family
Residential District

(R-1C) One Family
Residential District

(B-3) General
Business
District

(B-1) Local
Business
District

(R-1B) One Family
Residential District

(R-1T) One
Family Attached

Residential District

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED ROCHESTER PROFESSIONAL BLDG.
FROM R-1C TO O-1
NW CORNER OF ROCHESTER RD. & LOVELL
SEC. 3  (Z-717)

SUBJECT PARCEL











CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, July 24, 2006, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 P.M. 
 
Reverend Charlotte Sommers of Northminster Presbyterian Church gave the Invocation and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming (Arrived at 8:35 PM) 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
  
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Street Vacation Application (File Number: SV 187) – A Section of Alley Located 
North of Big Beaver between Frankton and Troy, Section 22    

 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the petitioner. There was no 
public comment. 
 
Resolution #2006-07-302 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, A request has been received for the vacation of a portion of the 18-foot-wide 
platted public alley, extending approximately 244 feet between Frankton Street (platted Ford 
Avenue) and Troy Street (platted Jene Avenue), abutting lots 26 through 37 and lots 91 and 92 
of Eysters Beaver Gardens Subdivision, Section 22 (Liber 26, page 14 of Oakland County 
Plats);  
 
WHEREAS, City Management and the Planning Commission have recommended that this 
street vacation be approved; and  
 
WHEREAS, City Management has determined there is no need to retain any easements within 
the subject alley; 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council CONCURS in the recommendations of 
City Management and the Planning Commission; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That approval of this resolution by City Council SHALL 
CONSTITUTE final action on this street vacation request; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD and RECORD said vacation 
resolution in accordance with Sections 256 and 257 of Act 288 of Michigan Public Acts of 1967, 
as amended.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Fleming  
 
C-2 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 219) – Articles II and III, 

Conditional Rezoning    
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2006-07-303 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Articles II (Planning Commission, Changes and Amendments to the Zoning 
Ordinance, and Approvals) and III (Applications and Procedures) of the City of Troy Zoning 
Ordinance be AMENDED to read as written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (ZOTA 219), dated June 26, 2006, as recommended by the Planning Commission 
and City Management. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Fleming 
 
C-3 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment  (File Number: ZOTA 215-C) – Articles XLIII 

and XLIV, Pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals    
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor closed the Public Hearing after receiving comment from the public. 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Articles XLIII (Board of Zoning Appeals) and XLIV (City Council Appeals) of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance be AMENDED to read as written in the proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215-C), dated June 26, 2006, as recommended by the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

Planning Commission and City Management and with the INSERTION of “or deny” AFTER 
“approve” in Section 43.74.00. 
 
Proposed Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Articles XLIII (Board of Zoning Appeals) and XLIV (City Council Appeals) of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance be POSTPONED until a definition for a commercial vehicle is 
established. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Postponement  
 
Resolution #2006-07-304 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution to POSTPONE Articles XLIII (Board of Zoning Appeals) and 
XLIV (City Council Appeals) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance be AMENDED by STRIKING 
“until a definition for a commercial vehicle is established” and INSERTING “until the Regular 
City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, September 18, 2006.” 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Howrylak, Lambert, Beltramini   
No: Stine, Schilling  
Absent:  Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-07-305 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Articles XLIII (Board of Zoning 
Appeals) and XLIV (City Council Appeals) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance until the Regular 
City Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, September 18, 2006. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Beltramini, Broomfield   
No: Stine, Schilling  
Absent:  Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Council Member Fleming arrived at 8:35 pm 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Traffic Committee Recommendations – April 19, 2006 
 
Proposed Resolution for No Changes to Traffic Control Devices at Ivanhoe and Sweet 
 
Pending Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That NO CHANGES be made to traffic control devices at Ivanhoe and Sweet. 
 
Proposed Substitute Amendment 
 
Pending Resolution  
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That the preceding resolution for Traffic Control Devices at Ivanhoe and Sweet be 
SUBSTITUTED with the following: 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the 
installation of YIELD sign on Ivanhoe at Sweet. 

 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Substitute Amendment  
 
Resolution #2006-07-306 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Stine 
 
RESOLVED, That the preceding substitute amendment resolution for Traffic Control Devices at 
Ivanhoe and Sweet be AMENDED by STRIKING “YIELD” and INSERTING “STOP.” 
 
Yes: Lambert, Stine, Schilling, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak    
No: Beltramini   
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Substitute Amendment as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-07-307 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That the preceding resolution for Traffic Control Devices on Ivanhoe at Sweet be 
SUBSTITUTED with the following: 
 

RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. __________ be ISSUED for the 
installation of STOP sign on Ivanhoe at Sweet. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitute Amendment 
 
Resolution #2006-07-308 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 06-01-SS be ISSUED for the installation of STOP 
sign on Ivanhoe at Sweet. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
D-2 Proposed Revisions to DDA By-Laws  
 
Resolution #2006-07-309 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That the proposed revisions to the City of Troy Downtown Development Authority 
By-Laws and Rules of Procedure are APPROVED as recommended by City Administration, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Stine, Schilling,  
No: Broomfield, Howrylak Lambert 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-07-310 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item E-16, which shall be considered after Consent Agenda (E) 
items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of July 10, 2006 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted   
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Furnish and Install 

Lights on Four (4) Harley Davidson Electric Glide Motorcycles               
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish and install light packages on the Troy Police 
Department’s four (4) Harley Davidson electric glide motorcycles and remove and return 
existing lights to the City is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, Alert Emergency Equipment 
Group of Portland, MI, for an estimated total cost of $18,647.00, at unit prices as contained on 
the bid tabulation opened June 30, 2006; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Towing Services               
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish three (3) year requirements of towing services with an 
option to renew for three (3) additional years be AWARDED to the low total bidder, Coleman’s 
Towing & Recovery of Troy, MI at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened June 12, 
2006, with the contract expiring July 31, 2009; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
E-5 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain from Troy Long Lake, L.L.C. – 

Sidwell #88-20-15-101-001   
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for watermain received from Troy Long Lake, 
L.L.C., having Sidwell #88-20-15-101-001, is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain from Diajeff Trust – Sidwell 

#88-20-23-100-092  
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for watermain received from Susan Sandelman, as 
Successor Trustee of the Diajeff Trust, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-23-100-092, is 
hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain from Boys and Girls Club of 

Troy, Inc. – Sidwell #88-20-24-100-042  
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for watermain received from Boys and Girls Club of 
Troy, Inc., owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-24-100-042, is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain from First Place Bank – 

Sidwell #88-20-09-301-017 (Split from 88-20-09-301-012)  
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for watermain received from First Place Bank, a 
federally chartered Savings Association, having Sidwell #88-20-09-301-017 (split from 88-20-
09-301-012), and previously recorded with Oakland County Register of Deeds, Liber 37605, 
Page 290, is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of said document shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

E-9 Acceptance of Permanent Easements for Watermain and Sidewalk from K/LB Big 
Beaver, L.L.C. – Sidwell #88-20-28-101-063  

 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easements for watermain and sidewalk received from K/LB 
Big Beaver, L.L.C., owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-28-101-063, are hereby 
ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Watermain from Walsh College of 

Accountancy and Business Administration – Sidwell #88-20-22-101-039  
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for watermain received from Walsh College of 
Accountancy and Business Administration, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-101-
039, is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Sidewalk from Oakland Square Limited 

Partnership – Sidwell #88-20-36-301-005  
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for sidewalk received from Oakland Square Limited 
Partnership, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-36-301-005, is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
document with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12 Addendum No. 1 – Construction Schedule Change to Ferry Drain Restoration 

Project, Contract 06-3  
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-12 
 
RESOLVED, That Addendum No. 1 to Contract No. 06-3, Ferry Drain Restoration Project, 
amending the contract completion dates to September 15, 2006 for substantial completion of 
earthwork and September 30, 2006 for completion of all plantings and restoration work is 
hereby APPROVED to D & J Lawn & Snow, Inc. 22750 Macomb Industrial Drive, Clinton Twp., 
MI 48036 at unit prices contained in the contract; and  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-13 Designation of Street Administrator  
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-13 
 
WHEREAS, Section 13(7) of Act 51, Public Acts of 1951 provided that each incorporated city 
and village to which funds are returned under the provisions of this section, that, "the 
responsibility for street improvements, maintenance, and traffic operations work, and the 
development, construction, or repair of off-street parking facilities and construction or repair of 
street lighting shall be coordinated by a single administrator to be designated by the governing 
body who shall be responsible for and shall represent the municipality in transactions with the 
State Transportation Department pursuant to this act”; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
DESIGNATES Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager, as the single Street Administrator for the City of 
Troy in all transactions with the State Transportation Department as provided in Section 13 of 
the Act. 
 
E-14 Amendment #1 Outdoor Lighting Maintenance Contract  
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-14 
 
WHEREAS, On February 23, 2004, the option to renew the contract to provide outdoor lighting 
maintenance with Allied Signs, Inc., was exercised and approved for an estimated two-year 
cost of $52,350.00, plus 25% of the annual contract total each year under the same prices, 
terms, and conditions as the original contract expiring June 30, 2006 (Resolution #2004-02-
096); and 
 
WHEREAS, The contract in total exceeded the approved amounts by an estimated $50,000.00, 
due to the inclusion of all City departments for the maintenance of all lighting systems within 
Troy, which include streetlights, parking lots and ball diamonds; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the contract is hereby AMENDED and CONFIRMED 
for additional outdoor lighting maintenance at an estimated cost of $50,000.00. 
 
E-15 Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way Sidewalk Gap 

Project – Sidwell #88-20-15-379-052, 215 E. Wattles Road  
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-15 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between William Cook, owner of the property 
having Sidwell #88-20-15-379-052, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for a 
sidewalk gap completion project is APPROVED in the amount of $10,575.00, plus closing 
costs. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 10 - 

E-17 Informal Quotation Process – Award of Painting and Wallpapering of Troy City Hall  
 
Resolution #2006-07-310-E-17 
 
WHEREAS, The City Hall hallway project commenced and quotation processes were 
conducted for different aspects of the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, It is deemed in the City’s best interest to waive a formal bid process and award a 
contract to Detroit Spectrum Painters, the low bidder resulting from informal quotation 
processes for wallpaper and painting, since conducting a sealed bid process would not result in 
additional savings;   
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a contract is hereby APPROVED to Detroit Spectrum 
Painters of Warren, Michigan, who submitted the lowest quotations for City Hall hallway 
painting and wallpapering at an estimated cost of $15,275.00; and if additional work is required 
that could not be foreseen, such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 
10% of the total project cost.    
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-16 Beech Lane Barrier and Road Closure Status  
 
Resolution #2006-07-311 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, Beech Lane has historically been closed to vehicular traffic at the Spencer drain; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, This status would reflect a long held belief by a majority of area residents since the 
1980’s and confirmed by the recent survey, that the road should remain closed to vehicular traffic 
at the drain, while allowing pedestrian traffic; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Beech Lane between Maple and Cherry shall be 
CLOSED INDEFINITELY to all vehicular traffic at the Spencer drain unless a resolution to open 
Beech Lane is adopted by City Council at some future date. 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:54 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:05 PM. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 11 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Economic 
Development Corporation (EDC) b) City Council Appointments: Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board; Historical Commission; and Liquor Advisory Committee  

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments  
 
Resolution #2006-07-312 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Economic Development Corporation (EDC) 
Appointed by Mayor (9) – 6 Year Terms 
 
Brian Murphy Unexpired Term 04/30/2011 
 
Yes: All-7  
  
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2006-07-313 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9) – 2 & 3 Year Terms 
 
Gladson M. Remos Unexpired Term 09/30/08 
 
Historical Commission  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Kevin Lindsey Term Expires 07/31/09 
 
Terry Navratil Term Expires 07/31/09 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
Kelsey Brunette Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 12 - 

Yes: All-7  
 
F-2 Proposed 2007 City Council Meetings 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings according to the following 
schedule at 7:30 pm:  
 

Monday, January 8 & 22 
Monday, February 5, 19 & 26   
Monday, March 5, 19 & 26 
Monday, April 2, 16 & 23 
Monday, May 14 & 21 
Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 
Monday, August 6 & 20 
Monday, September 10, 17 & 24 
Monday, October 1, 15 & 22 
Monday, November 12, 19 & 26 
Monday, December 3, 17 (two meetings due to end of month holidays) 

 
Liquor Violation Hearing Dates: 
 

Wednesday, February 14 7:30 pm  
Wednesday, February 21 7:30 pm   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special meetings MAY BE SCHEDULED as needed. 
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Resolution for Proposed 2007 City 
Council Meetings  by STRIKING, “Wednesday, February 14 7:30 pm” and INSERTING 
”Wednesday, February 7 7:30 pm.” 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Proposed Amendment 
 
Resolution #2006-07-314 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 13 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Resolution Proposed 2007 City 
Council Meetings be AMENDED by STRIKING, “Wednesday, February 21 7:30 pm” and 
INSERTING ”Wednesday, February 28 7:30 pm.” 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Amendment as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-07-315 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Resolution for Proposed 2007 City 
Council Meetings by STRIKING, “Wednesday, February 14 7:30 pm” and INSERTING 
”Wednesday, February 7 7:30 pm” and by STRIKING, “Wednesday, February 21 7:30 pm” and 
INSERTING ”Wednesday, February 28 7:30 pm” 
 
Yes: All-7  
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2006-07-316 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings according to the following 
schedule at 7:30 pm:  
 

Monday, January 8 & 22 
Monday, February 5, 19 & 26   
Monday, March 5, 19 & 26 
Monday, April 2, 16 & 23 
Monday, May 14 & 21 
Monday, June 4 & 18 
Monday, July 9 & 23 
Monday, August 6 & 20 
Monday, September 10, 17 & 24 
Monday, October 1, 15 & 22 
Monday, November 12, 19 & 26 
Monday, December 3, 17 (two meetings due to end of month holidays) 

 
Liquor Violation Hearing Dates: 
 

Wednesday, February 7 7:30 pm  
Wednesday, February 28 7:30 pm   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special meetings MAY BE SCHEDULED as needed. 
 
Yes: All-7  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 14 - 

F-3 City of Troy Future Land Use Plan Amendment – Rochester Road Overlay District 
 
Resolution #2006-07-317 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed the Planning Commission to consider an amendment to the 
Future Land Use Plan in the Rochester Road corridor between Square Lake Road and South 
Boulevard at the August 1, 2005 meeting;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission expanded the limits of the Rochester Road corridor to 
include that area of Rochester Road between Square Lake Road and Long Lake Road;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission developed a draft amendment to the Future Land Use 
Plan for that area of Rochester Road between South Boulevard and Long Lake Road, the 
Rochester Road overlay district;  
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission submitted the draft amendment of the City of Troy 
Future Land Use Plan to City Council for review and comment; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 125.37b of the Municipal Planning Act requires that the City Council must 
approve the distribution of a proposed plan amendment prior to the process of plan adoption; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby APPROVES distribution of the 
draft amendment of the City of Troy Future Land Use Plan, as per Section 125.37b of the 
Michigan Planning Act.   
 
Yes: All-7  
 
F-4 Fifth Amendment to Consent Judgment – K-Mart/Sheffield 
 
Removed at the request of the City Administration and to be resubmitted at the Regular City 
Council Meeting scheduled for Monday, August 14, 2006 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Rezoning Application (File Number Z 716) – Proposed City Initiated Rezoning, South of 

Big Beaver, West of Coolidge, Section 30 – R-1C to R-1E – August 14, 2006  
Noted and Filed 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 15 - 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Election Commission/Final – March 20, 2006  
b) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Draft – April 18, 2006  
c) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – May 8, 2006 
d) Historic District Commission/Final – May 16, 2006  
e) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – June 12, 2006 
f) Library Advisory Board/Draft – June 29, 2006  
g) Election Commission/Draft – July 7, 2006  
h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – July 10, 2006   
i) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – July 12, 2006 

Noted and Filed 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – Auction Services – June 2006  
b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of June, 2006  
c) Building Department – Permits Issued January through June, 2006  
d) Building Department – Permits Issued July, 2005 through June, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Lt. Dave Drossos, Huron County Sheriff’s 

Office, Thanking Sgt. Bjork and the Troy Police Department for the Outstanding Firearms 
Training Program   

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Carole Abernathy, Commending Officer Minton 
for His Assistance 

c) Letter of Appreciation to the Police Department from the Family of Hort S. Centers, 
Thanking Officers Minton and Shuler for their Kindness and Professionalism  

d) Letter to John Lamerato from Planning Commission Member Robert Schultz, in 
Appreciation of the Leadership and Guidance as Acting City Manager  

e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Patrick M. Reinke Regarding his Internship 
Experience with the Troy Police Department     

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Resolution Adopted by the City of Farmington Hills Opposing PA 110 of Public Acts of 

2006 Regarding the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (MZEA) 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 16 - 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
Notice of Hearing for the Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-
14907 

Noted and Field 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested  
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:02 P.M. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  July 24, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, July 24, 2006, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 6:04 P.M. 
 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini (Absent) 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming (Absent) 
Martin F. Howrylak (Absent)  
David A. Lambert (Absent) 
Jeanne M. Stine 
 
Mayor Schilling adjourned the meeting due to a quorum of City Council not present. 

1. Big Beaver Corridor Study – Presentation by Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc. 
  
Mayor Schilling announced that the Big Beaver Corridor Study would be presented in an open 
public forum. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 6:05 P.M. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

  
 

 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



 PROCLAMATION  
 INTERNATIONAL DAY OF PEACE 

 SEPTEMBER 21, 2006 
 
WHEREAS, The issue of peace embraces the deepest hopes of all peoples and remains 
humanity’s guiding inspiration; and 
 
WHEREAS, In 1981 the United Nations proclaimed the International Day of Peace be 
“devoted to commemorating and strengthening the ideals of peace both within and among all 
nations and peoples”; and  
 
WHEREAS, The United Nations expanded the observance of the International Day of Peace 
in 2001 to include the call for a day of global ceasefire and non-violence, and invited all 
nations and people to honor a cessation of hostilities for the duration of the Day; and 
 
WHEREAS, There is growing support within our City for the observance of the International 
Day of Peace, which affirms a vision of our world at peace, and fosters cooperation between 
individuals, organizations and nations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Global crises impel all citizens to work toward converting humanity’s noblest 
aspirations for world peace into a practical reality for future generations, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby 
proclaim September 21, 2006 as International Day of Peace in the City of Troy and urges all citizens 
to join us in recognizing this day.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council urges all government agencies, 
organizations, schools, places of worship and individuals in our city to commemorate, in an 
appropriate manner, the International Day of Peace. This may include community service 
projects, cultural exhibits and performances, a moment of silence, ringing of bells, sharing the 
universal wish ‘May Peace Prevail On Earth’ at noon, vigils, religious services in our places of 
worship, and other education and public awareness activities in order to help establish a 
global day of peace in our homes, our communities and between nations. 
 
Signed the 14th day of August 2006. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



 
 
 
August 4, 2006 
 
 
 
To:   Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

Charles Craft, Chief of Police 
 

Subject:   Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 5:  Approval to Expend 
Budgeted Funds – Troy Community Coalition 

 
 
APPROVAL TO EXPEND FUNDS 
 
The Police Department requests approval to continue to provide funding to the TROY 
COMMUNITY COALITION in the amount of $100, 000.00 for the 2006/2007 fiscal year. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Troy Community Coalition will provide community services to prevent drug and 
alcohol abuse. 
 
Funding requirements were previously approved by the City Council resolution #2004-
09-454, resolution #2003-09-474, resolution #2002-07-427, resolution #2011-09-449, 
resolution #2000-387-E-4 and resolution #2005-09-416-E-4f. 
 
BUDGET 
 
The Police Department’s Police Administration Contractual Services – Troy Community 
Coalition, account #305.7802.109 has been designated for the funding of this program. 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality:  _____________________________     _________ 
            Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Terry Colussi, Office Coordinator 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TROY AND 
 TROY COMMUNITY COALITION 

 
 

 This Agreement, by and between the City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, Michigan 48084 (hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”), and the Troy Community 
Coalition, 4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan 48098, a Michigan non-profit organization, 
(hereinafter referred to as “TCC”),  
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide for a problem-solving service for 
individuals in an effort to prevent drug and alcohol abuse through individual, group, and 
family counseling to enable those served to cope with problems adversely affecting the 
ability of the individual to make optimal use of their world, i.e. social adjustment, work 
adjustment; and to provide free, on-site and off-site service for individuals, especially 
those who cannot afford private services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY desires to provide individuals with an opportunity to 
participate in the TCC program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the general purpose of the TCC is to provide opportunities for 
mental, social and physical growth and development of individuals to prevent drug and 
alcohol abuse and to cope with their environment; and 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above in meeting the needs of 
residents of the CITY, and in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants 
hereinafter contained, the parties agree as follows: 
 
TCC RESPONSIBILITIES.   
 

1.  General Project Summary.  A general description of the community services to 
be provided by TCC is as follows: 

 
 A.  A mental health worker, a licensed social worker, psychologist, or 
counselor, on staff at TCC shall be available to the individuals of the community 
who are having difficulty in their personal and social adjustments.  This person 
will work with individuals, youths, parents, schools and other community 
organizations, consistent with their professional training and licensing, in helping 
the youth grow towards a more satisfactory adjustment.  The worker will act as a 
liaison for the individual, agencies, and family. 

 
B.  TCC shall also offer programs to individuals which are designed to 

further the social and emotional needs of the individuals and to prevent drug and 
alcohol abuse. 

 

 1



  C.  TCC will continue to provide service at the current level or greater. 
 

2.  Program Description. A detailed description of each program offered will be 
provided to the CITY, will be maintained on file at TCC, and will be available for  
inspection by the CITY on request. 

 
3.  Location of Facility.  TCC shall provide an office or treatment facility within 
the CITY.  Currently, that facility is located at 4420 Livernois, Troy, Michigan 
48098.  The CITY shall be notified immediately of any relocation or planned 
relocation of the facility. 

 
4.  Service Documentation.  TCC shall provide a quarterly report which may be in 
the form of minutes from monthly TCC Board of Directors meetings to the CITY 
in October, January, April and July, including but not limited to the following 
information: 

 
A.  Data regarding TCC’s operation, including but not limited to, the 
number of persons serviced by TCC programs, attendance records for 
counseling and programs, duration of programs, etc. 

 
  B.  Types of cases treated and referral source(s). 
 
  C.  All community and special projects undertaken by TCC. 
 
  D.  Other information that the CITY may deem necessary without 
                         jeopardizing the confidentiality of the TCC clientele. 
 

5.  Fiscal Requirements.  TCC shall maintain an accounting system to identify and 
support all expenditures, i.e., all income and expenses for which services are 
provided under this Agreement.  The accounting system, at a minimum, shall 
consist of a chart of accounts, cash receipts journal, cash disbursements journal, 
and general ledger.  All expenditures and income must be supported by vouchers 
and receipts that detail the reason for the transaction. 

 
TCC shall submit to the CITY a copy of its annual budget for any fiscal year 
which falls within the twelve-month period covered by this Agreement.  These 
budgets shall show the TCC budget, total expenditures, and expenditures funded 
and claimed to other funding sources. 

 
TCC shall provide to the CITY a quarterly financial statement which may be in 
the form of Monthly Treasurer Reports as submitted to the TCC Board of 
Directors in October, January, April and July, including total income and 
expenditures for the previous three (3) months. 

 
TCC agrees to retain at its costs all books, records or other documents relevant to 
this Agreement for six years after final payment.   

 2



 
6.  Review of Programs by the City.  Upon request, TCC will review with the 
CITY staff the programs funded by this Agreement to determine if there are 
appropriate counseling activities or educational guidance and which may be 
utilized by the individual.   

 
7.  Confidentiality.   The use or disclosure of information concerning applicants 
for services or recipients of services, obtained in connection with the performance 
of the Agreement, shall be restricted to purposes directly connected with the 
administration of the programs implemented by this Agreement and must be 
consistent with all statutory requirements. 

 
8.  Subcontracts.  TCC shall not assign this Agreement or enter into any 
subcontracts for services under this Agreement without obtaining prior written 
approval of the CITY. 

 
9.  Indemnify and Hold Harmless.  TCC shall indemnify, save and hold harmless 
the CITY, its employees, officers, and agents, and affiliated entities from any 
losses, damages, judgments, claims, expenses, costs, and liabilities, including 
attorney fees, interest and legal expenses, which may arise from or be caused 
directly or indirectly by any act or omission of TCC or its officers, directors, 
employees, agents or volunteers. 
 
10. Insurance.  TCC shall present to the CITY documentation that is satisfactory 
to the CITY that indicates that TCC is covered under a policy of insurance or self-
insurance. 

 
TROY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 The CITY hereby agrees to pay to TCC an amount not to exceed $100,000.00 for  
services performed under this Agreement. Full payment shall be made by September 30, 
2006.  
 
 Obligations incurred by TCC prior to or after the period covered by this 
Agreement shall be excluded. 
 
MUTUAL COVENANTS 
 

1. Cancellation of Agreement.   If the CITY determines that TCC fails to comply 
with the conditions of this Agreement, or to fulfill its responsibility as indicated in 
the Agreement, or the CITY determines that the methods and techniques being 
utilized in accomplishing the goals of this Agreement are not acceptable or 
compatible with the CITY’s policy, then the CITY reserves the right to cancel this 
Agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice to TCC.  If  TCC becomes 
defunct, TCC will reimburse the CITY for all pre-payments based on the date of 
termination. 

 3



 
2.  Employees of  TCC.  Representatives, employees and volunteers of TCC shall 
not be deemed to be employees or agents of the CITY  for any purposes solely 
because of their participation with TCC. 

 
3.  Independent Contractors.  TCC is an independent contractor, and its agents, 
employees, or servants are responsible for its own conduct.  This Agreement is 
not a joint venture for the profit of either party. 

 
4.  Compliance with Laws.  TCC shall be responsible for compliance with all 
Federal, State and City laws or ordinances.  Any violation of the law or ordinance 
results in material breach of the Agreement. 

 
5.  Terms of Agreement.  This Agreement shall become effective as of September 
1, 2006 and shall terminate on August 31, 2007 unless terminated under the 
provisions set forth in this Agreement. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and TCC have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their respective authorized officers. 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF TROY 
 
 
____________________________   ____________________________ 

Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 

____________________________                           ______________________________ 
       Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      TROY COMMUNITY COALITION 
 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
       Ann M. Comiskey,  
       Executive Director 

 4



 
July 31, 2006 

 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Winter Maintenance Agreement, Road Commission 
for Oakland County 
 
Attached is the proposed 2006 / 2007 Winter Maintenance Agreement between 
the Road Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy. We are in 
agreement with the measured lane mile figures as has been presented, and with 
the level of compensation for each road configuration.   
 
In 2001 the City of Troy began to service all county roads in Troy for snow and 
ice control.  The amount of compensation to the City has increased by 
approximately two percent (2%) over last season’s contract.  This does not cover 
our cost, but a higher level of service is provided, and the RCOC is in 
concurrence. 
 
It continues to be evident that this agreement is beneficial to the RCOC and the 
City of Troy.  The City has been able to administer Snow & Ice Control in a timely 
and uniform manner on these our highest priority roads (Major City and County) 
roads in the City of Troy.  It allows the County to concentrate on it’s highest 
priority road (I-75 and M-59) responsibilities during the storm events.  
 
We recommend that the proposed maintenance agreement be approved as 
printed. 
 
Cc: Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 (Original Contract and copy) 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality: ________________________ __________ 
        Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney    Date 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



WINTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 

Under 1951 PA 51, As Amended 
 
 
 This Agreement made this ___________day of _____________________, 2006, between the Board 
of County Road Commissioners of the County of Oakland, State of Michigan, a Public Body Corporate, 
hereinafter referred to as the “BOARD”, and the City of Troy, Oakland County Michigan, a Municipal 
Corporation hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”, witnesseth as follows to-wit: 
 
 Certain county primary and local roads more specifically set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto, are 
under the jurisdiction and control of the Board and are located within or adjacent to the City. 
  
 The City hereby agrees to be responsible for the winter maintenance of said roads under the terms of 
this Agreement and the Board agrees to participate in the cost thereof as provided in Section III of this 
Agreement. 
 
 The “Winter Maintenance” included in the terms of this Agreement shall be such as is defined in 
Section I of this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual convenants set forth herein as provided, it is 
hereby agreed as follows: 
 
 

I 
 

Winter Maintenance, as herein required to be performed by City, shall include the following 
minimum requirements: 
 
 SNOW AND ICE CONTROL:  Snow removal by blading, plowing and other methods necessary to 
make the roads reasonably safe for public travel.  Ice Control by salting, sanding, scraping and other methods 
necessary to make the roads reasonably safe for public travel. 
 
 

II 
 
 City agrees to hold harmless, represent, defend and indemnify the Board, its officials and employees 
from any and all suits arising out of the performance or non-performance of the activities, which are the 
subject matter of this Agreement only, specifically those activities set out in Section I. However, this hold 
harmless provision does not apply if any claim or suit is alleged to be or demonstrated to be the result of a 
defect in highway design or condition not related to the maintenance activities set out in Section I. Further, 
since the Board has the statutory responsibility for maintenance of the roads under this Agreement, its is the 
intent of the parties that the delegation by Agreement of those maintenance responsibilities to the City 
provide immunity to the City as an agent of the County. Therefore, the City falls within the governmental 
immunity protection of the County.  
 

Only during that part of the year that the City is providing snow removal or ice control under Section 
I, the City agrees to notify the Board within 30 days, should it become aware of defects or maintenance 
requirements in the roads set forth in Exhibit A, if said defects or maintenance requirements are not Winter 
Maintenance subject to this Agreement.  

 
  
  



III 
 
 In consideration of the assumption of Winter Maintenance by the City, the Board agrees to pay to the 
City the sum of  

$3,126.47 per mile, for roads having two lanes of through traffic 
$4,435.93 per mile, for roads having three lanes of through traffic 
$5,471.33 per mile, for roads having four or five lanes of through traffic 
$6,748.32 per mile, for roads having six or more lanes of through traffic, 

in accordance with the mileage set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof.  Such amounts 
are to be used by the City for Winter Maintenance.  Payments are to be made by the Board to the City as 
follows: 

 
35% in December 2006 

65% in March 2007 
 
 The making of said payments shall constitute the Board’s entire obligation in reference to Winter 
Maintenance. 
 

IV 
 
 The usual maintenance guidelines and standard practices utilized by the Board, including but not 
limited to, the Board adopted Winter Maintenance Guidelines, shall control.  Should any dispute arise as to 
the character or extent of Winter Maintenance or to City’s performance hereunder, the controversy may be 
referred to an arbitration board consisting of the Road Commission for Oakland County Director of Highway 
Maintenance, the Public Works Director and a third person to be chosen by them for settlement thereof. 
 

V 
 
 The City shall acquire and maintain, during the term of the Agreement, statutory Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance, automobile and comprehensive general liability insurance coverage as described in 
Exhibit C attached hereto covering the Board’s liability for any and all claims arising out of the City’s 
performance or non-performance of the activities which are the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 Certificates of insurance for each policy providing for 30 days notice of cancellation, termination or 
material change shall be provided to the Board, and are attached as Exhibit D. 
 

VI 
 
  

The City further agrees to comply with all relevant laws and regulations of the State of Michigan for 
safeguarding the air and waters of the State.  In particular, City facilities and operations must meet the 
provisions of Part 5 (Spillage of Oil and Polluting Materials) rules promulgated pursuant to Part 31, Water 
Resources Protection, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as 
amended.  (Rules R324.2001 through R324.2009 address release prevention planning, secondary 
containment, surveillance, and release reporting requirements). 

 
VII 

 
In accordance with 1976 PA 453, as amended, and 1976 PA 220, as amended, the City covenants not 

to discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, 
conditions, or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of 
race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, marital status or because of a handicap that is 



unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the duties of the particular job or position and to require a 
similar covenant on the part of any subcontractor employed in the performance of the Agreement. 

 
VIII 

 
 It is the intention of the parties hereto that this Agreement is not made for the benefit of any third 
party. 
 
 It is anticipated that subsequent agreements regarding Winter Maintenance activities will be executed 
annually by the Parties hereto. 
 
 The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall become effective on October 1, 2006, and shall 
continue in full force and effect until a subsequent Winter Maintenance agreement has been executed by the 
parties hereto or until this agreement is terminated, as set forth below. 
 
 In the event that a subsequent Winter Maintenance agreement has not been executed by the parties 
hereto on or before September 1, 2007, either party may terminate this Agreement by providing the other 
party hereto with written notice of intent to terminate, at least thirty days prior to the date of termination. 
 
 This Agreement is executed by the Board at its meeting of _________________________________, 
and by the City by authority of a resolution of its governing body, adopted ___________________________, 
(copy attached as Exhibit B). 
 
 
Witnesses:      CITY OF TROY 
       A Municipal Corporation 
 
 
________________________________________ By:________________________________________ 
 
 
       Its:________________________________________ 
 
 
________________________________________ By:________________________________________ 
 
 
       Its:________________________________________ 
 
 
Witnesses:      BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 
       OF THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND, 
       A Public Body Corporate 
 
 
________________________________________ By:_________________________________________ 
 
       Its:_________________________________________ 
 
 
________________________________________ By:_________________________________________ 
 
       Its:_________________________________________ 



 
WINTER MAINTENANCE 

2006-2007 
CITY OF TROY 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 
Long Lake Road 
Extending from Adams to Dequindre 

1.54 miles at $3,126.47 per mile     $   4,814.76 
0.16 miles at $4,435.93 per mile     $      709.75         
3.47 miles at $5,471.33 per mile     $ 18,985.52  
0.86 miles at $6,748.32 per mile     $   5,803.55   
TOTAL        $ 31,489.01 

 
 
John R Road 
Extending from Fourteen Mile Road to South Boulevard 

1.15 miles at $3,126.47 per mile     $   3,595.44     
0.32 miles at $4,435.93 per mile     $   1,419.50 
4.37 miles at $5,471.33 per mile     $ 23,909.71  
0.38 miles at $6,748.32 per mile     $   2,564.36  
TOTAL        $ 30,871.59 

 
 
Big Beaver 
Extending from Adams to Dequindre 

3.40 miles at $5,435.93 per mile     $  18,602.52  
2.61 miles at $6,748.32 per mile     $  17,613.12 
TOTAL        $  36,215.64 

 
 
Crooks Road 
Extending from Maple Road to South Boulevard 

0.38 miles at $3,126.47 per mile     $    1,188.06  
0.26 miles at $4,435.93 per mile     $    1,153.34 
3.08 miles at $5,471.33 per mile     $  16,851.70  
1.40 miles at $6,748.32 per mile     $    9,447.65 
TOTAL        $  28,640.75 

 
 
Livernois Road 
Extending from Maple Road to South Boulevard 

1.31 miles at $3,126.47 per mile     $   4,095.68 
0.34 miles at $4,435.93 per mile     $   1,508.22 
3.05 miles at $5,471.33 per mile     $ 16,687.56  
0.43 miles at $6,748.32  per mile     $   2,901.78 

 TOTAL        $ 25,193.24  
 

 
 
 



 
WINTER MAINTENANCE 

2006-2006 
CITY OF TROY 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Maple Road 
Extending from Dequindre to Coolidge 
 5.01 Miles at $5,471.33 per mile     $  27,411.36 
 
 
South Boulevard 
Extending from Dequindre to Adams 
 5.96 Miles at $3,126.47 per mile     $  18,633.76 
 
Dequindre Road 
Extending from Fourteen Mile to South Boulevard 
 2.16 Miles at $3,126.47 per mile     $    6,753.17 
 3.98 Miles at $5,471.33 per mile     $  21,775.89 
 TOTAL        $  28,529.06 
 
 
Adams Road 
Extending from South Troy City Limits to South Boulevard 
 4.34 Miles at $ 3,126.47 per mile     $  13,568.88 
 
 
 

TOTAL        $239,995.28 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
EXHIBIT A 
(Continued) 
 
TWO LANES 
($3,126.47 per mile) 

    1.54 miles      $   4,814.76    
    1.15 miles      $   3,595.44 
    0.38 miles      $   1,188.06  
    1.31 miles      $   4,095.68 
    5.96 miles      $ 18,633.76 
    2.16 miles      $   6,753.18   
    4.34 miles      $ 13,568.88 

16.84 miles      $ 52,649.76  
 
 
THREE LANES 
($4,435.93 per mile) 

  0.16 miles      $     709.75     
  0.32 miles      $  1,419.50 
  0.26 miles      $  1,153.34  
  0.34 miles      $  1,508.22 
  1.08 miles      $  4,790.81   

 
 
FOUR OR FIVE LANES 
($5,471.33 per mile) 

 3.47 miles      $  18,985.52 
  4.37 miles      $  23,909.71 

 3.40 miles      $  18,602.52 
 3.08 miles      $  16,851.70 

   3.05 miles      $  16,687.55 
 5.01 miles      $  27,411.36 
 3.98 miles      $  21,775.89 
26.36 miles      $144,224.25 

 
 
SIX OR MORE LANES 
($6,748.32 per mile) 
   0.86 miles      $    5,803.55 
   0.38 miles      $    2,564.36 
   2.61 miles      $  17,613.12 
   1.40 miles      $    9,447.65 
   0.43 miles      $    2,901.78 
   5.68 miles      $  38,330.46 
 
. 
TOTAL   49.96 miles      $239,995.28 
 
 

35% in December, 2005  $  82,998.35 
65% in March, 2006   $155,996.93 

       $239,995.28 











campbellld
Text Box
E-06











campbellld
Text Box
E-07







campbellld
Text Box
E-08















campbellld
Text Box
E-09









campbellld
Text Box
E-10









campbellld
Text Box
E-11











August 4, 2006 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:          John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager / Finance 
              Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager / Services 

Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 Jeanette Bennett, Director of Purchasing 

  Steven A. Pallotta, Director of Building Operations 
 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Relocation and Renovation of the Engineering Field          

Office 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
City Management requests approval and authorization to expend an estimated   
$27,060.80 to relocate, remodel and renovate the Engineering Field Office 
located at 3645 Crooks Road. The Engineering Field Office at its new location 
will require improvements such as phones, data lines, carpet cleaning, painting, 
new locks, exterior metal rear door with hardware, high efficiency furnace, air 
conditioning, electrical and lighting enhancements. This project is in conjunction 
with the sale of the Rochester Road location. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DETAILS 
The Engineering Field Office, currently located at 3236 Rochester Road occupies 
approximately 2,357 square feet of working space. With the sale of the current 
3236 Rochester Road property and the new purchase of the house located at 
3645 Crooks Road the total square feet will increase to approximately 3,500 
square feet. The new building location has had many new improvements such as 
new windows and vinyl siding. The recommendation to expend approximately 
$27,060.80 will provide the Engineering Field Office with efficient workspace, 
plan storage a conference room, and updated furnishings (Detailed Cost 
Estimates – Appendix A). 
 
Highlights of the plan include the following: 
 

• Physical renovation of the space will update the area, and follow current 
standards for City of Troy building space (i.e. lighting, electrical, furnace, 
air conditioning, and hot water tank) including new rear entrance door and 
painting. 

       
• All work except phones, data lines and roof repairs will be performed by 

the Building Operations Department. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-12



      
August 4, 2006 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Relocation and Renovation Engineering Field Office 
 
 

 
  

 
BUDGET 
The expenditure will require a Capital Budget amendment. The costs will have an 
offsetting revenue from the sale of the remnant parcel adjacent to the Rochester 
Road property. The party purchasing the Rochester property has expressed 
interest in acquiring this lot. 
 



Field Engineering Office Relocation and Renovation  ( Square Footage 3500 )
Renovation Cost ( Appendix A )

Price

Ceiling Tile $600.00

Doors ( Replace rear door with metal door and hardware ) $2,500.00

HVAC ( Furnace, air conditioning and air filter ) $4,300.00

Hot Water Tank $700.00

Lighting includes additional lights, exit signs and emergency lighting $1,000.00

Paint ( 2 ) coats with primer $900.00

Communication Phones and data lines ( Pricing provided from IT department ) $4,800.00

Roof repairs $3,940.00

Rekey entire facility to match City of Troy key system ( Building Operations ) $500.00

Labor cost estimated  80 hrs X 4 men X $24.44 per hr $7,820.80

Total Cost $27,060.80



  August 3, 2006 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
  
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Admin. 

Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director 
Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Amendment #1 – Troy Daze Amusement Rides Contract  
 
City staff would like to recommend a change to the existing Arnold Amusement Ride 
Resolution for the upcoming 2006 Troy Daze Festival.  Arnold Amusements has 
requested this change due to the new festival schedule approved by City Council for 
2006.  Their proposed changes are: 
 

Change the ride wristband prices from $18 to $20 and change the times 
wristbands are available on Sunday from 12 – 5 pm.  Sunday’s time had 
been 5 – 8 pm.  Families will be able to enjoy the one-price wristbands for 
a longer time period with the proposed change. Saturday’s time will 
remain the same from 11 am – 5 pm. 
 
Change the Thursday Special from 10 rides for $10 to 1 less ticket per 
ride. 
 
Eliminate the free Senior Sensation rides on Friday morning.  Very few 
Senior Citizens have taken advantage of this offer and it does cost 
Arnold’s since they have to have their workers up earlier to man the rides. 

 
The Police Department will also schedule a meeting on Thursday morning with 
members of the Troy Daze Festival Committee and representatives from Arnold 
Amusements to discuss closing logistics for Friday and Saturday evenings with the time 
changes. 
 
The Festival Committee has reviewed the requested changes and endorses them.  
Obviously, with the shortened hours, Arnolds is trying to make up lost revenue. 
 
An additional request of the Troy Daze Festival Committee is for the Troy Police Honor 
Guard to have a dunk tank at Troy Daze as a fundraiser for the Honor Guard.  Festival- 
goers will have the opportunity to dunk Police Officers as well as purchase the annual 
spaghetti dinner tickets.  The Troy Daze Committee will honor this booth request if City 
Council has no objections. 
  
 
 
CS 

campbellld
Text Box
E-13



campbellld
Text Box
E-14









 
 
July 17, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services  
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Sole Source - Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the 
Troy Family Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center 

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
City management requests approval for the continued purchase of supplies from the 
American Red Cross, the sole provider of American Red Cross lifeguard and CPR 
training supplies for Parks and Recreation programs and classes for the Troy Family 
Aquatic Center and Troy Community Center for an estimated total cost of $25,000.00.  
 
BACKGROUND 
American Red Cross acts as a resource for all training supplies needed for staff and 
classes to the outside public. We do not require any actual service from the Red 
Cross as our staff run the classes and programs for our facilities. 
 
The American Red Cross is the only agency that offers American Red Cross training 
supplies such as books, certifications, and training packets. These supplies will be 
used for training of Community Center, Troy Family Aquatic Center, and Parks and 
Recreation staff as well as American Red Cross programs offered to the public.  
 
BUDGET 
Funds to provide these services will be available in the following accounts 
#787.7740.010, #755.7740.010, #753.7740.130, and #754.7740.130. 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Ann Blizzard, Recreation Supervisor - Aquatics 
         
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-15



campbellld
Text Box
F-02







July 18, 2006 
 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 

 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Bid Waiver – 
  Purchase of Eight Ellipticals for Troy Community Center 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On October 18, 2004, Troy City Council approved a contract to purchase and install ten 
Precor ellipticals from All-Pro Exercise, Inc. of Farmington Hills, MI, the only authorized 
Precor dealer in Michigan (Resolution 2004-10-555).  All-Pro Exercise has agreed to 
provide eight (8) additional ellipticals at an average price of $3,872.00 each with three-
year maintenance agreements at $175.00 each, which is less than the originally quoted 
prices of $3,895.00 and $335.00 respectively, less eight (8) trade-ins at $800.00 each 
for an estimated net total cost of $26,965.00, including delivery and set-up.  City 
management recommends the purchase of the additional fitness equipment from All-Pro 
Exercise, Inc., the only authorized Precor dealer in Michigan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In March 2002, the Community Center opened the fitness room that included these 
original eight (8) elliptical trainers.  During the last year of use, however, the ellipticals 
have experience more downtime due to repairs associated with overuse.  They are 
currently over four years old and exceed the three-year standard life cycle for these 
machines.  
 
All-Pro Exercise, Inc. has provided excellent service with a 24-hour response time.  The 
Precor ellipticals are recommended because of their popularity, ease of use and 
patented design with an elevated ramp system that allows specific muscle groups to be 
targeted.   
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are available in the Community Center Capital Account for Annex Equipment, 
Account #401755.7978.045. 
 
Prepared by:  Kraig Schmottlach, Community Center Facility Manager 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03





campbellld
Text Box
F-04



























































 1

DATE: July 20, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – City of Troy Master Plan 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the June 27, 2006 Special/Study meeting, the Planning Commission passed a 
resolution recommending that the City utilize the services of Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. to assist the City in preparation of the City of Troy Master Plan, as per 
the Proposal to Provide Professional Services, Master Plan Preparation, Revised June, 
2006.  The cost for the project is not to exceed $99,780. 
 
City Management agrees with the Planning Commission and recommends utilizing the 
services of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. to assist in the preparation of the City of 
Troy Master Plan. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Municipal Planning Act requires that at least 5 years after the adoption of a plan, a 
municipality shall review the plan and determine whether to commence the procedure or 
adopt a new plan.  Since the Future Land Use Plan was last amended in 2002, this 
determination must be made prior to January 8, 2007.   
 
On May 24, 2005, the Planning Commission made a finding that the Future Land Use Plan 
is deficient and in need of a comprehensive update.  Furthermore, they recommended 
that the City begin the process of preparing the City of Troy Master Plan, including sub 
area plans for Big Beaver Road, Maple Road, Stephenson Highway and Rochester 
Road, and that the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study be incorporated as a part of this 
process. 
 
 
JUSTIFICATION FOR A NEW MASTER PLAN 
 
The Future Land Use Plan is insufficient for the following reasons: 
 

• The City of Troy Land Use Plan was adopted in 1965, and amended and 
reformatted in 1971.  Since 1971, the Plan has been amended approximately 23 
times.  There has not been a comprehensive update of the Plan since 1965.   

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



 2

• United States Census data indicates that the population of Troy has increased 
from 19,402 in 1960 to 80,959 in 2000. 

 
• The total acreage of property devoted to commercial and retail uses was 

determined in part by a study authored by Robert D. Swartz in September, 1991, 
entitled Retail/Commercial Prospects and Related Business Acreage Needs.  This 
study is now almost 14 years old.  The commercial needs of the City should be re-
examined.   

 
• The Future Land Use Plan lacks detailed sub area plans for important corridors 

including Big Beaver Road, Maple Road, Stephenson Highway and Rochester 
Road. 

 
• Vacancy rates for industrial property have increased significantly since the Future 

Land Use Plan was adopted.  The total area planned for Light Industrial/Research 
uses should be re-examined.  In addition, appropriate reuse and redevelopment 
alternatives for existing industrial areas and buildings should be considered. 

 
• The City experienced a dramatic increase in property values from 1955 to 2005, 

which demonstrates that the community has changed dramatically: 
 

Year Market Value Assessed 
Value 

$ Change 
(Assessed)

% Change 

2005 13,052,148,660 6,526,074,330 1,307,477,030 25.05 
2000 10,437,194,600 5,218,597,300 1,755,423,390 50.69 
1995 6,926,347,820 3,463,173,910 531,322,950 18.12 
1990 5,863,701,920 2,931,850,960 1,375,156,140 88.34 
1985 3,113,389,640 1,556,694,820 432,585,300 38.48 
1980 2,248,219,040 1,124,109,520 520,302,375 86.17 
1975 1,207,614,290 603,807,145 299,936,430 98.71 
1970 607,741,430 303,870,715 219,411,921 259.79 
1965 168,917,588 84,458,794 26,097,707 44.72 
1960 116,722,174 58,361,087 21,361,987 57.74 
1955 73,998,200 36,999,100   

 
• The Future Land Use Plan is based upon the Euclidean model, which segregates 

land uses.  An important trend in modern planning is the mixed-use concept, which 
recognizes the value of providing a mix of different uses on one site or in one area.  
The current Plan does not address the mixed-use concept.  

 
• The Future Land Use Plan is silent on the concept of Planned Unit Developments 

(PUD’s), one of the tools used to develop mixed-use projects.  This includes 
appropriate locations and approval standards for this important development tool.   



 3

• Transition areas soften the edges between different types of land uses.  Transition 
areas include not only buffering tools such as landscaping and walls, but actual 
land uses.  The type and intensity of transition areas varies based on the abutting 
uses and specific geographic locations.  This concept is not addressed in the Plan. 

 
• The Future Land Use Plan indicates a Planned Auto Center in Section 29.  

Justification for this designation is not provided in the text of the document.  This 
justification could determine the benefits and any obstacles for a separate Auto 
Dealership Zoning District, and include specific design considerations for this 
district. 

 
• The extension of existing stub streets from existing single-family residential 

neighborhoods into proposed abutting single-family developments is an issue for 
most new residential projects.  The City’s policy of requiring interconnection should 
be justified in a Plan.  

 
It is the recommendation of City Management that a comprehensive update of the Future 
Land Use Plan is required to address these deficiencies. 
 
 
JUSTIFICATION FOR UTILIZING THE SERVICES OF CARLISLE/WORTMAN 
ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
The City of Troy has an existing planning services contract with Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc. (CWA).  Richard Carlisle is the CWA representative to the City of Troy 
and will be Project Manager for the Master Plan.  Mr. Carlisle is a known planning expert 
in the State of Michigan and has worked closely with City Management and the Planning 
Commission on a number of projects over the last five years.  City Management 
recommends utilizing the services of CWA for the following reasons: 

 
• CWA has an established relationship with the Planning Department, City 

Management, the Planning Commission and City Council.  This reduces the 
familiarity learning curve and will translate into a smoother process and higher 
quality final product.   

 
• The existing planning services contract with CWA allows the process to begin as 

soon as the proposal is approved.  This will save at least six to ten months that it 
would take to select a firm using a qualification-based selection process.   

 
• The work plan was revised to transfer some of the mapping and data collection 

workload to the Planning Department.  This coordination will reduce both time and 
cost as well as improve the final product. 



 4

• CWA has its main office in Ann Arbor and a branch office in Clarkston.  Over the 
last five years, this proximity has resulted in personalized service and the ability to 
meet with little advance notice.   

 
• The Planning Department researched billing rates of planning firms in the Metro 

Detroit region.  CWA’s billing rates were the lowest of all firms that were 
considered.  This translates into reduced cost. 

 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Proposal for Master Plan Preparation, Revised June, 2006. 
2. Minutes from May 24, 2005 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting. 
3. Minutes from June 27, 2006 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
Prepared by MFM/RBS 
 
 
cc: Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 File 
 
 
G:\Comprehensive Plan\CC Memo 08 14 06.doc 
 
 



 

Page 1 

Master Plan Preparation 
 
City of Troy, Michigan 
 
Revised June, 2006 

Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
Ann Arbor Office   Clarkston Office 
605 S. Main Street, Suite 1   6401 Citation Drive, Suite E 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104   Clarkston, MI  48346 
(734) 662-2200    (248) 625-8480 
(734) 662-1935 - Fax   (248) 625-8455 - Fax 

Proposal to Provide Professional Services 



 

Page 2 

Company Background and  
Planning Philosophy    page 3 
  
 
Approach to the Project    page 6 
 
 
Work Program     page 10 
 
 
Project Team and  
Associated Experience    page 18 
 
 

 

Organization 



 

Page 3 

COMPANY BACKGROUND 
AND PLANNING PHILOSOPHY 



 

Page 4 

Company Background/Planning Philosophy 

Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  
provides consulting services in      
community planning and landscape 
architecture.  Based in Ann Arbor and 
Clarkston, our work extends to local 
government and private non-profit 
organizations throughout  Michigan. 

Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) was established in Ann Arbor in 1988, 
and formalized under Richard K. Carlisle's name as an independent planning  
practice which has existed since 1982.  In 1991, R. Donald Wortman joined the 
firm as a Principal and Vice-President.  Just over ten years later the company   
established an Oakland County office. Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. is the 
second largest community planning firm in the State of Michigan.   
 
Long Range/Master Planning:  
 
We have prepared more than fifty (50) community master plans, each including      
demographic, land use, transportation, and environmental studies.  These plans 
have incorporated an extensive public participation component  throughout the 
planning process.   
 
Example projects include:   
 

♦ City of Royal Oak Master Plan 
♦ City of Plymouth Master Plan 
♦ Independence Township Vision 2020 
♦ Orion Township Master Plan 
♦ City of Grosse Pointe Woods Master Plan 
♦ City of Howell Master Plan 
♦ City of Ypsilanti Master Plan 
♦ City of Clawson Master Plan (in-progress) 
 

Sub-Area Plans: 
 
Focusing on specific areas within a community, CWA has produced and              
assisted in the creation of several area-specific and functional plans.  These           
projects provide a community with a detailed evaluation of an area in order to 
design reasonable and appropriate alternatives.   
 
Example projects include: 
 

♦ Cherry Hill Village Area Plan, Canton Township 
♦ Gingellville Village Design Plan and Guidelines, Orion Township  
♦ Sashabaw Road Corridor Study, Independence Township 
♦ Lotz Corridor Development Plan, Canton Township 
♦ Loop Road Area Plan, City of Howell 

 
 

Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. has 
worked with over fifty (50) 
communities to provide a Master Plan 
which is based upon extensive public 
participation and includes a detailed 
means of implementation. 



 

Page 5 

Public Meeting Facilitation: 

Community planning has frequently been constrained by a lack of creative          
thinking and a fear to embrace an open participatory process. Public             
participation is often confined to public hearings when a development proposal is 
looming in the publics' backyard.  We are committed to processes which            
promote broad public participation, expression of new ideas, and creation of new 
concepts that will carry plans and projects to completion.   
 
Other: 
 
The following are additional services offered by CWA that may be applicable for 
the City of Troy Master Plan:  
 
Recreation Planning: Preparation of community recreation master plans,     
master park plans, and recreation facility design. 
 
Transportation Planning: Preparation of plans partnering with community, 
county and state governments for the creation of vehicular and pedestrian    
transportation plans. 
 
Corridor Studies: Preparation of corridor development plans,  streetscape plans, 
and other design improvements to enhance the economic and visual environment 
in corridors and adjacent commercial areas. 
 
Geographic Information Systems: Land use analysis, mapping and  presentation 
system and computer-aided design services using GIS and AutoCAD technology. 

Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. has 
developed, designed, and facilitated 
over two hundred (200) public    
workshops and “Vision Fairs.” 

Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  has 
a full-service GIS and computer            
mapping system. We were recently 
selected by Oakland County to prepare 
a Planning for Technology/Planning with 
Technology toolkit for local communi-
ties. 



 

Page 6 

APPROACH TO THE PROJECT 



 

Page 7 

Carlisle/Wortman approaches all projects with attention to detail, in an              
organized and comprehensive manner.  This approach has been key to our           
reputation as a well-respected community planning firm.  We understand the 
issues and concerns facing the City and will implement an established method for 
developing a clear plan and vision for the community.  Our understanding stems 
from our long-term relationship with the communities of Oakland County and 
with the City of Troy.  
 
We have extensive experience creating and updating Master Plans.  However, we 
recognize that one size (or plan) does not fit all communities.  If chosen for this 
project, our team will work closely with City staff and the Planning Commission 
to formulate a plan that addresses current and anticipated land use issues.          
Furthermore, having been an expert witness for the City for over 20 years, we 
understand the need to create a plan that can be defended.   
 
Finally, the City has been pursuing a number of policies, such as mixed use       
development, that need to be more fully reflected in the Master Plan.  The         
Master Plan process offers an excellent opportunity to establish a policy basis for 
various concepts such as green building/sustainable development, context          
sensitive design and transitional land use. 
 
Master Plan Project Highlights 
 
We propose a detailed approach to the project which utilizes various planning 
tools and methods.  The sequence of events, including various milestones, are 
detailed within the proposed work schedule.  Some of the highlights from our 
approach to this exciting project include the following: 
 
Key Master Plan Consideration  

Participation and Coordination 

Carlisle/Wortman is experienced with the City and has demonstrated an ability 
to create and implement effective participation processes.  Working with the 
staff and Commission, we will: 

• Work closely with City staff to produce a plan that is responsive to 
current and projected conditions in the City. 

• Conduct meetings with the Planning Commission at key stages 
throughout the process. 

• Hold a minimum of two public workshops in addition to the        
required public hearing. 

• Integrate the findings of the Troy Futures project, Big Beaver         
Corridor Study and the Maple Road Corridor Study. 

Approach to the Project 

With Carlisle/Wortman Associates, 
Inc., the City of Troy will retain a 
consultant who has already scaled the 
learning curve. 

The most effective plans are those 
which are accurate enough to 
prepare for anticipated events, and 
flexible enough to provide guidance 
for events which are not anticipated.  



 

Page 8 

Population and Housing Trends 

Population and housing trends will be analyzed with particular attention paid to: 

• Preservation and maintenance of existing neighborhoods; 

• Recognizing housing diversity/ shifts in demographic trends and 
demands for various types of housing. 

• The importance of pedestrian-scale neighborhoods. 

• Issues related to height and density 

Economic Development/Sustainability 

Providing a balance of economic activity and strategic growth is important.       
Particular issues include: 

• Evaluation of retail needs/commercial demand; 

• The viability of key roadway corridors (Big Beaver, Rochester Road, 
Maple Road); 

• Concentration of special economic areas such as Smart Zones, Auto 
Dealer zones, the DDA, and other TIF Districts; 

• Expansion of existing and attraction of new businesses; 

• Viability of industrial areas; 

• Exploration of redevelopment opportunities 

• Regional influences—s.e. Michigan, Oakland County, etc. 

Future Land Use Plan and Map 

Several elements will be examined when developing Troy’s Future Land Use Plan 
and map,  including the following:  

• Existing City land use patterns; 

• Land use conflicts and land use opportunities such as infill and           
redevelopment; 

• Creating appropriate land use transitions 

• Corridor planning; 

• Regional influences; 

 



 

Page 9 

 

Future Land Use Plan and Map Cont. 

• Recognition of a mixed-use opportunities; 

• Transportation network including pedestrian connections; 

• Recreational and open areas; and 
 
 
Parks and Recreation 
 
We recognize that parks and recreation contribute to the overall quality of living 
in Troy.  Therefore, the findings of the City’s Parks and Recreation Plan will be          
integrated into the Master Plan.  Furthermore, the contribution of open space to 
the community’s fabric will be evaluated.  
 
Transportation 
 
With the input of and guidance from the City Traffic Engineer, we will evaluate 
the existing transportation network, both vehicular and non-motorized.  Planned 
and future road improvements and evaluation of the relationship between land 
use and planned rights-of-way will be incorporated into this analysis to ensure a 
cohesive approach to transportation and land use planning.   Additional issues 
that will be considered will be access management, transportation oriented       
design and enhancement of walkability.  
 
Goals and Policies 
 
Goals and policies and the means of implementing each are key elements of the 
Master Plan.  Goals and policies provide guidance to decision makers that cannot 
be reflected in plans and maps. The goals and policies will take into account the 
information gathered in the Background sections of the Master Plan.  Just as  
importantly, the goals and policies will also take into consideration the public 
input gathered at the vision session. 
 
Implementation Tools 
 
A detailed toolbox of implementation mechanisms will be incorporated into the 
Master Plan.  Tools to be considered could include: 
 

• Overlay districts 
• Form based codes 
• Performance zoning 
• Design standards 
• Natural feature preservation 
• Incentives 

 
These tools will become part of the action plan. Specific recommendations will be 
provided for each Master Plan element. 
 

 



 

Page 10 

WORK PROGRAM 



 

Page 11 

The following is the proposed work program for Troy’s Master Plan update: 
 
 

Task 1.0 Project Initiation/Coordination 

1.1 Identify and evaluate past studies/data sources. 

1.2 Conduct project kick-off meeting (s) with City staff and             
Planning Commission.  Finalize work program and schedule, 
establish reporting arrangement and identify contact.  

1.3 Determine option of City Council adoption of plan 

1.4 Project management/coordination with City Staff will be        
ongoing throughout the project  

 
Task 2.0 Background Studies 

2.1 Existing Land Use and Map (to be prepared by City Staff) 
 
• Field review 
• Map and categorize land use 

2.2 Growth and Development Trends. 
 

• Historical patterns 
• Regional setting 
• Community character 

2.3 Population and Housing. 
 

• Population 
• Household size 
• Trends/characteristics 
• Projections 
• Property value evaluation (to be prepared by City staff) 

2.4 Economic Base/Socio-Economic Assessment. 
 

• Retail/commercial needs analysis 
• Regional influences 
• Tax base (to be prepared by City staff) 
• Employment 
• Income 
• Economic trends 
 

Master Plan Work Program 

OUTPUT: Finalize work program and  
schedule.  



 

Page 12 

 
2.5 Community Facilities/Service  (to be prepared by City staff) 
 

• Community facilities, utilities and services (age, condition 
and location) 

• Evaluation of adequacy 

2.6 Recreation /Open Space Analysis (to be prepared by City staff) 
 

• Incorporate findings of Parks and Recreation Plan 
• City owned 
• Public school facilities 
• Private recreational facilities 
• Regional resources 
• Natural features and open space 

2.7 Transportation and Traffic Analysis  
 

• Public transportation 
• Road classification 
• Traffic volumes (from available traffic counts) 
• Characteristics of major arteries 
• Non-motorized transportation 
• Access Management 
• Conclusions regarding systems adequacy, needs, etc. 

2.8 Draft background studies, including key findings. 

2.9 Transmit draft to City staff. 

2.10 Present findings to the Planning Commission.  
 

Task 3.0 Public Participation 

3.1 Summarize results of Troy Futures efforts (to be prepared by 
City staff). 

3.2 Prepare for and conduct public workshop session/open house 
(exact format and number to be determined at project          
initiation phase). 

3.3 Summarize findings following the workshop. 

3.4 Attend meeting with the Planning Commission to discuss the 
findings of the workshop. 

  
Task 4.0 Goals and Policies 
 

4.1 Draft goals and policies based upon the results of the           
workshop.  These goals and objectives shall be divided into no 
less than the following categories: 
• Land use 
• Housing 
• Municipal Services 
• Transportation 
• Natural Feature Preservation 
• Recreation/Open Space 

 
 

OUTPUT: Background studies report. 

OUTPUT: Written goals and policies 

OUTPUT: Summary report on finding 
from public participation. 



 

Page 13 

• Infrastructure 
• Historic and Cultural Resources 
• Corridors and Economic Development 
 

4.2 Present draft to staff and the Planning Commission. 
 
Task 5.0 Draft Master Land Use Plan  
 

5.1 Conduct a planning exercise with the Planning Commission  
focusing on selected “target areas” 

 
5.2 Area and Corridor Specific Plans.  More detailed plans will be 

prepared for certain geographic areas such as: 
 

• Rochester Road Corridor 
• Maple Road Corridor (incorporating results of LTU study) 
• Big Beaver Corridor (incorporating results of Big Beaver 

Study) 
• Stephenson Highway/Oakland Mall 
• Other areas to be determined by staff and Commission 

 
5.3 Draft the Future Land Use Plan and Map.  The plan will             

include the following elements: 
 

• Future land use classifications and map 
• Infill redevelopment  
• Corridor redevelopment  
• Transition area 

 
5.4 Thoroughfare Plan 
 

• Designation/classification by category 
• Future r.o.w. 
• Access management  
• Non-motorized transportation 
• Transportation oriented design 
 

5.5 Community Facilities Plan  
 

• Schools, municipal  
 

5.6 Open Space/Amenities Plan 
 

• Natural Areas and Corridors 
• Parks 
• Bikeways 
• Historical/Cultural Resources 
 

5.7 Present draft to the Planning Commission. 
 

 
Task 6.0 Implementation Strategies 

 
6.1 Provide implementation strategies for the goal, policies, and plan 

elements.   
 
  
 

  

OUTPUT: Compile Draft Plan  
• Land Use Plan 
• Thoroughfare Plan 
• Community Facilities Plan 
• Open Space/Amenities Plan  

OUTPUT: Identification of strategies 
and implementation techniques to 
address the goals and policies  



 

Page 14 

  
6.2 Recommend specific zoning techniques 
 
6.3 Present strategies to the Planning Commission.  
 

• Overlay Districts 
• Incentives based approaches 
• Form based and performance codes 
• Design standards 

 
Task 7.0 Final Report and Printing 
 

7.1 Develop draft Master Plan and map. 
 
7.2 Meet with City staff to review draft Master Plan and map.  
 
7.3 Develop an Executive Summary which provides a summation 

of the findings and goals of the Master Plan. 
 
7.4 Transmit draft Master Plan and Future Land Use map to          

Planning Commission. 
 
7.5 Public notification as per the Municipal Planning Act (to be     

handled by the City). 
 
7.6 Public hearing presentation to Planning Commission.         

Adoption by Commission. 
 
7.7 Adoption by Council to be determined. 
 
 
 

 

OUTPUT: Adopted Master Plan. 



 

Page 15 

Master Plan Project Timetable* 

 MONTH 

  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

Task 1.0  Project Initiation CS 
PC/
CC 

          

             

Task 2.0  Background Studies    CS  PC         

             

Task 3.0  Public Participation              CS,PC PW PC     PH 

             

Task 4.0  Goals and Policies         CS,PC     

             

Task 5.0  Draft Master Plan          PC    

             

Task 6.0  Implementation Strategies          CS PC  

             
Task 7.0  Final Master Plan and                                    

Adoption 
          CS,PC  

             

13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CC 

 

Each of the following represents a meeting: 
 
PC:  Planning Commission Meeting 
PW:  Public Workshop/Open House 
CS:  City Staff Meeting 
PH:  Public Hearing 
CC:  City Council 

  

* May require adjustment to meet statutory coordination 
requirements. 



 

Page 16 

Master Plan Project Staff 

 

     
           

Task 1.0  Project Initiation      
Task 2.0  Background Studies      
Task 3.0  Public Participation      
Task 4.0  Goals and Objectives      

Task 5.0  Draft Master Plan      
Task 6.0  Implementation                   

Strategies      
Task 7.0  Final Master Plan and          

Adoption      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      

R
ic

ha
rd

 C
ar

lis
le

 
Pr

es
id

en
t/

Pr
oj

ec
t 

M
an

ag
er

 

Z
ac

ha
ry

 B
ra

ni
ga

n 
C

hi
ef

 P
ro

je
ct

 P
la

nn
er

 

Li
sa

 S
ol

om
on

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

nn
er

 

Br
ya

n 
Po

w
er

s 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

nn
er

/G
IS

 

O
ffi

ce
 S

up
po

rt
 



 

Page 17 

Master Plan Estimated Fees / Hours 

 
Task 

 
Principal  

Richard Carlisle 

 
Planner 
Zachary        
Branigan 

 
Planner 

Lisa Solomon 

 
Tech  

Support 
Bryan  

Powers 

 
Office  

Support 

Task 1.0    Project Initiation/
Coordination 

72 16    

Task 2.0    Background Studies 8 32 32 24 16 

Task 3.0    Public Participation 40 72 32 24 24 

Task 4.0    Goals and Objectives 32 64 24  16 

Task 5.0    Draft Master Plan 84 96 48 32 16 

Task 6.0    Implementation Strategies 32 64 16  8 

Task 7.0    Final Master Plan and 
Adoption 32 96 48 32 32 

      

(hours/hourly rate) 300/$95 
$31,160 

400/$85 
$37,400 

216/$75 
$15,000 

112/$65 
$7,280 

112/$50 
$5,600 

SUB-TOTAL: $93,780 
 

EXPENSES:  Misc. (draft copies, mail, workshop materials)   $4,000 
                      Mapping ($25/hour) $2,000 
 
NOT TO EXCEED PROJECT COST:               
    $99,780 
 
Workshops/Meetings: The scheduled meetings include eight (8) with the Planning       
Commission, two (2) public workshops, two (2) City Council  meetings, and one 
(1) public hearing. Regular meetings with City staff are included in the cost of the 
proposal. Additional meetings with the Commission and/or Council and optional 
services will be billed at hourly rates. 
 
Printing:  Printing of the final document is not included.  At the conclusion of the 
project, consultants will deliver plans to the City in a format specified by the City. 
 
 



 

Page 18 

PROJECT TEAM AND  
ASSOCIATED EXPERIENCE 



 

Page 19 

Project Team and Associated Experience 

Principal-in-Charge 
 
Richard K. Carlisle, PCP, AICP, President/Principal-in-Charge, has over 
thirty years of professional experience.  He is a member of the American            
Institute of Certified Planners and is a registered Professional Community             
Planner.  His education includes a Bachelor of Science Degree from Miami             
University, a Master of Science Degree from Ohio State University, and             
additional graduate education in city and regional planning at the Georgia             
Institute of Technology. 

 
Mr. Carlisle is a past President, Vice President, Treasurer and Board Member of 
the Michigan Society of Planning (MSP).  Mr. Carlisle played a significant role in 
bringing about the merger between the Michigan Society of Planning Officials and 
the Michigan Chapter of the American Planning Association.   He has also served 
on the Chapter Presidents Council of the American Planning Association. 
 
Mr. Carlisle has been very active in land use legislative and policy matters at the 
state level.  He served as a Resource Team Technical Advisor to the Michigan 
Land Use Council and is frequently asked to provide input on legislation. 
 
A frequent presenter on community, land use, and environmental planning around 
the state, Mr. Carlisle has also served as an Adjunct Professor at Eastern Michigan 
University and a guest lecturer at the University of Michigan. 
 
Mr. Carlisle has been recognized by the Michigan Society of Planning Officials on a 
number of occasions for work he has directed. He was recently recognized as the 
first recipient of the Heritage-Partner Award from Oakland County for his          
support of the County Planning and Economic Development program. 
 
Through the years Mr. Carlisle has worked with numerous suburban             
communities.  Each of these communities has faced similar issues to those being 
dealt with by the City of Troy.  Mr. Carlisle is therefore well versed in the issues 
at hand and takes a hands-on approach in solving identified concerns.  His solu-
tions are often “outside the box,” a means which is often most appropriate for 
built-out communities.  Comparable projects include the following: 
 
♦ City of Royal Oak Master Plan, 1999 
♦ City of Mount Pleasant Master Plan, 2005 
♦ Planning services for Independence Township, 1981—present 
♦ Independence Township Vision 2020, 1997 
♦ Canton Township, Cherry Hill Master Plan, 1999 
 
 
 
 
 
 

♦ Over 30 years of planning    
experience. 

♦ National and state registered 
planner. 

♦ Resource Team Technical Advisor 
to the Governor’s Land Use 
Council. 

♦ Past President and Board    
member  of the Michigan Society 
of Planning. 

♦ Served as member of Chapter 
President’s Council, American 
Planning Association. 

♦ Received Oakland County     
Heritage Partners Award. 

♦ Presenter on “Smart Growth” at 
the National Association of   
Environmental Professionals. 

♦ Presenter and panel member at 
SEMCOG “Phase II Stormwater 
Workshops.” 



 

Page 20 

Community Planner 
 
Zachary Branigan, AICP, Community Planner received his Masters of  
Urban Planning from the University of Michigan in 2001.  Zachary’s professional 
focus in physical planning has been developed through working with numerous 
communities on site and architectural design guidelines, zoning ordinance        
updates, neighborhood plans, corridor plans, and other urban design programs.  
Zachary has applied his experience and training in a wide variety of settings,        
including a remote, tourism-oriented village, within a large urban neighborhood in 
the City of Flint, in inner-ring suburbs, and in numerous Michigan townships. 
 
 
Lisa Solomon, AICP, Community Planner, holds a Masters degree in    
urban and regional planning from the University of Michigan.   Lisa has been           
responsible for preparing NEPA documentation and assessment, transportation 
master plans, alternatives analysis, corridor studies, traffic impact and parking 
studies and development reviews.   Lisa also has organized public involvement for 
small and large-scale projects and has experience with project scheduling,            
Geographic Information Systems and traffic simulation software.  Projects which 
most closely relate to the proposal include the following: 
 
♦ Planning services for Ann Arbor Township, 2005 
♦ Planning services for Handy Township, 2005 
 
Bryan Scott Powers, Community Planner/GIS Coordinator, has a  
Bachelor of Science degree in Urban and Regional Planning from Eastern       
Michigan University.  Bryan’s background has focused on Zoning Administration 
and Code Enforcement at the township level, as well as the site plan submittal 
and review process.  Additionally, he is proficient with both GIS and AutoCAD 
systems as tools for land use mapping and analysis.  Projects which most closely 
relate to the proposal include the following: 
 
♦ City of Howell Master Plan, 2002 
♦ Village of Manchester Master Plan, 2003 
♦ Village of Dexter Master Plan, 2005 
♦ City of Saline Master Plan, 2004 
♦ City of Northville Master Plan, 2000 

♦ Nationally registered planner. 
♦ Published article on urbanizing 

Latin America. 
♦ Presentation on the evolution of 

public involvement for the I-94 
Rehabilitation Project in Detroit. 

♦ Expert in Geographic Information 
Systems (GIS). 

♦ Graduate of Eastern Michigan 
University. 

Specific Project Experience: 
♦ Has been personally responsible 

for consulting elected and       
appointed public bodies on a 
counting basis in cities,                
townships, and villages on diverse 
planning and community               
development issues. 







July 28, 2006 
 
 
 
TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Schedule a Special Meeting to Discuss the  

Big Beaver Corridor Study  
 
 
 
 
I recommend City Council schedule a special meeting at 6:15 PM on Monday, August 28, 
2006 for the purpose of discussing the Big Beaver corridor study. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLN/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\08.14.06 - Schedule a Special Meeting to Discuss the Big Beaver Corridor Study 

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



campbellld
Text Box
F-07













campbellld
Text Box
F-08





















campbellld
Text Box
F-09





















July 31, 2006 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item:  Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Hauling and 

Disposal of Dirt and Debris 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City management recommends that City Council rescind the award with prejudice to 
Enviro-Vac Services, Inc. of Troy, MI, for hauling and disposal of dirt and debris, 
Items B & C, broken asphalt and fill dirt respectively (Resolution #2006-03-153-E-4a) 
that was contingent upon submission of “…properly executed bid documents, 
including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements”.  Staff also 
recommends re-awarding the contract to the next lowest acceptable bidder, Luke’s 
Trucking and Excavating LLC, at an estimated total cost of $40,250.00.  Luke’s bid 
includes a fuel surcharge but their price would continue to be low and in the City’s 
best interest until diesel fuel prices increased to over $3.50 / gallon at which time 
Luke’s bid would tie another bidder’s price for Item C, fill dirt.  Luke’s Trucking and 
Excavating LLC - has submitted the specified insurance.      
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On March 27, 2006, Enviro-Vac Services, Inc. was awarded a one-year contract with 
the option to renew for one additional year to provide hauling and disposal of dirt and 
debris for broken asphalt (Item B) and fill dirt (Item C).  On May 17, 2006, Enviro-
Vac Services, Inc. was given written notice to provide the specified insurance within 
48 hours or be held in default of contract.  They failed to respond to the request.  
The next low bidder, Osburn Industries was contacted to haul broken asphalt but 
declined.   
 
Staff is recommending rescinding the award with prejudice that will suspend  
Enviro-Vac Services, Inc. from being awarded City contracts for three (3) years.  If 
they request to be readmitted after this time, Administrative Memorandum guides the 
process for re-entry.   
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds are available from the Water and Street Departments’ operating budgets.   
 
 
SL/sl 

campbellld
Text Box
F-10













August 4, 2006  
 
TO:  Phillip Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Bid Waiver - Troy Daze Large Tents 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends City Council waive the formal bid process and award a 
contract to provide two large tents for the 2006 Troy Daze Festival to Dial Tent 
and Awning, 5330 Davis Rd., Saginaw, MI 48604 for the estimated total amount 
of $11,176.00, contingent upon vendor’s submission of proper documents, 
including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Troy Daze Festival is held at Boulan Park every year in September. Tents 
are required as part of the set-up of the festival to house the various community, 
cultural, and entertainment activities associated with the event.  
 
On July 26, 2006, bids to provide a variety of sizes of tents for the 2006 Troy 
Daze Festival were opened. Only two vendors - Ace Canvas & Tent, and Classic 
Rents submitted bids on the tents and will split the tent order according to low 
price. However, neither company carries the two larger sized tents and their bids 
did not include those two large tents. Staff contacted Dial Tent and Awning in 
Saginaw, the company that provided the large tents for Troy Daze last year. They 
can provide the two tents (1 – 80’x100’ and 1 – 80’x240’) again this year at the 
same cost as last year. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for the rental of tents for the Troy Daze Festival are available in the 
Community Fair Fund operating budget, account 784. 7942. 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeffrey J. Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-11



 1

DATE: August 2, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Announcement of Public Hearing (August 28, 2006) – 

Rezoning Application (File Number: Z 632-B) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, 
West side of Rochester Road, North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to 
R-1T 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The application is consistent with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan and compatible 
with the existing zoning districts and land uses.  The Planning Commission recommended 
approval of the rezoning request at the June 13, 2006 Regular meeting.  City Management 
recommends approval of the rezoning application.   
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
A valid rezoning protest petition was presented to the City Clerk’s Office on April 5, 2006.  
The petition was signed by 100% of property owners of land within 100 feet of the parcel 
boundary (excluding public property).  The rezoning application can only be approved by a 
2/3 vote of City Council. 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
Jay Balan and Bala Murthy. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the west side of Rochester Road, north of Wattles, in Section 
15. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 2.27 net acres in area. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The property is presently vacant. 
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
CR-1 One Family Residential Cluster District. 
 
Proposed Zoning of Subject Parcel: 
R-1T One Family Attached Residential District. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 2

Proposed Uses and Buildings on Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes 8 attached townhouse condominiums. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: R-1C One Family Residential. 
East: R-1T One Family Attached Residential District. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: Single family residential. 
South: Single family residential. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Range of Uses Permitted in the Proposed R-1T One Family Attached Zoning District and 
Potential Build-out Scenario:  
 
 PRINCIPAL USES PERMITTED: 
 
 All principal uses permitted and as regulated in the nearest R-1A through R-1E One 

Family Residential Districts. 
 
 Two family dwellings developed in accordance with the provisions of the 

Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
 
 One family attached dwellings as defined in sub-Section 04.20.44 developed in 

accordance with the provisions of the Condominium Act, MCL 559.1, et seq. 
  Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the above principal uses. 

 
 USES PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL USE APPROVAL: 
 
 Churches and other facilities normally incidental thereto. 
 
 Schools. 
 
 Child care centers. 
 
 Utility and public service buildings and uses. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
The parcel fronts on Rochester Road.   



 3

Potential Storm Water and Utility Issues: 
The applicant will have to provide on-site storm water detention and all other utilities. 
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on the 
property. 
 
Compliance with Future Land Use Plan: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the parcel as Medium Density Residential.  Medium 
Density Residential correlates with the R-1T One Family Attached Residential Zoning 
District in the Future Land Use Plan.  The parcel has been classified as Medium Density 
Residential since 1999. 
 
Compliance with Location Standards: 
Article 12.40.01 states that the R-1T (One-family Attached Residential) District may be 
applied to property when one or more of the following conditions prevail: 
 
 (A) When the application of such a classification is consistent with the intent of the 

Master Land Use Plan, and therefore involves areas indicated as medium density or 
high density residential. 

 
 (B) When the application of such a classification would be an integral part of a planned 

residential development approach, such as a planned neighborhood development 
(34.50.00), wherein the overall density is consistent with the intent of the Master 
Land Use Plan. 

 
The application meets the Location Standards of the R-1T District. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Protest petition, submitted to Clerk’s Office on April 5, 2006. 
3. Letters from residents (7). 

  
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File (Z 632-B) 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-632 B Troy Villas Sec 15\Announce CC Public Hearing Z-632 8 28 06.doc 



JO
H

N
 R

C
R

O
O

K
S

WATTLES

A
D

A
M

S

C
O

O
LID

G
E

LONG LAKE

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

BIG BEAVER

LIV
E

R
N

O
IS

SOUTH BLVD

SQUARE LAKE

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
O

N

M
A

IN R
O

C
H

E
ST

ER

I75

MAPLE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

REZONING REQUEST
FROM CR-1 TO R-1T



HOLL
Y

BRAHMS

MAYA

GARWOOD

R
E

N
E

E

W
ILLO

W 
C

R
E

E
K

BARCLAY 
CT

RAND
ALL

LORENZO CT
BARCLA

Y

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

LAMB

REZONING REQUEST (REVISED)
PROPOSED GRAND TROY VILLA CONDOMINIUM
FROM CR-1 TO R-1T
W SIDE OF ROCHESTER, N OF WATTLES
SEC. 15 (Z-632 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 200 400100
Feet



HOLL
Y

BRAHMS

MAYA

GARWOOD

R
E

N
E

E

W
ILLO

W 
C

R
E

E
K

BARCLAY 
CT

RAND
ALL

LORENZO CT
BARCLA

Y

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

LAMB

(B-2)
(P-
1)

(R-1C)

(R-1T)

(CR-1)

(O-1)

REZONING REQUEST (REVISED)
PROPOSED GRAND TROY VILLA CONDOMINIUM
FROM CR-1 TO R-1T
W SIDE OF ROCHESTER, N OF WATTLES
SEC. 15 (Z-632 B)

SUBJECT PARCEL

³0 200 400100
Feet

























































 1

 
DATE: August 8, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark S. Stimac, Building and Zoning Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Announcement of Public Hearing (August 28, 2006) – 

Proposed Amendment to Planned Unit Development – Woodside Bible 
Church/Northwyck Condominium Planned Unit Development (PUD 1), 
located on the east side of Rochester Road, north of Square Lake Road 
and south of South Boulevard, Section 2 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Woodside Bible Church requested to amend PUD 1 to permit a freestanding sign for 
Woodside Bible Church along Rochester Road.  The Planning Commission held a Public 
Hearing for this amendment at the October 11, 2005 Regular meeting and recommended 
approval of the amendment.  City Council has the authority to approve the proposed 
amendment to PUD 1. 
 
City Management determined that the placement and bulk of the sign is not a health and 
safety concern.  The landscaping and retaining wall at the base of the sign soften its 
mass.  In addition, the sheer size of the church and site diminishes the impact of the sign.  
The applicant has agreed to plant an additional 70 trees on the site as a public benefit.  
City Management recommends approval of the amendment to PUD 1 and that the Mayor 
and City Clerk be authorized to execute the First Amendment to the Development 
Agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The sign was not included in the approved PUD document, but was constructed. The 
applicant submitted plans after construction (Sheet Number A-065).  The V-shaped sign 
has two sign faces that measure collectively 276 square feet in area, and is located 
approximately 4 feet from the Rochester Road right-of-way.  The property is zoned PUD 1.  
There are no specific sign standards for PUD’s, as signage details are typically 
negotiated during the PUD approval process.  For comparison purposes, standards for 
signs in the C-F district include a minimum setback of 10 feet from the right-of-way and a 
maximum of one sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area.  

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



 2

Sheet A-065 includes landscape materials for the front and rear of the sign, including the 
area inside the V-shape of the sign.  This assists in softening the relatively large space.  
In addition, the proposed block retaining wall and other plantings around the sign softens 
the mass of the sign.  The applicant intends to plant 70 additional trees throughout the 
site as a public benefit, in addition to the trees required for Final PUD Approval.  
Representatives of the Planning Department walked a portion of the site and confirmed 
that at least 40 5-foot high to 6-foot high coniferous trees were planted south of the 
church.  The applicant is required to plant the additional trees no later than October 1, 
2006.  Finally, the applicant is required to provide a Landscaping Plan indicating location, 
size and species of trees no later than October 21, 2006.  The Landscape Analyst shall 
verify the plantings.   
 
It should be noted that the petitioner originally applied to amend the PUD Agreement to 
eliminate the required screening of rooftop mechanical equipment (Section 39.80.09).  This 
was removed from the application.  The petitioner has installed the required rooftop 
equipment screens and the City inspected and approved the equipment on July 18, 2006.   
 
 
 
 
Reviewed as to Form and Legality: ___________________ __________ 
 Lori Grigg Bluhm Date 
 City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments 
1. First Amendment to Development Agreement. 
2. Sheet A-065, monumental sign and landscaping details. 
4. Letters of opposition (4). 
 
 
 
Prepared by RBS, MFM 
 
cc: File/PUD 1 
 Applicant 
 
G:\PUD's\PUD-001 Woodside Bible Church PUD\Announcement of CC Public Hearing PUD-1 8 28 06.doc 
 
 



 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
 

CITY OF TROY 
 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR 
THE WOODSIDE BIBLE CHURCH/NORTHWYCK 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 

 
 
 This First Amendment to Development Agreement dates as 
of_________________, 2006, is by and between Robertson Northwyck, L.L.C., 
a Michigan Limited Liability Company, having its principal office at 6905 
Telegraph Road, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48031 (“Robertson”), Woodside 
Bible Church, a Michigan Ecclesiastical Corporation, having its principal office at 
6600 Rochester Road, Troy, Michigan 48085 (“Woodside”) and the City of Troy, 
a Michigan Municipal Corporation, having its principal office at 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084 (“City”). 
 

 
RECITALS: 

 
 

 On or about May 28, 2003, Woodside and Robertson, as developers 
entered into a Development Agreement for the Woodside Bible 
Church/Northwyck Planned Unit Development (“Development Agreement”) with 
the City, which Development Agreement is recorded at Liber 30358, Pages 562 
through 582, Oakland County Records.  
 
 The Development Agreement was silent as to the precise location and 
size of an identification sign to be erected by Woodside along Rochester Road.  



 2

Woodside is in the process of constructing such an identification sign, which is 
located just south of the south entrance to the church property. 
 
 The parties now desire to amend the Development Agreement to allow 
and ratify the location and size of the Woodside Bible Church sign. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual 
covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Installation of Identification Sign.  Woodside has permission to 
have a “V” shaped sign as depicted in the Site Sign Plan and Detail 
Sheet, Number A-065, which bears the date stamp “November 16, 
2005” of the Troy Planning Department which are attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, which is incorporated by reference as part of this 
Agreement. 

 
2. Sign Specifications.  The identification sign shall have the following 

dimensions.  Each side of the identification sign, including the face of 
the sign and all surrounding brick and masonry materials measures 
138 square feet.  Accordingly, the two (2) sides of the sign collectively 
measure 276 square feet, which exceeds by 176 square feet the 100 
square feet limit for church signs in residential areas.  The point of the 
“V” shaped sign is located approximately 3 feet from the right-of-way, 
which is 7 feet less than the required 10 feet set back from the right of 
way required for signs. These specifications are set out in Exhibit A. 

 
3. Public Benefit.  All proposed landscaping shown on Site Sign Plan 

and Detail Sheet Number A-065, attached as Exhibit A, shall be 
installed.  In addition, Woodside has planted or shall plant seventy 
(70) trees, in addition to the trees approved in the original 
Development Agreement, throughout the Woodside Bible Church 
portion of the Planned Unit Development, in areas selected by 
Woodside.  The type of trees planted shall be listed on the City’s 
approved planting list. Plantings shall meet the requirements of the 
City’s Landscape Design and Tree Preservation Standards. All trees 
must be planted no later than October 1, 2006. A Landscaping Plan 
showing “as planted” location, size and species of tree shall be 
presented to the City Planning Department no later than October 21, 
2006.  The City’s Landscape Analyst will verify the planting provided 
for in Exhibit A and the landscaping plan and notify the City Planning 
Department as to whether or not Woodside has complied with the 
terms and conditions of this First Amendment to Development 
Agreement. 

 
4. Failure to Comply:  If the City’s Landscape Analyst reports that in 

his/her opinion Woodside has not complied with the terms and 



 3

conditions of this First Amendment to Development Agreement to the 
City’s satisfaction, the Planning Director shall notify Woodside of the 
details of the noncompliance.  Woodside shall have thirty (30) days to 
correct the noncompliance to the City’s satisfaction.  If Woodside fails 
to correct the noncompliance, the City shall be allowed to go onto the 
Woodside property, correct the noncompliance and bill Woodside for 
the actual costs.  If actual costs are not paid within thirty (30) days of 
the date of the billing for actual costs, the City shall be allowed to 
assess a lien against the property. The City make also take any action 
as provided for under the original Agreement for the Woodside Bible 
Church/Northwyck Planned Unit Development or to institute any legal 
proceedings  as allowed under law.  

 
 

5.   The Site Sign Plan and Detail Sheet, Number A-065, which bears the 
date stamp “November 16, 2005” of the Troy Planning Department 
and the Landscaping Plan required under Paragraph 3, shall be 
incorporated into the Development Agreement for the Woodside Bible 
Church/Northwyck Planned Unit Development as part of the final 
planned unit development documents. 
 

6. In all other respects, the parties reaffirm the provisions of the 
Development Agreement for Woodside Bible Church/Northwyck 
Planned Unit Development signed on May 28, 2003. The City shall not 
be precluded from using any enforcement provisions in the May 28, 
2003 agreement which may be in addition to those set out herein.  

 
 

WOODSIDE BIBLE CHURCH (f/k/a 
Troy Baptist Church), a Michigan  
Ecclesiastical Corporation 
 
 
BY: 
 
ITS: 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN    ) 
           ) 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledge before me this________day 
of____________, 2006 by_______________________________, the_________ 
_________________________________, Woodside Bible Church, a Michigan 
Ecclesiastical Corporation, on behalf of the Corporation 
 



 4

 
_____________________________ 

, Notary Public 
Oakland County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
 
      ROBERTSON NORTHWYCK, L.L.C., 
      a Michigan Limited Liability Company 
 

     BY:  Robertson Brothers Company, 
             a Michigan Corporation 
      ITS: Managing Member 
 
 
 
     BY:___________________________ 
          ___________________________ 
      ITS:__________________________ 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN    ) 
           ) 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledge before me this________day 
of____________, 2006 by_______________________________, the_________ 
_________________________________, Robertson Brothers Company, a 
Michigan Corporation, Manager of Robertson Northwyck, L.L.C., a Michigan 
Limited Liability Company, on behalf of the Company 
 
 
_____________________________ 

, Notary Public 
Oakland County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
 
 
      CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
                                                                 Municipal Corporation 
 
 
 
      BY:_________________________ 
                                                                      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 



 5

 
      BY;_________________________ 
                                                                     Tonni Bartholomew, Clerk 
 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN    ) 
           ) 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledge before me this________day 
of____________, 2006 by Louise Schilling and Tonni Bartholomew, the Mayor 
and Clerk respectively of the City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, on 
behalf of the Corporation. 
 
 
_____________________________ 

, Notary Public 
Oakland County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
 
 
 
Drafted by and when recorded return to: 
Susan M. Lancaster 
Assistant City Attorney 
City of Troy 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3320 

 
 

        
 
 













 
DATE:   August 4, 2006 

  
 

 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item - Announcement of Public Hearing 

Parking Variance Request  
   35 W. Square Lake Road 
 

 
 

 
We have received an application from Voitek Malinowski of Quality Care 
Rehabilitation Professionals, Inc. to alter an existing commercial building at 35 W. 
Square Lake Road to convert it into medical offices.  Applying the requirements for 
parking for medical offices of Section 40.21.73 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance we 
find that a minimum of 27 parking spaces are required for a building of this size.  
The site plan indicates that only 14 parking spaces are available on the site.  As 
such the permit application has been denied.  In response to our denial, the 
applicants have filed a request for parking variance for the 13-space deficiency. 
 
A Public Hearing has been scheduled for your meeting of September 11, 2006, in 
accordance with Section 44.01.00.   
 
We have enclosed copies of the petitioner’s application and supporting 
documentation as well as a copy of the site plan of the facility for your reference.  
We will be happy to provide additional information regarding this request if you 
desire. 
 
Attachments: 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01c



 



 



 



 



 





 



BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES FINAL  APRIL 18, 2006 
 

 
The meeting was called to order at 3:10 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Conference Room C 
by Bruce Wilberding.   
 
Members Present:  Al Aceves, Victor Lenivov, Bruce Wilberding (Chairman), Robert 

Swartz, Katherine Lee 
 
Members Absent: Art Cotsonika, Lon Ullmann 
 
Also Present: Doug Smith, Secretary/Treasurer, Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # BRA 06-01 
Moved by:  Swartz 
Seconded by:  Lee 
 
Resolved, that the BRA approve the minutes of the December 15, 2005 meeting. 
 
Yeas:   All (4) 
Abstention:  Al Aceves 
Absent:  Cotsonika, Ullmann  
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Resignation and Appointment 

 
Chairman, Bruce Wilberding recognized the newest appointment to replace Larry 
Goss with Al Aceves.  Doug Smith indicated that he was pleased Mr. Aceves had 
been willing to join the BRA and brings a strong background in economic 
development that will help the BRA in its deliberations.  Mr. Aceves spoke briefly 
about his background and current position 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Update on Plan #3 – Masco 
 

Mr. Smith provided an update on Plan #3 - Masco.  Mr. Smith indicated that he 
and Chairman Wilberding went to Lansing the previous day to visit with a number 
of DEQ personnel who have been involved in the project.  Unfortunately, the 
technical people, because of a death in the family and illness were not present so 
the meeting was not as helpful as it should have been.  However, he and Mr. 
Wilberding felt that the meeting was productive in clearly describing to the key 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



people in Lansing the concerns that the BRA, as well as the developer, have 
regarding the reaction and responses that DEQ has had to the work plan.  The 
leader of the DEQ group, Phil Schrantz promised they would set up a meeting as 
quickly as possible with the technical people and try to further address the full 
approval of the DEQ plan.  Primary concerns that the BRA has with the partial 
approvals that have been granted by DEQ for the work plan is that they cannot 
adopt a full reimbursement plan nor get further Council action, as is required, with 
only partial approval of the work plan.  The key component that seems to be a 
sticking point is the MPE or multi-phase environmental extraction process, which 
has been tested and proven many times, appears to be the concern of some of 
the technical people in DEQ.  The approval to date has indicated approval for the 
pilot program but not for the multi-phase environmental extraction process, which 
seems inconsistent with the history of this process and other projects.  The hope 
is that this meeting can be set up within the next few weeks.   

 
B. Proposed 2006/07 Budget 
 

Mr. Smith reviewed the budget, there was some questions regarding the total 
value of the Midtown Square project.  Mr. Smith conferred with Mr. Licari, City 
Assessor to assure that the numbers were accurate.  With assurance provided 
the item was approved. 
 
Resolution #BRA 06-01 
Moved by:  Lenivov 
Seconded by:  Aceves 
 
Resolved, That the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority approves the 2006/07 
proposed budget. 
 
Yeas:      All (5) 
Absent:   Cotsonika, Ullmann 
 

 
C. Revolving Loan Fund 
 
 Mr. Smith indicated that Lori Bluhm, City Attorney had provided two memos for 

the BRA regarding the Revolving Loan Fund.  The memos layout a complete set 
of conditions that could be considered in terms of establishing the revolving loan 
fund.  There was some discussion regarding a number of the items.  The 
expectation was that each of the members would review these items to see which 
they felt should and should not be part of the conditions of the revolving loan fund 
and then communicate them to Mr. Smith.  There was a further discussion about 
the second memo, which was the City Attorneys interpretation that the local site 
remediation revolving fund cannot make grants and should only issue loans.  It 
was agreed that all members would review the memos before the next meeting.  If 
there were any particular items not included in the draft memos, the members will 
also identify them and communicate them to Mr. Smith. 

 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 



 
 Resolution #BRA-06-02 
 Moved by: Lenivov 
 Seconded by:  Swartz 
 

RESOLVED, that Cotsonika and Ullmann be excused.   
 
Yeas:  All (5) 
Absent: Cotsonika, Ullmann 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
One public visitor attended the meeting and indicated her appreciation for the work of 
the BRA. 

 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:50 p.m. 
 
The next meeting scheduled is July 18, 2006. 
 
 
 
Bruce Wilberding, Chairman 
 
 
Doug Smith, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
BRA Minutes  
04/18/06 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES - FINAL MAY 11, 2006 
 

 1 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Board was held on Thursday May 11, 2006 at the 
Office of the Library Director.  Audre Zembrzuski, Vice-Chairman, called the meeting to 
order at 7:30 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT: Heather Eisenbacher 
   Lynne Gregory 
   Nancy Weeler 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
 

   Lauren Andreoff, Student Representative 
 

   Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-5-01 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, That Kul Gauri andStudent Representative Cheng Chen be excused. 
 
Yes: 4—Eisenbacher, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-5-02 
Moved by Gregory 
Seconded by Wheeler 
 
RESOLVED, That Minutes of April 13, 2006 be approved. 
 
Yes: 4—Eisenbacher, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
Reviewed Agenda entries 
 
Resolution #LB-2006-5-03 
Moved by Wheeler 
Seconded by Gregory 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agenda be approved. 
 
Yes: 4—Eisenbacher, Gregory, Wheeler, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES - FINAL MAY 11, 2006 
 

 2 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
There were no postponed items. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS. 
The Board members decided to postpone the election of officers until the June meeting. 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report 
• The owners of Steamers, the library café, have complied with the City’s insurance 

requirements.   
• It appears as if there were no cuts to the Library Budget for next fiscal year.  It 

appears as if we will be able to renovate two or three bathrooms as our capital 
project.   

• A number of additional electrical outlets have been added to the study areas in the 
Adult Services department to facilitate the public’s use of laptops and our wireless 
Internet connection.   

• The Annual Volunteer Appreciation Day was a nice affair with a professional 
storyteller at the program.   

• The Annual Public Library Trustee Association of Oakland County Spring Dinner will 
feature L. Brooks Patterson speaking on the Wireless Oakland Project.   

 
Board Member’s Comments 
Zembrzuski stated that the café owner’s children who run the café in the evenings argue 
with each other.  She also said that this does not create a positive atmosphere for 
conducting business.  Also the bagels have been stale.  
 
Student Representative’s Comments 
There were no comments. 
 
Suburban Library Cooperative. 
The review of the investment policy was tabled until the next meeting.  Eight computers 
were replaced according to the replacement schedule.  SLC is searching for about 
4,000 square feet of space.  They will not be renewing their contract with the Macomb 
County Library for operating space.   
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library. 
The Annual Meeting will be held on May 22, 2006.  Thomas Lynch, one of this year’s 
Michigan Notable Authors, will discuss his newest book:  Booking Passage : We Irish 
and Americans. 

 
Gifts. 
One gift of $50.00 was received. 
 
Informational Items. 
May TPL calendar 
 
 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES - FINAL MAY 11, 2006 
 

 3 

Contacts and Correspondence.    
29 written comments from the public were reviewed. 
 
Public Participation.   
There was no public participation. 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 7:55 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
 
Audre Zembrzuski 
Vice-Chair 
 
 
 
Brian Stoutenburg 
Recording Secretary 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JUNE 7, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, June 7, 2006, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  The 
meeting was called to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Present:  A. Fuhrman, alternate P. Hammond, member 
   T. House, member  G. Hyun, student   
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member   
   C. Weidman, student S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: C. Buchanan, member EA 
   S. Burt, member EA 

A. Done, member EA   
J.  Stewart, member EA 
M. Pritzlaff, alternate UA 

 
ITEM C – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF MAY 3, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of May 3, 2006 be approved.  Supported 
by Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM D – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Carlene Geier, Troy resident, Linda Hannon, Director of Special Education for the Troy 
School District, and Kitt Alexander, Co-Vice President of the Troy Special Services 
Parent Teacher Organization attended our meeting as guests. 
 
ITEM E – NEW BUSINESS 
Werpetinski brought the video “F.A.T. City Workshop” for our viewing.  F.A.T. stands for 
Frustration, Anxiety, Tension.  It demonstrates how people with learning disabilities deal 
with everyday challenges and offers measures educators can use to help reduce a 
student’s anxiety in group settings.  Kitt also brought the article “Wrong” Is Not Right by 
Kathie Snow.  Kathie’s website is disabilityisnatural.com. 
 
Hammond made a motion to cancel the July, 2006 meeting; Pietron seconded.  All 
agreed. 
 
ITEM F – REGULAR BUSINESS 
House will attend the 6/19, 7/19 and 7/24 Council Meetings. 
 
ITEM G – COMMITTEE MEMBER COUNCIL MEETING REPORT 
Werpetinski reported that Mayor ProTem Cristina Broomfield has indicated a new 
approach to assigning members to City Committee posts.  Interviews will be conducted 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – DRAFT –  
JUNE 7, 2006 

 2

and the best candidates will be recommended for assignment.  Waiting lists or current 
members whose term is expiring and are wishing reassignment will be a consideration, 
but not the determining factor. 
 
Werpetinski also reported that a resolution was passed to allow City Clerk 
 Tonni Bartholomew to execute a grant application agreement with the State of 
Michigan, Michigan Department of State for the purchase of AutoMARK ballot marking 
devices and related Election Management System (EMS) programming software for use 
by individuals with disabilities pursuant to the Help America Vote Act. 
 
ITEM H - OLD BUSINESS 
House reported for Done that students from Lawrence Tech University will attend either 
the August or September meeting to present information on ‘universal design’. 
 
Werpetinski spoke with Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director, regarding future alterations 
for handicap access at the Library.  They agreed that a drive-thru facility would best 
serve the community, and in particular, those persons with disabilities.  Subsequently 
the committee approved a letter urging the City Council to consider a drive-thru option. 
 
Hyun reported that Special Education students at Troy High School help with 
decorations at dances as a way of participating in activities.  Sadd and Project Lead 
also include Special Education students in their projects.  Hyun will follow up with her 
school next season as to what activities are available. 
 
Weidman reported that she would like to see Athens make more efforts toward inclusion 
in the 2006-2007 school year.  In the past they had a study buddy and a mentoring 
program in place. 
 
ITEM I - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Members of this Committee donated money to send flowers to Buchanan after her 
surgery. 
 
It was reported that the Troy School District Special Education Services Building has no 
automated door. 
 
ITEM J – ADJOURN 
Werpetinski made a motion to adjourn at 9:35 which was seconded by Hammond. 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                   Theodora House, Acting Chairperson 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JUNE 7, 2006 

 1

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
held Wednesday, June 7, 2006, at the lower level conference room at City Hall.  The 
meeting was called to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Present:  A. Fuhrman, alternate P. Hammond, member 
   T. House, member  G. Hyun, student   
   P. Manetta, member D. Pietron, member   
   C. Weidman, student S. Werpetinski, member 
        
Present: M. Grusnick, staff 
   K. Jearls, staff 
 
Absent: C. Buchanan, member EA 
   S. Burt, member EA 

A. Done, member EA   
J.  Stewart, member EA 
M. Pritzlaff, alternate UA 

 
ITEM C – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MEETING OF MAY 3, 2006 
Werpetinski made a motion that the minutes of May 3, 2006 be approved.  Supported 
by Pietron.  All voted in favor. 
 
ITEM D – VISITORS, DELEGATIONS AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Carlene Geier, Troy resident, Linda Hannon, Director of Special Education for the Troy 
School District, and Kitt Alexander, Co-Vice President of the Troy Special Services 
Parent Teacher Organization attended our meeting as guests. 
 
ITEM E – NEW BUSINESS 
Werpetinski brought the video “F.A.T. City Workshop” for our viewing.  F.A.T. stands for 
Frustration, Anxiety, Tension.  It demonstrates how people with learning disabilities deal 
with everyday challenges and offers measures educators can use to help reduce a 
student’s anxiety in group settings.  Kitt also brought the article “Wrong” Is Not Right by 
Kathie Snow.  Kathie’s website is disabilityisnatural.com. 
 
Hammond made a motion to cancel the July, 2006 meeting; Pietron seconded.  All 
agreed. 
 
ITEM F – REGULAR BUSINESS 
House will attend the 6/19, 7/19 and 7/24 Council Meetings. 
 
ITEM G – COMMITTEE MEMBER COUNCIL MEETING REPORT 
Werpetinski reported that Mayor ProTem Cristina Broomfield has indicated a new 
approach to assigning members to City Committee posts.  Interviews will be conducted 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – FINAL –  
JUNE 7, 2006 

 2

and the best candidates will be recommended for assignment.  Waiting lists or current 
members whose term is expiring and are wishing reassignment will be a consideration, 
but not the determining factor. 
 
Werpetinski also reported that a resolution was passed to allow City Clerk 
 Tonni Bartholomew to execute a grant application agreement with the State of 
Michigan, Michigan Department of State for the purchase of AutoMARK ballot marking 
devices and related Election Management System (EMS) programming software for use 
by individuals with disabilities pursuant to the Help America Vote Act. 
 
ITEM H - OLD BUSINESS 
House reported for Done that students from Lawrence Tech University will attend either 
the August or September meeting to present information on ‘universal design’. 
 
Werpetinski spoke with Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director, regarding future alterations 
for handicap access at the Library.  They agreed that a drive-thru facility would best 
serve the community, and in particular, those persons with disabilities.  Subsequently 
the committee approved a letter urging the City Council to consider a drive-thru option. 
 
Hyun reported that Special Education students at Troy High School help with 
decorations at dances as a way of participating in activities.  Sadd and Project Lead 
also include Special Education students in their projects.  Hyun will follow up with her 
school next season as to what activities are available. 
 
Weidman reported that she would like to see Athens make more efforts toward inclusion 
in the 2006-2007 school year.  In the past they had a study buddy and a mentoring 
program in place. 
 
ITEM I - INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
Members of this Committee donated money to send flowers to Buchanan after her 
surgery. 
 
It was reported that the Troy School District Special Education Services Building has no 
automated door. 
 
ITEM J – ADJOURN 
Werpetinski made a motion to adjourn at 9:35 which was seconded by Hammond. 
 
 
                                                                 _______________________________ 
                   Theodora House, Acting Chairperson 
 
        ________________________________ 
           Kathy Jearls, Recording Secretary                            
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

The Chairman, Michael Huston, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday June 20, 2006 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:    Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Lawrence Littman 
   Mark Maxwell 
 
ABSENT:  Matthew Kovacs 
 
Motion by Fejes 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Kovacs from this meeting as he is out of town. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. KOVACS CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson informed the audience that anyone wishing to have their request postponed, 
for the benefit of a full Board, should let the Board know and their request will be 
postponed until the meeting of July 18, 2006.  
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MAY 16, 2006 
 
Motion by Courtney  
Supported by Fejes 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of May 16, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Hutson, Maxwell, Courtney, Fejes 
Abstain: 2 – Gies, Littman 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 AND ITEM #4 
 
RESOLVED, that Item #3 and Item #4 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUEST.  THE LUTHERAN CHURCH OF THE MASTER, 
3333 COOLIDGE, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a berm along the west side of 
off-street parking in lieu of the required 4’-6” high masonry screening wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by 
this Board for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall required along the west 
property line.  In 1976 permanent relief was granted to allow a landscaped berm along 
the northern property line for approximately 80’ act as an obscuring element.  In 1981 
parking was increased and the Board allowed this berm to be extended.  Although the 
berm does exist along the entire property line, an outdoor play area for the day care 
facility located here encroaches into a portion of the berm.  This item last appeared 
before this Board at the meeting of June 2003 and was granted a three-year (3) 
renewal.  Conditions remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Lutheran Church of the Master, 3333 Coolidge, a three-year (3) 
renewal of relief to maintain a berm along the west side of off-street parking in lieu of 
the required 4’-6” high masonry screening wall. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUEST.  TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT, 4777 NORTHFIELD 
PARKWAY, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry-screening wall required along the west 
side of off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by 
this Board for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the west 
property line of the site that abuts residential zoning.  This relief has been granted on a 
yearly basis since July 1988 based on the fact that this does not cause an adverse 
effect on properties in the immediate vicinity.  This item last appeared before this Board 
at the meeting of June 2003 and was granted a three-year (3) year renewal at the time.  
Conditions remain the same and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy School District, 4777 Northfield Parkway a three-year (3) renewal 
of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the west property line of 
the site that abuts residential zoning. 
 

• Variance does not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• We have no complaints or objections on file 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

Mr. Hutson explained that the Board had received requests from the respective 
petitioners, that the requests for a variance for Item #5, Item #6 and Item #7 be 
withdrawn.  

ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ANDRAOS & NANCY KATTOUAH, 3410 
ROCHESTER (proposed address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new gas 
station at the intersection of Charrington and Rochester Road that will result in a 30’ 
setback to the abutting property.  This property is in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning 
District and Section 31.30.00 requires a 75’ setback from any property line that abuts a 
residentially zoned district. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of May 16, 2006 and was 
postponed to this meeting at the request of the petitioner.  The Building Department has 
received a request from the petitioner that this item be withdrawn as they have 
submitted a different request (Item #9). 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Littman 
 
MOVED, to accept the withdrawal request of Item #5 - Andraos & Nancy Kattouah, 
3410 Rochester. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  ALLIED METALS CORPORATION, 1750 
STEPHENSON, for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition to the front parking 
lot that will result in a 24’ front setback where Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 of the 
Troy Ordinance requires that the 50’ front yard remain as a landscaped open space. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of April 18, 2006 and was 
postponed to this meeting to allow the petitioner the opportunity to present detailed 
plans regarding this variance request.  The Building Department has received a request 
from the petitioner asking that this request be withdrawn.  
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Littman 
 
MOVED, to accept the withdrawal request of Item #6 - Allied Metals Corporation 1750 
Stephenson. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL CARRIED 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #7 – INTERPRETATION REQUEST.  SIDNEY FRANK, REPRESENTING 
GABECARE DIRECT, RX, 1179 MAPLELAWN, for an interpretation that a doctor’s 
office is an accessory use permitted in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning Distract per 
Section 28.25.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance until the meeting of June 20, 2006. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of May 16, 2006 and was 
postponed at the request of the petitioner.  The Building Department has received a 
request from the petitioner asking that this request be withdrawn. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Littman 
 
MOVED, to accept the withdrawal request of Item #7 - Sidney Frank, 1179 Maplelawn. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  BENNY SPIELMANN, 2963 INDUSTRIAL ROW, 
for relief of the Ordinance to construct a building addition and new parking lot with the 
parking lot right up to the front property line along Coolidge and within 5’ of the front 
property line along Industrial Row where Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that 
the 50’ front yard required in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District remain free of 
parking and maneuvering lanes.  Further, relief of the 10’ greenbelt required by Section 
39.70.02.  Finally, to have as little as 362 square feet of landscaping where Section 
39.70.04 requires a minimum of 3,993 square feet of landscaping. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a building addition and new parking lot on the site of an existing industrial building.  The 
plans show the construction of a new parking lot right up to the front property line along 
Coolidge and within 5’ of the front property line along Industrial Row.   Paragraph L of 
Section 31.30.00 requires that the 50’ front yard required in the M-1 (Light Industrial) 
Zoning District remain free of parking and maneuvering lanes.  Since these parking 
areas will be so close to the property lines, there is also no 10’ greenbelt as required by 
Section 39.70.02 shown on the plans. 
 
Further, Section 39.70.04 requires a minimum of 3,993 square feet of landscaping in 
addition to the 10’ greenbelt along the road frontage for a site this size.  The plans show 
only about 867 square feet of landscaping. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of May 16, 2006 and was 
postponed to this meeting to allow the petitioner the opportunity to present to the Board 
more detailed drawings indicating the exact location of the parking lot to Coolidge as 
well as to show the Board a landscape plan.  Since that meeting the Building 
Department has also received an alternate plan with a different parking/drive 
configuration.  The variances requested remain the same except for the amount of  

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
landscape area that would now be 362 square feet of landscaping where 3,993 square 
feet are required.  We have sent out new public hearing notices regarding the 
alternative plan so that the Board can consider either plan. 
 
Mr. Spielman was present and stated that they have addressed all of the issues that the 
Board asked them to at the last meeting.  Mr. Spielman said that they met with Mr. Ron 
Hynd, Landscape Analyst for the City of Troy and he has agreed to give them approval 
to put landscaping in on the City’s property.  The electrical poles are not on their 
property but also on City property.  Some of the Board members had concerns 
regarding parking on the Coolidge side, and they are now proposing to flip the parking 
so that the cars will face the building side and there will be landscaping along Coolidge.  
They have tried to address each concern and believe they are proposing a reasonable 
solution to justify this request.  This building will look much more attractive then it does 
now and will be an “architectural jewel” by the time they are finished with this area.  This 
is the first building heading northbound coming into the City of Troy and will fit in very 
nicely with this area. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the nature of this business was.  Mr. Spielman said that part 
of it would be a design showroom for natural stone products, and flooring services.  It 
will not be open to the public.  The other part of the building will be used as a 
warehouse where they will store the marble and granite slabs.  The front of it will be a 
“finished product warehouse.”  The difference between this location and the Design 
Center will be that they will deal mainly with builders, designers and architects.   
 
Mr. Littman asked if there was a possibility that they would not need as much parking as 
they are asking for.  Mr. Spielman said that was correct, but he has to comply with the 
code regarding the amount of square footage and the requirement for the number of 
parking spaces.  Mr. Littman said that there were possibilities for them to obtain a 
reduction in the number of parking spaces required.  Mr. Spielman said that they would 
like to have parking along Coolidge and plan to put the entrance to the building on the 
Coolidge side of the site. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked why they felt that this location was important to their business.  Mr. 
Spielman said that there are a lot of fabricators in the Troy area and the exposure to 
their business will increase.  Mr. Fejes also asked about the loading dock on the 
property.  Mr. Spielman said that they do not have a loading dock on the property now 
and would like to add one as a safety issue when they are unloading these slabs of 
stone.  Right now they load and /or unload in between the entry to the building and the 
parking.  A customer would have to walk around the truck or forklift to get into the 
building and this would create a hazard. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked why they had decreased the amount of landscaping in this request.  
Mr. Spielman said that they had lost some of the parking spaces because they flipped 
the parking away from Coolidge and toward the building.  They will lose greenspace at  

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
the rear of the property, but will gain some of this area back because they will be 
allowed to put landscaping on the City property.  They will maintain all of the 
landscaping that is put in. 
 
Mr. Littman asked what the hardship was.  Mr. Spielman said that basically it is the way 
the product is loaded and unloaded within the building right now.  They are not violating 
any codes by adding the addition, but will need more parking.  Mr. Littman asked what 
kind of trees would be put in this area.  Mr. Spielman said that they will put in whatever 
Mr. Hynd wants them to whether it be trees or deciduous evergreens. 
 
Mr. Littman asked if there were any plans to widen Coolidge and Mr. Stimac said that he 
not aware of any plans to widen Coolidge. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked about the property to the south and Mr. Spielman said that there is 
some wild vegetation along the cemetery and if the Board wanted he would be willing to 
put up a new fence or put ivy on the fence.  Mr. Spielman said that right now there are 
grape leaves and wild vegetation, but nothing very attractive in this area.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
A lady that was with the Oakland County Economic Development Group was present 
and stated that they have worked with Mr. Spielman and Mr. Pangborn on a number of 
projects and they definitely support this request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are two (2) written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked if the sidewalk was going to be moved at all.  Mr. Stimac said that he is 
not aware of any plans to move the sidewalk from its present location.   
 
Motion by Fejes 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Benny Spielmann, 2963 Industrial Row, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a building addition and new parking lot with the parking lot right up to the front 
property line along Coolidge and within 5’ of the front property line along Industrial Row 
where Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the 50’ front yard required in the 
M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District remain free of parking and maneuvering lanes.  
Further, relief of the 10’ greenbelt required by Section 39.70.02.  Finally, to have as little 
as 362 square feet of landscaping where Section 39.70.04 requires a minimum of 3,993 
square feet of landscaping. 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will increase safety issue for the public allowing the loading dock to be 

placed at the back of the building. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this petition. 

 
Ms. Lancaster suggested that this motion be amended to include a condition to the 
motion that the landscaping has to comply with whatever is required for landscaping on 
their property rather than City property.  This would enable Mr. Hynd to be able to 
enforce the type of landscaping that is put on the City property, and will protect the City 
property.  Ms. Lancaster also suggested that the motion include the condition that the 
landscaping would have to be maintained, not only by this owner, but also by 
subsequent owners of this property. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked Mr. Fejes and Ms. Gies if they would accept these amendments to 
their motion.  Both Mr. Fejes and Ms. Gies agreed. 
 
Amended Motion: 
 
MOVED, to grant Benny Spielmann, 2963 Industrial Row, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a building addition and new parking lot with the parking lot right up to the front 
property line along Coolidge and within 5’ of the front property line along Industrial Row 
where Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the 50’ front yard required in the 
M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District remain free of parking and maneuvering lanes.  
Further, relief of the 10’ greenbelt required by Section 39.70.02.  Finally, to have as little 
as 362 square feet of landscaping where Section 39.70.04 requires a minimum of 3,993 
square feet of landscaping. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will increase safety issue for the public allowing the loading dock to be 

placed at the back of the building. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this petition. 
• Landscaping shall be installed within the public right of way that is equal to the 

size and amount required by the Zoning Ordinance on the site.   
• This and any subsequent owners of this property must maintain landscaping in 

the City right of way. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Maxwell 
Nays:  1 – Littman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUEST. ANDRAOS & NANCY KATTOUAH, 3410 
ROCHESTER (proposed address), for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new gas 
station at the intersection of Charrington and Rochester Road that will result in a 24’ 
setback to the abutting property.  This property is in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning 
District and Section 31.30.00 requires a 75’ setback from any property line that abuts a 
residentially zoned district. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new gas station building at the northeast corner of the intersection of Charrington and 
Rochester Road.  Paragraph G of Section 31.30.00 requires a 75’ setback from any 
property line that abuts a residentially zoned district.  The property to the east (rear) of 
this site is in the R-1C (One-Family Residential) Zoning District.  The site plan submitted  
indicates a setback of only 24’ to this east property line and 56’ to the north property 
line. 
 
John DeBruyne, of SDA Architects was present and stated that one of the practical 
difficulties was that the property is land locked.  They have approached the owner of the 
property to the North and have attempted to purchase more property but that owner did 
not wish to sell any property.   Gas pumps occupy the allowable space that they can 
build on and they plan to leave those gas pumps in the same location. This convenience 
center would have been allowed to be constructed on this piece of the property, when it 
was zoned B-1 Zoning District, however now that the zoning has changed to H-S 
(Highway Service) a variance is required.  All they are looking to do is to expand the 
convenience store of their business. There will not be any maintenance garages.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they planned to sell the same items that they sell at this time.  Mr. 
DeBruyne said that was correct. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Littman 

MOVED, to grant Andraos & Nancy Kattouah, 3410 Rochester (proposed address), 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a new gas station at the intersection of Charrington 
and Rochester Road that will result in a 24’ setback to the abutting property.  This 
property is in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning District and Section 31.30.00 requires a 
75’ setback from any property line that abuts a residentially zoned district. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not cause an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will enable owner to have a viable business. 

 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 

• Expansion of Rochester Road has increased a hardship for this particular 
property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. DAVID MCLAUGHLIN, 1024 
MILVERTON, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a rear family room addition with a 
proposed 25’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 35’ minimum rear yard 
setback in the R-1E Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a family room addition on the rear of their home resulting in a 25’ rear yard 
setback.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 35’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1E Zoning 
Districts. 
  
Mr. Courtney asked about the floodplain indicated on this plot plan.  Mr. Stimac 
explained that the floodplain line is to the east of the property and goes up to the corner 
of the existing house.  Mr. Courtney asked if the addition would be in the floodplain and 
Mr. Stimac stated that if this variance is granted, the homeowners would need a permit 
from the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) before construction could begin. 
 
Mr. McLaughlin stated that this is the only area on the property that they could put this 
addition.  Because of the layout of the lot the front setback is 50’ rather than the 
required 25’. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Fejes 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. David McLaughlin, 1024 Milverton, a variance for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct a rear family room addition with a proposed 25’ rear yard 
setback.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 35’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1E 
Zoning District. 
 

• Irregular shape of lot and large front setback of the house creates a hardship 
with the property. 

• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 

• Property to the rear of this property is the Henry Graham Drain. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED  
 
ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JERRY ELLENICH & DAWN VILK, 5110 
DANIELS, for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition to their home, which is 
considered to be a legal non-conforming structure due to the fact that it has a 20.8’ front 
yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 40’ minimum front yard setback.  The 
site plan submitted indicates that the addition would have a 26’ front yard setback and  
Section 40.50.04 prohibits expansions of non-conforming structures in a way that 
increases the non-conformity. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition to their home.  The plot plan submitted indicates the existing 
house has a 20.8’ front yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 40’ minimum 
front yard setback.  The structure therefore is a legal non-conforming structure. 
 
The plans for the proposed addition indicate that the addition would have a 26’ front 
yard setback.  Section 40.50.04 prohibits expansions of non-conforming structures in a 
way that increases the non-conformity. 
 
In June 2000 this Board granted these petitioners a variance to construct a second floor 
addition over the existing home with the 20.8’ front yard setback, and a variance for a 
first floor addition with a 26’ front yard setback.   The proposed addition will continue this 
26’ front yard setback. 
 
Ms. Dawn Vilk was present and stated that they had received a variance before and 
they would like to take down the existing garage and would construct a larger garage 
and a recreation room. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Gies 
 
 
 
 
 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Moved, to grant Jerry Ellenich and Dawn Vilk, 5110 Daniels a variance for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition to their home, which is considered to be a legal non-
conforming structure due to the fact that it has a 20.8’ front yard setback where Section 
30.10.02 requires a 40’ minimum front yard setback.  The site plan submitted indicates 
that the addition would have a 26’ front yard setback and Section 40.50.04 prohibits 
expansions of non-conforming structures in a way that increases the non-conformity. 
 

• Variance will not increase the setback and meets the requirements for a 
variance request. 

• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 

ITEM #12 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DAVID DYER, 3783 WAYFARER, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of his home that will result with a 
proposed 35’-10” rear yard setback where Section 30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum 
rear yard setback in R-1C Zoning Districts. 

Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
an addition on the rear of his home.  The site plan submitted indicates a family room 
addition with a proposed 35’-10” rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.04 requires a 40’ 
minimum rear yard setback in R-1C Zoning Districts. 

Mr. & Mrs. David Dyer were present and stated that the main hardship with this property 
is the fact that they have an irregular shaped lot.  Mr. Dyer stated that he had attempted 
to put the addition as far to the east side of the house as he could in order to get the 
largest rear yard setback.  The opposite side of the addition would have a 36’-4” rear 
yard setback.  To put the addition on the other side of the house, they would have to 
remove a couple of mature trees.  Mr. Dyer said that they have lost a number of trees 
because they were Ash trees, and he would like to preserve the remaining mature elm 
trees. 

Ms. Dyer said that they have received approval from the neighbors on either side of 
their home, as well as from the Homeowner’s Association.  These were attached to the 
original application. 

There is one (1) additional approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 

The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 

 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 

Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 

MOVED, to grant David Dyer, 3783 Wayfarer, a variance for relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition on the rear of his home that will result with a proposed 35’-10” rear 
yard setback where Section 30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1C 
Zoning Districts. 
  

• Irregular shape of lot creates a hardship. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not establish a prohibited used in a Zoning District. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to take Item #15 out of order as Items #13 and #14 may take an inordinate 
amount of time. 
 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO TAKE ITEM #15 OUT OF ORDER CARRIED 
 
ITEM #15 (Taken out of Order) – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SUNNY KAWENSKI, 
REPRESENTING NYKEL MANAGEMENT, 2362 GOLFVIEW, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a carport adjacent to the north property line with a 0’ setback.  
Section 40.57.00 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback for accessory structures in 
the RM-1 Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new carport.  This carport will replace and existing carport that was damaged by a 
vehicle.  The site plan submitted indicates replacement of carports adjacent to the north 
property line with a 0’ setback.  Section 40.57.00 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard 
setback for accessory structures in the RM-1 Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stanley Frankel was present and thanked the Board for hearing his request.  Mr. 
Frankel stated that a truck ran into the stanchion to the existing carport.  Mr. Frankel 
said that this structure was put up 38 years ago and they are asking for a variance to 
replace it. 
 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #15 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Littman 
 
MOVED, to grant Stanley Frankel, representing Nykel Management, 2362 Golfview, a 
variance for relief of the Ordinance to construct a carport adjacent to the north property 
line with a 0’ setback.  Section 40.57.00 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback for 
accessory structures in the RM-1 Zoning Districts. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Carport has been in the same location for 38 years. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 

ITEM #13 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DENVER ASSOCIATES, 1010 NAUGHTON, for 
relief of the Ordinance to expand an existing parking lot that will be within 14’ of Acacia 
and within 23’-7” of Naughton where Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the 
50’ front yard setback required by Section 30.20.09 be free of parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to expand 
an existing parking lot.  This property is located within the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning 
District.  Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the 50’ front yard setback 
required by Section 30.20.09 be free of parking.  The plans submitted indicate that the 
parking lot is being expanded to within 14’ of Acacia and within 23’-7” of Naughton.  The 
Board heard a similar request in June of 2005.  The petitioner ultimately withdrew that 
request. 
 
Mr. Hutson informed Mr. LaFave that he had the opportunity to postpone this request 
until the next meeting to give him the opportunity of a full Board.  Mr. LaFave stated that 
he wanted this request heard at this meeting. 
 
Mr. Mark LaFave of Denver Associates was present.  Mr. LaFave stated that they 
appeared before this Board at the June 2005 meeting with basically the same request, 
and it was suggested that he withdraw his request until he had a tenant that would be 
interested in leasing this building.  Mr. LaFave said that they have a perspective tenant 
that is interested in leasing this space. 
 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked what type of company this was.  Mr. LaFave said that it is a 
computer related service company, which is presently located in Madison Heights and 
wishes to relocate to Troy.  This service would include software, hardware and support 
to a variety of automotive manufacturers. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 

Mr. Hutson said that he did not see a physical hardship with the lot and in his opinion 
the building looks like it is too large for the property.  Mr. LaFave stated that the 
hardship is the fact that the building has 11’ ceilings and this makes it very difficult to 
lease, as it is in a Light Industrial Zoning District.  They have changed the entire look of 
the building but the hardship is the low ceiling.  Mr. Hutson said that the Board looks for 
a hardship that runs with the land. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked why they were requesting the additional parking.  Mr. LaFave stated 
that the prospective tenant is looking to move their business to Troy and they have 
asked for additional parking.  Mr. Maxwell asked how many employees work for this 
company and Mr. LaFave said he had been told that there were 35 employees.  Mr. 
LaFave also stated that presently there are around 45 available parking spots. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked for a clarification on why the extra spaces were needed and asked 
how many customers will come to this location.  Mr. LaFave said that they do not have 
any customers that come to their location.  They go to the customers in service trucks.  
This is not a retail business. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if they could reconfigure their parking so they would not require the 
twelve (12) spots they are asking for.  Mr. LaFave said that he would have to talk to Mr. 
Stimac regarding the setback requirement.   
 
Mr. LaFave said that they cannot park on the north side of the building, because of a 
drive way and a catch basin.  The previous tenant was parallel parking in this area, and 
he has been told that parking in this area is not permissible.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that he has not investigated the records himself on this, however, based 
on what the petitioner has stated regarding parallel parking on the north side of the 
building, the placement of new parking spaces there would require a setback variance.  
In Mr. Stimac’s opinion, it does not appear that the existing driveway has enough width 
to have a row of parallel parking as well as a two-way driveway. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked why this petitioner was before the Board asking for a variance for 
parking spaces.  Mr. Stimac said that at this time, the Building Department has not 
reviewed the plans for the alteration of the interior of this building.  At the industrial rate,  

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

 
ITEM #13 – con’t. 
 
30 parking spaces are required for a 15,000 square foot building.  Existing parking right 
now is right around 30.  If this new tenant has a larger percentage of office use than 
25% of the building, additional parking would be required.  If a 15,000 square foot 
building was100% office, it would require 60 parking spaces.  Mr. Stimac said that they 
have not seen the proposed plans for this tenant, so he is unable to say whether or not 
extra parking will be required.   
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the lease proposal with this perspective tenant has an 
expiration date on it of June 16th, which would make it void.  Mr. Courtney also stated 
that it sounds like this building would be used for office only rather than industrial use.  
Mr. LaFave said that they have an industrial use also and they have requested forty-five 
(45) spaces.  They will probably submit formal plans after they sign a lease. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that there is nothing wrong with a lease being signed with a condition 
put on it.  Mr. Hutson also said that he is very uncomfortable with granting a variance 
tonight, as he is not sure of what the use of this building would be.  Mr. Hutson also 
suggested that he go back to the perspective tenant to find out if the proposed use 
would be suitable with this area. 
 
Mr. LaFave said that he thought a variance would still be required as more parking 
would be required than what is presently on the site.  Mr. LaFave also said that he 
would talk to the tenant to find out exactly what their needs will be. 
 
Mr. LaFave asked if he could postpone this request until the meeting of July. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Denver Associates, 1010 Naughton, for relief of the 
Ordinance to expand an existing parking lot that will be within 14’ of Acacia and within 
23’-7” of Naughton where Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the 50’ front 
yard setback required by Section 30.20.09 be free of parking, until the meeting of July 
18, 2006. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to meet with his tenant to determine 
exactly how this building will be used, and how much parking will be required. 

 
Yeas:  All – 6 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL JULY 18, 2006 CARRIED 
 

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

Mr. Maxwell also suggested that the petitioner may be able to determine if a lesser 
variance would be required, or if some of the parking could be moved to the rear of the 
building. 

ITEM #14 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SAIF JAMEEL, 3031 CROOKS ROAD, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct a new commercial building with a drive up window 
accessory to a restaurant use proposed in the building.  Section 23.25.01 of the Troy 
Zoning Ordinance requires a site that is at least one acre in size in order to have a 
drive-up window facility in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning District.  This site is made 
up of two separate parcels that total only .53 acres in size. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new commercial building.  A majority of this property is located within the H-S 
(Highway Service) Zoning District.  The plans submitted indicate that the development 
will include a drive up window accessory to a restaurant use proposed in the building.  
Section 23.25.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a site that is at least one acre 
in size in order to have a drive-up window facility in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning 
District.  This site is made up of two separate parcels that total only .53 acres in size.  
The Board denied a similar request in April of 2006.  This request is different in that the 
current plan eliminates the connecting drive with the property to the north. 
 
Mr. Joe Rogowski and Mr. Jameel were present.  Mr. Rogowski asked to have this 
request postponed until the meeting of July 18, 2006. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated in his opinion that this is an item brought before this Board as an item 
for reconsideration and he did not agree that the request was different than the previous 
request denied by this Board.  A discussion ensued regarding the fact that one of the  
Board’s main concern was the traffic flow and Mr. Stimac felt the elimination of the cross 
access drive, made this request different than the last request.  Mr. Hutson stated that 
there was not a signed agreement with the owner to the north regarding a cross access 
drive, therefore in his opinion this was the same request. 
 
Ms. Lancaster said that Mr. Stimac perceived this request as different from the previous 
request, and this is the reason it is before the Board and it is on the agenda due to Mr. 
Stimac’s discretion.  Mr. Hutson agreed.   
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Maxwell 

MOVED, to postpone the request of Saif Jameel, 3031 Crooks Road, until the meeting 
of July 18, 2006, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new commercial building with 
a drive up window accessory to a restaurant use proposed in the building.  Section 
23.25.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a site that is at least one acre in size in 
order to have a drive-up window facility in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning District.  
This site is made up of two separate parcels that total only .53 acres in size. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                                  JUNE 20, 2006 

ITEM #14 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Gies, Hutson, Littman, Maxwell 
Nays:  2 – Gies, Fejes 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL JULY 18, 2006 CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac pointed out to the Board that changes have occurred regarding Planning and 
Zoning.  These changes do not affect the Board members as much as administrative 
staff. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:58 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
              
     Michael Hutson, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 

 17



DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES FINAL JUNE 21, 2006 
 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Thursday, June 21, 
2006 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan. Alan Kiriluk called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 
 
 
 
PRESENT:    Stuart Frankel 

David Hay 
Michele Hodges 
Alan Kiriluk 
Daniel MacLeish 
Ernest Reschke 
Louise Schilling 
Douglas Schroeder 
Harvey Weiss 
G. Thomas York (departed 8:51 a.m.) 

 
 
ABSENT:      Michael Culpepper 

William Kennis 
Carol Price 

 
 

ALSO PRESENT:   John M. Lamerato 
Brian Murphy 
Lori Bluhm 
Mark Miller 

 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-26 
Moved by:   Hodges 
Seconded by:  MacLeish 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the June 1, 2006 regular meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:     All (10) 
Absent:    Culpepper, Kennis, Price 
 
 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
A.  Big Beaver Corridor Study
 
Rodney L. Arroyo of Birchler Arroyo Associates, Inc. reviewed the final draft of the 
Big Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-27 
Moved by:   Schilling 
Seconded by:  Hodges 
 
RESOLVED, That the DDA Board endorse and embrace the key concepts of the Big 
Beaver Corridor Study. 
 
Yeas:     All (10) 
Absent:    Culpepper, Kennis, Price 
 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-28 
Moved by:   Schilling 
Seconded by:  Weiss 
 
RESOLVED, That the next steps in moving the study forward is to meet and make 
presentations to City Council, Planning Commission, Chamber of Commerce, Road 
Commission and stakeholders. 
 
Yeas:     All (10) 
Absent:    Culpepper, Kennis, Price 
 
 
B.  Bylaw Change – Quorum Language
 
The Board felt this was an onerous provision to require a majority of the entire DDA 
membership to approve resolutions. There could be some support for certain types 
of action items such as (bond issues, plan revisions, etc.) of City Council’s provision. 
 
 
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:   DD-06-29 
Moved by:   Weiss 
Seconded by:  Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That Culpepper, Kennis and Price be excused. 



 
Yeas:    All (9) 
Absent:   Culpepper, Kennis, Price, York 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
One visitor in attendance addressed the Board. 
 
MEMBER COMMENT 
 
One member addressed the Board. 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:58 a.m. 
 
 
Next Meeting: July 19, 2006 @ 7:30 a.m. @ Lower Level Conference Room, City 
Hall. 
 
 
 

________________________________________ 
Alan Kiriluk, Chair 

 
 

________________________________________ 
John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01g























PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on June 27, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Fazal Khan 
Mary Kerwin David T. Waller 
Lawrence Littman Wayne Wright 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-06-109 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by:  Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan, Waller and Wright are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
  
Yes:  All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-06-110 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the revised Agenda.  
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
For the June 13, 2006 Regular Meeting minutes, Mr. Vleck suggested revised 
language for his reasons for voting ‘No’ on Resolution # PC-2006-06-105: “Mr. 
Vleck stated that requiring all three criteria in Section 43.74.01 is too restrictive, and 
he does not agree that standard A and B should be required at all.  In his opinion, 
Section 43.74.01 C, relating to the location and screening available on the 
residential site to park a commercial vehicle, is the only standard that should be 
required for approval”. 
 
For the June 13, 2006 Regular Meeting minutes, Mr. Schultz suggested that the 
condition of Resolution # PC-2006-06-102 was intended to say “Inclusion of an 
access drive for the City to maintain the storm water detention pond”.  The language 
should be revised to read as such.  
 
Resolution # PC-2006-06-111 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 6, 2006 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published and the June 13, 2006 Regular Meeting minutes as revised. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING (BZA) APPEALS REPORT 
 
Mr. Littman attended the Board of Zoning Appeals meeting on June 20, 2006, as 
the Planning Commission Alternate Representative.  Mr. Littman reported on a 
variance application submitted by Benny Spielman regarding an addition to an 
industrial building located at 2963 Industrial Row. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller made a brief report.  General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller made a brief report.  General discussion followed. 
 
 

8. TROY TRANSIT CENTER 
 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services, made a presentation on the history 
of the project located south of Maple Road and west of Coolidge in Section 31.  Mr. 
Murphy indicated that construction must begin on the complex before 2010, or the 
ownership reverts back to the owner of Midtown Square.  Mr. Murphy indicated that 
it is intended that the complex will be multi-modal and LEED-certified. 
 

 
9. PROPOSED CONSENT JUDGMENT – Briggs Crossing Condominium – West side 

of Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the site plan and Consent Judgment.  General 
discussion followed.  
 
A number of issues were raised by the Planning Commission: 
 
 Lack of trees or berm along northern property line to screen headlights of 

northbound cars using drive.  
 Lack of trees along southern property at termination of entry drive.  
 Need a vehicular barrier along northern property line. 
 Lack of floor plans for units. 
 Lack of notification for neighbors. 

 
The attorney for the Plaintiff, David Plunkett of Williams, Williams, Rattner & 
Plunkett, P.C., Birmingham, Michigan, reminded the Planning Commission that they 
recommended approval of the rezoning request twice in the future, following public 
hearings. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-06-112 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission would only recommend approval of the site 
plan subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Provide an 8-foot high vegetative barrier or combination of vegetation and berm 

along the north side of the property, from the west side of the garage to the west 
side of the north/south private road. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Yes:  Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat 
No: Vleck 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck stated the Planning Commission should have a finished site plan in front 
of them prior to making a recommendation. 

 
 
10. PROPOSED CONSENT JUDGMENT – Restated and Amended Consent Judgment 

K-Mart/Sheffield 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Restated and Amended Consent Judgment 
K-Mart/Sheffield.  General discussion followed. 
 
John J. Premo of K-Mart Corporation was in attendance to answer questions about 
the application. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-06-113 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission recommends approval of the amendment 
to the Consent Judgment as set forth on proposed Exhibit D.  Furthermore, that an 
exact determination of required parking be made and the area not needed for 
parking be used for green space. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

11. MICHIGAN ZONING ENABLING ACT, PA 110 of 2006 
 
Assistant City Attorney Allan Motzny made a presentation on the Michigan Zoning 
Enabling Act, PA 110 of 2006.  The Act will be effective on July 1, 2006.  General 
discussion followed.  There was general consensus that a public hearing be 
scheduled for this item at the August 2006 Regular meeting. 
 
 

12. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN 
 
Mr. Miller presented the Proposal for Master Plan prepared by Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc.  To reduce project cost, the work plan transfers some of the 
mapping and data collection workload to the Planning Department.  The proposed 
project cost is $99,780.  General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-06-114 
 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, The responsibility of cities and villages to adopt and update a master 
plan is outlined in the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended.   
 
WHEREAS, The Municipal Planning Act requires that at least 5 years after the 
adoption of a plan, a municipality shall review the plan and determine whether to 
commence the procedure or adopt a new plan.   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Future Land Use Plan was last amended on January 
8, 2002.  The determination of whether to update the plan or adopt a new plan must 
be made prior to January 8, 2007.   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Planning Commission passed Resolution # PC-2005-
05-091 on May 24, 2005, which found that the Future Land Use Plan is deficient 
and in need of a comprehensive update, and recommended that the City begin the 
process of preparing the City of Troy Master Plan.  
 
WHEREAS, On April 18, 2005, the City of Troy entered into an Agreement for 
Consulting Services with Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  Under this contract, 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. provides Planning Consultation, including Special 
Projects such as Master Plan Preparation.  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission recommends that the 
City utilize the services of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. to assist the City in 
preparation of the City of Troy Master Plan, as per the Proposal to Provide 
Professional Services, Master Plan Preparation, Revised June, 2006. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

13. DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT - 
Improving design and strengthening the relationship of freestanding restaurants, 
day care centers and banks with the abutting street 
 
Mr. Savidant presented draft language and explained that when completed, these 
provisions would be applied to freestanding restaurants and nursery schools, day 
nurseries and child care centers in the O-M and O-S-C Zoning Districts and 
freestanding restaurants, banks, bank branches and financial institutions, and 
nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers in the R-C Zoning District.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

The intent of the language was to strengthen the relationship between the street 
and the buildings on the site and require that the design of the new buildings be 
compatible to or complementary with the existing office building.  General 
discussion followed and minor changes were suggested.  There was general 
consensus that a public hearing be scheduled for this item at the August 2006 
Regular meeting. 
 
 

14. DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT - 
Commercial Kennels and Pet Shops 
 
Mr. Miller explained some of the issues associated with pet shops/pet stores and 
commercial kennels in Troy.  General discussion followed.  The Planning 
Commission suggested the following: 
 
 Improve definition for commercial kennel; differentiate between inventory and 

boarding. 
 Provide definition for non-commercial boarding of more than 3 household 

pets. 
 Add definitions for pet store and pet shop. 
 Reduce potential impacts by allowing no open-air connection between indoor 

dog run and abutting property. 
 Define uses that are customarily incidental to pet stores. 

 
 

15. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items On the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 11:05 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner  
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\06-27-06 Special Study Meeting_Draftl.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on June 27, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Fazal Khan 
Mary Kerwin David T. Waller 
Lawrence Littman Wayne Wright 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-06-109 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by:  Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan, Waller and Wright are excused from attendance 
at this meeting for personal reasons. 
  
Yes:  All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-06-110 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the revised Agenda.  
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
For the June 13, 2006 Regular Meeting minutes, Mr. Vleck suggested revised 
language for his reasons for voting ‘No’ on Resolution # PC-2006-06-105: “Mr. 
Vleck stated that requiring all three criteria in Section 43.74.01 is too restrictive, and 
he does not agree that standard A and B should be required at all.  In his opinion, 
Section 43.74.01 C, relating to the location and screening available on the 
residential site to park a commercial vehicle, is the only standard that should be 
required for approval”. 
 
For the June 13, 2006 Regular Meeting minutes, Mr. Schultz suggested that the 
condition of Resolution # PC-2006-06-102 was intended to say “Inclusion of an 
access drive for the City to maintain the storm water detention pond”.  The language 
should be revised to read as such.  
 
Resolution # PC-2006-06-111 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 6, 2006 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published and the June 13, 2006 Regular Meeting minutes as revised. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING (BZA) APPEALS REPORT 
 
Mr. Littman attended the Board of Zoning Appeals meeting on June 20, 2006, as 
the Planning Commission Alternate Representative.  Mr. Littman reported on a 
variance application submitted by Benny Spielman regarding an addition to an 
industrial building located at 2963 Industrial Row. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller made a brief report.  General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller made a brief report.  General discussion followed. 
 
 

8. TROY TRANSIT CENTER 
 
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services, made a presentation on the history 
of the project located south of Maple Road and west of Coolidge in Section 31.  Mr. 
Murphy indicated that construction must begin on the complex before 2010, or the 
ownership reverts back to the owner of Midtown Square.  Mr. Murphy indicated that 
it is intended that the complex will be multi-modal and LEED-certified. 
 

 
9. PROPOSED CONSENT JUDGMENT – Briggs Crossing Condominium – West side 

of Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the site plan and Consent Judgment.  General 
discussion followed.  
 
A number of issues were raised by the Planning Commission: 
 
 Lack of trees or berm along northern property line to screen headlights of 

northbound cars using drive.  
 Lack of trees along southern property at termination of entry drive.  
 Need a vehicular barrier along northern property line. 
 Lack of floor plans for units. 
 Lack of notification for neighbors. 

 
The attorney for the Plaintiff, David Plunkett of Williams, Williams, Rattner & 
Plunkett, P.C., Birmingham, Michigan, reminded the Planning Commission that they 
recommended approval of the rezoning request twice in the future, following public 
hearings. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-06-112 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Drake-Batts 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission would only recommend approval of the site 
plan subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Provide an 8-foot high vegetative barrier or combination of vegetation and berm 

along the north side of the property, from the west side of the garage to the west 
side of the north/south private road. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Yes:  Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat 
No: Vleck 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck stated the Planning Commission should have a finished site plan in front 
of them prior to making a recommendation. 

 
 
10. PROPOSED CONSENT JUDGMENT – Restated and Amended Consent Judgment 

K-Mart/Sheffield 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Restated and Amended Consent Judgment 
K-Mart/Sheffield.  General discussion followed. 
 
John J. Premo of K-Mart Corporation was in attendance to answer questions about 
the application. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-06-113 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission recommends approval of the amendment 
to the Consent Judgment as set forth on proposed Exhibit D.  Furthermore, that an 
exact determination of required parking be made and the area not needed for 
parking be used for green space. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

11. MICHIGAN ZONING ENABLING ACT, PA 110 of 2006 
 
Assistant City Attorney Allan Motzny made a presentation on the Michigan Zoning 
Enabling Act, PA 110 of 2006.  The Act will be effective on July 1, 2006.  General 
discussion followed.  There was general consensus that a public hearing be 
scheduled for this item at the August 2006 Regular meeting. 
 
 

12. CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN 
 
Mr. Miller presented the Proposal for Master Plan prepared by Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc.  To reduce project cost, the work plan transfers some of the 
mapping and data collection workload to the Planning Department.  The proposed 
project cost is $99,780.  General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-06-114 
 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
WHEREAS, The responsibility of cities and villages to adopt and update a master 
plan is outlined in the Municipal Planning Act, PA 285 of 1931, as amended.   
 
WHEREAS, The Municipal Planning Act requires that at least 5 years after the 
adoption of a plan, a municipality shall review the plan and determine whether to 
commence the procedure or adopt a new plan.   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Future Land Use Plan was last amended on January 
8, 2002.  The determination of whether to update the plan or adopt a new plan must 
be made prior to January 8, 2007.   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Planning Commission passed Resolution # PC-2005-
05-091 on May 24, 2005, which found that the Future Land Use Plan is deficient 
and in need of a comprehensive update, and recommended that the City begin the 
process of preparing the City of Troy Master Plan.  
 
WHEREAS, On April 18, 2005, the City of Troy entered into an Agreement for 
Consulting Services with Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  Under this contract, 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. provides Planning Consultation, including Special 
Projects such as Master Plan Preparation.  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission recommends that the 
City utilize the services of Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. to assist the City in 
preparation of the City of Troy Master Plan, as per the Proposal to Provide 
Professional Services, Master Plan Preparation, Revised June, 2006. 
 
Yes:  All present (6) 
No: None 
Absent:  Khan, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

13. DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT - 
Improving design and strengthening the relationship of freestanding restaurants, 
day care centers and banks with the abutting street 
 
Mr. Savidant presented draft language and explained that when completed, these 
provisions would be applied to freestanding restaurants and nursery schools, day 
nurseries and child care centers in the O-M and O-S-C Zoning Districts and 
freestanding restaurants, banks, bank branches and financial institutions, and 
nursery schools, day nurseries and child care centers in the R-C Zoning District.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 27, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

The intent of the language was to strengthen the relationship between the street 
and the buildings on the site and require that the design of the new buildings be 
compatible to or complementary with the existing office building.  General 
discussion followed and minor changes were suggested.  There was general 
consensus that a public hearing be scheduled for this item at the August 2006 
Regular meeting. 
 
 

14. DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT - 
Commercial Kennels and Pet Shops 
 
Mr. Miller explained some of the issues associated with pet shops/pet stores and 
commercial kennels in Troy.  General discussion followed.  The Planning 
Commission suggested the following: 
 
 Improve definition for commercial kennel; differentiate between inventory and 

boarding. 
 Provide definition for non-commercial boarding of more than 3 household 

pets. 
 Add definitions for pet store and pet shop. 
 Reduce potential impacts by allowing no open-air connection between indoor 

dog run and abutting property. 
 Define uses that are customarily incidental to pet stores. 

 
 

15. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items On the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 11:05 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner  
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\06-27-06 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on July 11, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Fazal Khan 
Mary Kerwin  Wayne Wright 
Lawrence Littman  
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat  
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-115 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan and Wright are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-116 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes: All (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
POSTPONED ITEM 

 
4. STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 134-B) - Cherry Street, East of Livernois, 

approximately 173 feet abutting Lots 6 and 7, Greenough Heights Subdivision, East 
of Livernois, South of I-75, Section 27 – Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E 
(One Family Residential) Districts (the abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Miller explained that the applicants for the street vacation request are Elerious 
and Pricilla King and James and Cheryl Klemanski, who abut the subject right-of-
way on the south and north, respectively.  Mr. King passed away in January and 
Mrs. King is now experiencing health problems.  The applicants have been unable 
to determine how to proceed with this item.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Mr. Schultz indicated he would not vote for a postponement of the item at a future 
meeting because the item has been in front of the Planning Commission a number 
of times.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-117 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to the 
October 2006 Regular Planning Commission meeting.  
 
Yes: All (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 117-C) – Proposed Private 
School, Proposed St. Mark Christian Academy at St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church, 
West side of Livernois, South of Kirk Lane (3603 Livernois), Section 21 – R-1B 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a report on the item. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he visited the site that afternoon and saw three dumpsters in the 
western parking lot.  He indicated that two of the dumpsters were unscreened. 
 
Father Mina Essak, 1833 Freemont, Troy, was present to represent St. Mark Coptic 
Orthodox Church.  Fr. Essak said there are two dumpsters on site, one of which is 
enclosed.  He indicated the second dumpster, which was removed from its 
enclosure to the east to accommodate construction of the entry drive and parking 
lot, would be returned to its original location upon construction completion.  Fr. 
Essak said the third dumpster to which Mr. Schultz referred is not a dumpster but a 
container used for church fundraising. 
 
Mr. Schultz stated there were three dumpsters located at the back of the property. 
 
Father Maximus Habib, 3415 Crooks, Troy, was present to represent St. Mark 
Coptic Orthodox Church.  Fr. Habib said there are three dumpsters and indicated a 
pad and enclosure would be constructed for the third dumpster in the near future.   
 
Mr. Miller clarified a container used for recycling newspapers is considered a 
dumpster under the Zoning Ordinance and must be screened. 
 
Mr. Littman asked the petitioner to address timing inconsistencies with respect to 
what is constructed and what is improved. 
 
Fr. Habib said the only construction remaining were the approach and the asphalt, 
which would be completed within two weeks. 
 
Chair Strat addressed the approach to the dumpster, and indicated the site plan 
notation specifies the approach is 5 foot wide. 
 
Fr. Habib said the approach to the dumpster would be 20 feet wide. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked if it was possible for the Planning Commission to ask the Building 
Department to provide a list of all violations on the property prior to approving the 
application. 
 
Mr. Miller replied that would be a reasonable request. 
 
Chair Strat addressed the existing day care facility as relates to Zoning Ordinance 
requirements. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Vleck sought clarification on whether the day care facility and school were 
presently in operation.   
 
Fr. Habib responded in the affirmative.  He indicated they had received temporary 
approval.  Fr. Habib said they did not want to construct the drive and parking lot 
until the buildings on the property were completed. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked the Assistant City Attorney if a private school that did not receive 
Special Use Approval and is presently operating would be in violation of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Motzny responded in the affirmative. 
 
Ms. Kerwin asked if the Traffic Engineer approved the design.  She expressed 
concern with the safety of automobiles entering and exiting the site.  
 
Mr. Miller replied that the City Engineer waived the requirement for a deceleration 
lane.  He indicated the site is too narrow for a second drive. 
 
Fr. Habib said the house to the north is higher than the church property and a 
deceleration lane would require an excessively steep driveway.  He further stated 
the church entry drive had been widened and the slope of the drive had been 
reduced.  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Rita Momin of 3631 Cherished View, Troy, was present.  Ms. Momin addressed the 
distance of the school to her house and a concern that church visitors would 
trespass her property.  She also stated the church does not maintain the 
landscaped berm.  
 
John Shepperd of 278 Kirk Lane, Troy, was present.  Mr. Shepperd said some 
church visitors park on Kirk Lane and walk to the church.  He hopes that Ruthland, 
which stubs at the church property, would not be opened in the future. 
 
Krishna Patel of 3615 Cherished Lane, Troy, was present.  Ms. Patel expressed 
concern with traffic dropping off children in the morning.  She said turning left onto 
Livernois would be difficult and dangerous. 
 
Kurtis Wishart of 387 Kirk Lane, Troy, was present.  Mr. Wishart expressed concern 
with the number of children attending the day care facility and school. 
 
Joseph Martin of 409 Kirk Lane, Troy, was present.  Mr. Martin expressed concern 
with the lack of green space between the church and surrounding property to serve 
as a buffer zone.  He also addressed the lack of playground space on the property. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Howayda Messiha of 42200 Malbeck, Sterling Heights, was present.  Ms. Messiha, 
who has two children in the day care facility, said she never parks in the street.    
 
Susan Tawfek of 8313 Hickory Drive, Sterling Heights, was present.  Ms. Tawfek 
said she would like the school to be opened as soon as possible. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Mr. Littman stated the applicant needs the approval requirements to catch up with 
what is developed.  
 
Mr. Waller expressed concern with the number of Zoning Ordinance deficiencies on 
site. 
 
Chair Strat expressed concern with the landscaping and the size of the day care 
facility. 
 
Mr. Schultz stated he is concerned that the school will operate without approval as 
the day care facility has done for three years. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-118 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 10.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed private school, located at St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church, on the west 
side of Livernois Road, south of Wattles Road, located in Section 21, within the R-
1B zoning district, is hereby postponed for 30 days to allow the petitioner, their 
architect and City Staff time to make the site legal based on what is there today and 
what has been approved, to bring the site into compliance. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts stated that it appears the applicant has been working with the City, 
and on the advice of the City, to move forward with the project. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

STREET VACATION 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 148-C) – Daley Street, 
South of Big Beaver, East of Rochester Road, abutting Lots 28 and 33 of 
Supervisor's Plat No. 11 Subdivision, Section 26 – Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District (the abutting parcels) 
 
Chair Strat requested that Mr. Miller present a brief report on the item.  There was 
an error with the legal description for the proposed vacation.  The applicants did not 
intend to vacate the street in front of 2835 Daley Street.  The applicant submitted a 
faxed letter requesting postponement to the August 2006 Regular meeting to 
provide them with time to revise the application.  Furthermore, the Public Hearing 
must be re-advertised. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Robert Easterly, attorney for the owners of 2835 Daley, was present.  Mr. Easterly 
requested postponement of the item to the September 12, 2006 Regular meeting.  
He indicated his client would be unable to attend the August Regular meeting. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-119 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones the item to the 
September 2006 Regular meeting to allow all parties to be represented. 
 
Yes: All (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED  

 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 514-B) – Existing Industrial Building Proposed Training 

Center, Southwest Corner of Crooks and Maplelawn (2107 Crooks Road), Section 29, 
M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a report on the item. 
 
Mr. Waller asked why the cross access easement was removed from the property. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Miller replied the cross access easement remains in place but a notation of such 
was inadvertently omitted from the site plan.  
 
Glenn DeSimone of Prime Design Systems, 2397 Old Kent Road, Warren, was 
present.  Mr. DeSimone provided a brief description of the proposed project and 
building operation.  He indicated their intent to keep the cross access on the property. 
 
Mr. Littman asked if they would be seeking LEED certification for the project. 
 
Mr. DeSimone replied it was too early in the development process to make a 
determination, but indicated LEED certification would be a considered.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-120 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant has provided one hundred ten (110) parking spaces and 
has provided a statement indicating that the maximum parking demand generated 
by the Proposed Training Center shall be fifty-five (55) spaces. 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces to one hundred ten (110) when a total of 
one hundred ninety (190) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street 
parking space requirements for office and conference room, as per Article XL.  This 
reduction meets the standards of Article 40.20.12. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The existing cross access easement shall be shown 
on the site plan. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for 
the Existing Industrial Building Proposed Training Center, located on the southwest 
corner of Crooks and Maplelawn (2107 Crooks Road), located in Section 29, on 
approximately 2.65 acres, within the M-1 zoning districts, is hereby granted. 
 
Yes: All (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Miller announced that the elections in August and November conflict with Planning 
Commission meetings.  After discussing this issue with the Chair and Vice Chair, it was 
determined that the August 8, 2006 Regular meeting would be held at the Library Meeting 
Room.  The Planning Commission must determine where to hold the November 7, 2006 
Special/Study meeting. 
 
Mr. Miller announced there would be a Special City Council meeting on July 24, 2006 at 
6:00 p.m. for a presentation of the Big Beaver Corridor Study by Birchler/Arroyo 
Associates, Inc.  Birchler/Arroyo Associates, Inc. will also make a presentation to the 
Planning Commission at the August 22, 2006 Special/Study meeting.  Richard Carlisle will 
also be in attendance at this meeting. 
 
Chair Strat stated the entire meeting on August 22 should be dedicated to the Big Beaver 
Corridor presentation. 
 
Ms. Kerwin concurred with Chair Strat. 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:06 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\07-11-06 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on July 11, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lynn Drake-Batts Fazal Khan 
Mary Kerwin  Wayne Wright 
Lawrence Littman  
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat  
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
 
Also Present: 
Mark Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-115 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Khan and Wright are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-116 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted. 
 
Yes: All (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
POSTPONED ITEM 

 
4. STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 134-B) - Cherry Street, East of Livernois, 

approximately 173 feet abutting Lots 6 and 7, Greenough Heights Subdivision, East 
of Livernois, South of I-75, Section 27 – Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E 
(One Family Residential) Districts (the abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Miller explained that the applicants for the street vacation request are Elerious 
and Pricilla King and James and Cheryl Klemanski, who abut the subject right-of-
way on the south and north, respectively.  Mr. King passed away in January and 
Mrs. King is now experiencing health problems.  The applicants have been unable 
to determine how to proceed with this item.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Mr. Schultz indicated he would not vote for a postponement of the item at a future 
meeting because the item has been in front of the Planning Commission a number 
of times.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-117 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to the 
October 2006 Regular Planning Commission meeting.  
 
Yes: All (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 117-C) – Proposed Private 
School, Proposed St. Mark Christian Academy at St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church, 
West side of Livernois, South of Kirk Lane (3603 Livernois), Section 21 – R-1B 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a report on the item. 
 
Mr. Schultz said he visited the site that afternoon and saw three dumpsters in the 
western parking lot.  He indicated that two of the dumpsters were unscreened. 
 
Father Mina Essak, 1833 Freemont, Troy, was present to represent St. Mark Coptic 
Orthodox Church.  Fr. Essak said there are two dumpsters on site, one of which is 
enclosed.  He indicated the second dumpster, which was removed from its 
enclosure to the east to accommodate construction of the entry drive and parking 
lot, would be returned to its original location upon construction completion.  Fr. 
Essak said the third dumpster to which Mr. Schultz referred is not a dumpster but a 
container used for church fundraising. 
 
Mr. Schultz stated there were three dumpsters located at the back of the property. 
 
Father Maximus Habib, 3415 Crooks, Troy, was present to represent St. Mark 
Coptic Orthodox Church.  Fr. Habib said there are three dumpsters and indicated a 
pad and enclosure would be constructed for the third dumpster in the near future.   
 
Mr. Miller clarified a container used for recycling newspapers is considered a 
dumpster under the Zoning Ordinance and must be screened. 
 
Mr. Littman asked the petitioner to address timing inconsistencies with respect to 
what is constructed and what is improved. 
 
Fr. Habib said the only construction remaining were the approach and the asphalt, 
which would be completed within two weeks. 
 
Chair Strat addressed the approach to the dumpster, and indicated the site plan 
notation specifies the approach is 5 foot wide. 
 
Fr. Habib said the approach to the dumpster would be 20 feet wide. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked if it was possible for the Planning Commission to ask the Building 
Department to provide a list of all violations on the property prior to approving the 
application. 
 
Mr. Miller replied that would be a reasonable request. 
 
Chair Strat addressed the existing day care facility as relates to Zoning Ordinance 
requirements. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Vleck sought clarification on whether the day care facility and school were 
presently in operation.   
 
Fr. Habib responded in the affirmative.  He indicated they had received temporary 
approval.  Fr. Habib said they did not want to construct the drive and parking lot 
until the buildings on the property were completed. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked the Assistant City Attorney if a private school that did not receive 
Special Use Approval and is presently operating would be in violation of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Motzny responded in the affirmative. 
 
Ms. Kerwin asked if the Traffic Engineer approved the design.  She expressed 
concern with the safety of automobiles entering and exiting the site.  
 
Mr. Miller replied that the City Engineer waived the requirement for a deceleration 
lane.  He indicated the site is too narrow for a second drive. 
 
Fr. Habib said the house to the north is higher than the church property and a 
deceleration lane would require an excessively steep driveway.  He further stated 
the church entry drive had been widened and the slope of the drive had been 
reduced.  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Rita Momin of 3631 Cherished View, Troy, was present.  Ms. Momin addressed the 
distance of the school to her house and a concern that church visitors would 
trespass her property.  She also stated the church does not maintain the 
landscaped berm.  
 
John Shepperd of 278 Kirk Lane, Troy, was present.  Mr. Shepperd said some 
church visitors park on Kirk Lane and walk to the church.  He hopes that Ruthland, 
which stubs at the church property, would not be opened in the future. 
 
Krishna Patel of 3615 Cherished Lane, Troy, was present.  Ms. Patel expressed 
concern with traffic dropping off children in the morning.  She said turning left onto 
Livernois would be difficult and dangerous. 
 
Kurtis Wishart of 387 Kirk Lane, Troy, was present.  Mr. Wishart expressed concern 
with the number of children attending the day care facility and school. 
 
Joseph Martin of 409 Kirk Lane, Troy, was present.  Mr. Martin expressed concern 
with the lack of green space between the church and surrounding property to serve 
as a buffer zone.  He also addressed the lack of playground space on the property. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Howayda Messiha of 42200 Malbeck, Sterling Heights, was present.  Ms. Messiha, 
who has two children in the day care facility, said she never parks in the street.    
 
Susan Tawfek of 8313 Hickory Drive, Sterling Heights, was present.  Ms. Tawfek 
said she would like the school to be opened as soon as possible. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Mr. Littman stated the applicant needs the approval requirements to catch up with 
what is developed.  
 
Mr. Waller expressed concern with the number of Zoning Ordinance deficiencies on 
site. 
 
Chair Strat expressed concern with the landscaping and the size of the day care 
facility. 
 
Mr. Schultz stated he is concerned that the school will operate without approval as 
the day care facility has done for three years. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-118 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 10.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed private school, located at St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church, on the west 
side of Livernois Road, south of Wattles Road, located in Section 21, within the R-
1B zoning district, is hereby postponed for 30 days to allow the petitioner, their 
architect and City Staff time to make the site legal based on what is there today and 
what has been approved, to bring the site into compliance. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts stated that it appears the applicant has been working with the City, 
and on the advice of the City, to move forward with the project. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

STREET VACATION 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 148-C) – Daley Street, 
South of Big Beaver, East of Rochester Road, abutting Lots 28 and 33 of 
Supervisor's Plat No. 11 Subdivision, Section 26 – Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District (the abutting parcels) 
 
Chair Strat requested that Mr. Miller present a brief report on the item.  There was 
an error with the legal description for the proposed vacation.  The applicants did not 
intend to vacate the street in front of 2835 Daley Street.  The applicant submitted a 
faxed letter requesting postponement to the August 2006 Regular meeting to 
provide them with time to revise the application.  Furthermore, the Public Hearing 
must be re-advertised. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Robert Easterly, attorney for the owners of 2835 Daley, was present.  Mr. Easterly 
requested postponement of the item to the September 12, 2006 Regular meeting.  
He indicated his client would be unable to attend the August Regular meeting. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-119 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones the item to the 
September 2006 Regular meeting to allow all parties to be represented. 
 
Yes: All (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED  

 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 514-B) – Existing Industrial Building Proposed Training 

Center, Southwest Corner of Crooks and Maplelawn (2107 Crooks Road), Section 29, 
M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a report on the item. 
 
Mr. Waller asked why the cross access easement was removed from the property. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Miller replied the cross access easement remains in place but a notation of such 
was inadvertently omitted from the site plan.  
 
Glenn DeSimone of Prime Design Systems, 2397 Old Kent Road, Warren, was 
present.  Mr. DeSimone provided a brief description of the proposed project and 
building operation.  He indicated their intent to keep the cross access on the property. 
 
Mr. Littman asked if they would be seeking LEED certification for the project. 
 
Mr. DeSimone replied it was too early in the development process to make a 
determination, but indicated LEED certification would be a considered.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-120 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant has provided one hundred ten (110) parking spaces and 
has provided a statement indicating that the maximum parking demand generated 
by the Proposed Training Center shall be fifty-five (55) spaces. 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces to one hundred ten (110) when a total of 
one hundred ninety (190) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street 
parking space requirements for office and conference room, as per Article XL.  This 
reduction meets the standards of Article 40.20.12. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The existing cross access easement shall be shown 
on the site plan. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for 
the Existing Industrial Building Proposed Training Center, located on the southwest 
corner of Crooks and Maplelawn (2107 Crooks Road), located in Section 29, on 
approximately 2.65 acres, within the M-1 zoning districts, is hereby granted. 
 
Yes: All (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Khan, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL JULY 11, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Miller announced that the elections in August and November conflict with Planning 
Commission meetings.  After discussing this issue with the Chair and Vice Chair, it was 
determined that the August 8, 2006 Regular meeting would be held at the Library Meeting 
Room.  The Planning Commission must determine where to hold the November 7, 2006 
Special/Study meeting. 
 
Mr. Miller announced there would be a Special City Council meeting on July 24, 2006 at 
6:00 p.m. for a presentation of the Big Beaver Corridor Study by Birchler/Arroyo 
Associates, Inc.  Birchler/Arroyo Associates, Inc. will also make a presentation to the 
Planning Commission at the August 22, 2006 Special/Study meeting.  Richard Carlisle will 
also be in attendance at this meeting. 
 
Chair Strat stated the entire meeting on August 22 should be dedicated to the Big Beaver 
Corridor presentation. 
 
Ms. Kerwin concurred with Chair Strat. 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:06 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\07-11-06 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 18, 2006 

The Chairman, Michael Huston, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, July 18, 2006 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:    Kenneth Courtney 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Lawrence Littman 
   Mark Maxwell 
 
ABSENT:  Christopher Fejes 

Marcia Gies 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Littman 
 
MOVED, to excuse Ms. Gies and Mr. Fejes from tonight’s meeting as they are out of 
town. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Kovacs, Littman, Maxwell, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MS. GIES AND MR. FEJES CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson informed the audience that because there were only five Board members 
present, they had the opportunity to ask that their requests were postponed until the 
meeting of August 15, 2006.  No one in the audience wished to postpone their hearings. 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JUNE 20, 2006 
 
Motion by Littman  
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 20, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Hutson, Littman, Maxwell, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 – Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that Item #3, Mr. and Mrs. Varkle have been friends of his for quite 
some time but did not believe it would affect the way he voted on their request for 
renewal.  He did say that he would excuse himself if the Board felt it was necessary.  
The Board indicated no objection. 
 
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 18, 2006 

ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 AND ITEM #4 
 
RESOLVED, that Items #3 and Item #4 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Littman 
 
Yeas:  5 – Hutson, Kovacs, Littman, Maxwell, Courtney  
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. RICHARD VARKLE, 54 E. 
SQUARE LAKE, for relief of the requirement to provide hard surface parking and an 
access drive. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the Zoning Ordinance requires parking lots and drives to be 
hard surfaced.  This Board originally granted this relief in May 1979 based on the 
historical significance of the site.  A “Sense of Thyme” currently occupies the site.  This 
item last appeared before this Board at the July 2003 meeting and was granted a three-
year (3) renewal at that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no objections 
or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Richard & Melanie Varkle, 54 E. Square Lake, a three-year (3) 
renewal of relief of the requirement to provide hard surface parking and an access drive. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• We have no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  KENSINGTON COMMUNITY CHURCH, 1825 
E. SQUARE LAKE, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the 
north and west side of off-street parking. 
 
Petitioner is requesting relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the 
north and west side of off-street parking.  This Board has granted this relief since 1996.  
Relief was originally granted based on the fact that the wall adjacent to the wetlands 
could be a problem and that a variance renewal will determine whether natural 
conditions provide necessary screening.  This item last appeared before this Board at 
the July 2003 meeting and was granted a three-year (3) renewal at that time.  
Conditions remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Kensington Community Church, 1825 E. Square Lake, a three-year 
(3) renewal for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the north 
and west side of off-street parking. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• We have no objections or complaints on file. 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 18, 2006 

ITEM #5 - VARIANCE REQUEST.  DENVER ASSOCIATES, 1010 NAUGHTON, for 
relief of the Ordinance to expand an existing parking lot that will be within 14’ of Acacia 
and within 23’-7” of Naughton where Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the 
50’ front yard setback required by Section 30.20.09 be free of parking. 
 
Mr. Hutson explained that the Building Department was in receipt of a letter asking that 
this request be postponed until the August meeting. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kovacs 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Denver Associates, 1010 Naughton, for relief of the 
Ordinance to expand an existing parking lot that will be within 14’ of Acacia and within 
23’-7” of Naughton where Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that the 50’ front 
yard setback required by Section 30.20.09 be free of parking until the meeting of August 
15, 2006. 
 

• At the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Littman, Maxwell, Courtney, Hutson 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF AUGUST 15, 2006 
CARRIED 

ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  SAIF JAMEEL, 3031 CROOKS ROAD, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct a new commercial building with a drive up window accessory 
to a restaurant use proposed in the building.  Section 23.25.01 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance requires a site that is at least one acre in size in order to have a drive-up 
window facility in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning District.  This site is made up of two 
separate parcels that total only .53 acres in size. 
 
Mr. Hutson explained that the Building Department had received a request asking that 
this item be postponed until the meeting of August 15, 2006. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kovacs 

MOVED, to postpone the request of Saif Jameel, 3031 Crooks Road, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a new commercial building with a drive up window accessory to 
a restaurant use proposed in the building.  Section 23.25.01 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance requires a site that is at least one acre in size in order to have a drive-up 
window facility in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning District until the meeting of August 
15, 2006.  This site is made up of two separate parcels that total only .53 acres in size. 

• At the request of the petitioner. 

 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 18, 2006 

Item #6 – con’t. 

MOTION TO POSTPONE REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF AUGUST 15, 2006 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  WILLIAM BEAUMONT HOSPITAL, 44201 
DEQUINDRE, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a new parking lot on the south 
side of the hospital.  The site plan submitted indicated that the parking spaces would be 
only 9’ wide, where Section 40.25.03 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires that parking 
spaces be a minimum of 9’-6” wide. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new parking lot on the south side of the existing hospital.  Section 40.25.03 of the 
Troy Zoning Ordinance requires that parking spaces be a minimum of 9’-6” wide.  The 
site plan submitted indicates that the spaces would be only 9’ wide. 
 
Mr. Craig McEwen of Harley Ellis Devereaux was present and stated that they are 
requesting this variance at the request of the Planning Commission.  Mr. McEwen 
stated that they had received site approval for this project and by making these parking 
spaces narrower they will be able to reduce the amount of paving keeping the parking 
lot out of the flood plain and be able to keep a greater number of the existing trees. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the petitioner has indicated that if this variance is granted they 
will require 8800 square feet less for this parking lot and asked where the savings was.  
Mr. McEwen said that if the variance is not granted they will have to excavate under the 
existing pond and they would rather not do that.  Mr. McEwen also stated that this 
parking lot would be used for staff parking and that would eliminate a lot of traffic going 
in and out of this area. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how wide the spaces were in the parking garage and Mr. McEwen 
said that they are 9’-6” because of a higher turnover.  Mr. Courtney stated that if they 
wished to save more land they could add to the parking deck.  Mr. McEwen said that the 
long-term goal is to have another deck on the north side of the lot for staffing, but right 
now Beaumont does not have the finances to add another parking deck, as it is just 
about triple the cost.   
 
Mr. Courtney then asked what would happen to the parking on the northwest side if this 
lot was to be used for staff.  Mr. McEwen stated that this area is for the new building 
additions, and once the additions are constructed the parking will go away. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if there were any 9’ parking spaces on the site.  Mr. John Rogers of 
Beaumont Services Company stated that he thought the parking lot on the east side of 
Dequindre; the Sterling Heights side had 9’ spaces.  This is an over-flow parking lot. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they could add more spaces on the east side of Dequindre.  Mr. 
McEwen said that the staff that parks on the east side will eventually move over to the 
west side of the road.  Mr. Courtney asked how much more space would be required if  

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 18, 2006 

Item #7 – con’t. 
 
they had 9’-6” spaces.  Mr. Rogers said that the parking lot fits but they are trying to 
save some natural trees and preserve as much green space as possible. 
 
Mr. Littman stated that Mr. McEwen was correct in stating that he was before this Board 
at the recommendation of the Planning Commission and this is the first phase of a ten-
year plan to expand this site.  They have been very good about protecting their green 
area and have met with the residents that are affected by their plans and have proved 
themselves to be very good citizens in trying to protect the green area.  The Planning 
Commission thought this would be advantageous because it would save more trees, it 
would be for employees use only and there are other areas in the City that have 9’ 
parking spaces and it works very well. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if this would always be used for staff and Mr. McEwen said that this 
is their plan. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Littman 
 
MOVED, to grant William Beaumont Hospital, 44201 Dequindre, relief of the Ordinance 
to construct a new parking lot on the south side of the hospital with parking spaces that 
will be only 9’ wide, where Section 40.25.03 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires that 
parking spaces be a minimum of 9’-6” wide. 
 

• Parking will be limited to Staff only. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he did not know how this condition could be enforced.  Mr. 
Courtney stated that presently there are areas that are limited to Staff parking and it is 
enforced very well. 
 
Ms. Lancaster said that although it does relate to the variance, and thought that it may 
be difficult to enforce, however, it was a valid condition. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that at the present time it is very well enforced. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that if the variance is granted, there is nothing to stop the petitioner 
from expanding into the green space in the future and all that will result is more and 
more 9’ parking spaces.  The petitioner would not be stopped from using that land in the 
future, and if in fact, the petitioner wants to preserve as much greenspace as possible,  
 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 18, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
they would put up a parking deck and quadruple the parking space.  Mr. Kovacs does 
not see this as a permanent fix, but a temporary solution. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the petitioner could outline the exact area that would be protected 
and also protected in the future.  Mr. McEwen said that there is a protected green belt, a 
floodplain and there is nowhere else for them to expand the parking.  It costs about 
$2,000.00 per car to build a deck.  Mr. Kovacs said that he understands that but 
believes this is only a temporary solution. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if this variance is granted the petitioner could then build a parking 
deck with 9’ spaces.  Mr. Stimac said that the Ordinance does allow for parking spaces 
in a parking deck used for long-term parking to have 9’ wide spaces. 
 
Vote on the motion by Mr. Courtney 
 
Yeas:  5 – Littman, Maxwell, Courtney, Hutson, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. BERNARD LOURIM, 1850 KRISTIN, 
for relief of the Ordinance to construct an attached garage addition resulting in a 32.6’ 
front yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 40’ minimum front yard setback in R-1B 
Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a garage addition.  The site plan submitted indicates an addition to the front of 
an existing attached garage, resulting is a 32.6’ front yard setback. Section 30.10.02 
requires a 40’ minimum front yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 
Jason Krieger, the Architect for Mr. and Mrs. Lourim was present and stated that the 
homeowners have lived in this home approximately 10 years and their family has grown 
and they have run out of storage space and would like to add this 108 square foot 
addition.  Any type of addition to this garage would require a variance. They believe that 
this would be the best location for this addition as the existing wall shows evidence that 
the foundation is failing.  Also, by putting the addition in this area it would minimize the 
impact on the surrounding neighbors and would give them more usable storage space.   
 
Mr. Krieger also explained that there is an existing circular driveway that they would like 
to preserve. The Lourims have spoken to their neighbors and have received favorable 
comments. This addition will enable them to get the most use of their property and allow 
them to stay in the area and make nice improvements to the existing facade. 
 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 18, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Littman stated that a neighbor had objected because they had not seen the 
proposed plans and suggested in the future talking to all neighbors so they would be 
aware of what is proposed. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There is one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that he did not feel that this addition would affect any of the 
surrounding neighbors. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Littman 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Bernard Lourim, 1850 Kristin, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an attached garage addition resulting in a 32.6’ front yard setback where 
Section 30.10.02 requires a 40’ minimum front yard setback in R-1B Zoning Districts. 
 

• The double front corner lot creates a hardship. 
• The builder built the home right at the minimum setback line. 
• This is the only house on this side of the street in this block. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Maxwell, Courtney, Hutson, Kovacs, Littman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson informed the Board that he is on the President’s Advisors Council of Walsh 
College but once again does not feel it would affect the way he would vote on this 
request.  The Board did not feel it was necessary to excuse Mr. Hutson. 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  WALSH COLLEGE, 3838 LIVERNOIS, for relief of 
the Ordinance to expand the parking lot on the north side of the college.  Section 
18.30.06 requires that a 4’-6” high masonry screen wall or as an alternative a 4’-6” 
landscaped berm be provided between parking lots of colleges and adjacent 
residentially zoned property.  The site plan submitted lacks the required screening on 
the west side of the new parking lot. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to expand 
the parking lot on the north side of the college.  Section 18.30.06 requires that a 4’-6” 
high masonry screen wall or as an alternative a 4’-6” landscaped berm be provided  

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 18, 2006 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
between parking lots of colleges and adjacent residentially zoned property.  The site 
plan submitted lacks this required screening on the west side of the new parking lot. 
 
Mr. Alan Green was present and stated this was a decision reached between Mr. 
Wattles, the neighbor, and Walsh College. This is a Historic property and if they have to 
put a berm in, it would greatly disturb the existing vegetation and mature trees.  The 
parking will be 3’ feet lower and they are working with the owner on a landscape plan.  
They plan to put in a wood horse fence and believe it would be most compatible with 
this surrounding area.   
 
Mr. Green said that the Board has the right to grant a waiver on the wall or berm and 
each decision is based on the case.  Mr. Green said that he does not think there is any 
good reason for either the wall or the berm.  
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file and one (1) written comment from Mary Tsouris, 
21 Scottsdale. 
 
Motion by Kovacs. 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Walsh College, 3838 Livernois, relief of the Ordinance to expand the 
parking lot on the north side of the college, without the 4’-6” high masonry screen wall or 
a 4’-6” landscaped berm between the parking lot of the college and adjacent 
residentially zoned property as required by Section 38.30.06.  
 

• Variance approved as proposed. 
• A fence will be installed between the parking lot and the property at 3864 

Livernois. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use in a Zoning 

District. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surround property. 
• Absent a variance, significant natural features would be affected. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Hutson, Kovacs, Littman, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 18, 2006 

ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. BOYER, 93 BELHAVEN, for relief of 
the Ordinance to maintain a shed constructed without first obtaining a Building Permit, 
located 4’-11” from the rear property line.  Section 40.57.05 requires a 6’ minimum 
setback to any property line for an accessory building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
maintain an addition to a shed, constructed without first obtaining a Building Permit.  
This addition is only 4’-11” from the rear property line.  Section 40.57.05 requires a 6’ 
minimum setback to any property line for an accessory building. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the property to the north of this parcel was zoned.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that it is in the B-2 Zoning Classification and the City has received a site plan for 
a new commercial building on that site.  
 
Mr. Courtney commented on the fact that no responses were received from the 
neighbor to the east or the west of this property. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Boyer were present.  Mr. Boyer informed the Board that the owners of the 
property to the west had recently passed away and the house was vacant.  The owner 
of the home to the east of the property is not there full time.  Mr. Boyer said that he did 
not think this addition would have any impact to the neighbors and they need the 
additional space for storage.  Mr. Boyer brought in two (2) letters indicating approval of 
his request that. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mrs. Natalie Houde, 4885 Dorshire was present and stated that the Boyers had done a 
number of improvements to this home that have improved the area.  Mrs. Houde stated 
that her husband cuts the yard of the home to west of the Boyers and he is unable to 
see the addition to this shed.  Mrs. Houde is in favor of this variance request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Littman 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Boyer, 93 Belhaven, relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 
shed constructed without first obtaining a Building Permit, located 4’-11” from the rear 
property line, where Section 40.57.05 requires a 6’ minimum setback to any property 
line for an accessory building. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this petition. 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                                 JULY 18, 2006 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 

• Property to the north is zoned Commercial. 
• The site is heavily wooded and the building is difficult to see from adjacent 

properties. 
• Moving the shed would be unnecessarily burdensome. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Hutson, Kovacs, Littman, Maxwell 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:17 P.M. 
 
 
              
      Michael Hutson, Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
  
 
  

 10



DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MINUTES  FINAL  JULY 19, 2006 
 
 
A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, July 19, 
2006 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan.   Alan Kiriluk called the meeting to order at 7:31 a.m. 
 
 
 
PRESENT:  Michael Culpepper 

Stuart Frankel  
David Hay 
Michele Hodges 
William Kennis 
Alan Kiriluk 
Daniel MacLeish  
Carol Price 
Ernest Reschke 
Louise Schilling 
Douglas Schroeder   
G. Thomas York  
 
 

ABSENT:  Harvey Weiss  
 
          
ALSO PRESENT: Phil Nelson 

John M. Lamerato 
Brian Murphy   

   Lori Bluhm 
   Mark Miller 
 
 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution:    DD-06-30 
Moved by:    Hodges 
Seconded by:  MacLeish 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the June 21, 2006 regular meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas:  All (12) 
Absent: Weiss 
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



OLD BUSINESS 
 
A. Big Beaver Corridor Study 
 
The Chair asked for the thoughts and views of Board members on the Study. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS
 
A. Landscape Design Proposal – Rochester Road to Big Beaver 
 
Resolution: DD-06-31 
Moved by: Reschke 
Seconded by: Hay 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board hire the firm of Grissim Metz Andriese Associates to 
provide schematic designs for Rochester Road and Big Beaver intersection for an 
estimated cost of $6,500.00. 
 
Yeas:  Culpepper, Hay, Kiriluk, Reschke, Schilling, Schroeder, York 
Nays:  Frankel, Hodges, Kennis, MacLeish, Price 
Absent: Weiss 
 
 
B. City Council Special Meeting July 24th @ 6:00 p.m. – Big Beaver Corridor 

Study Presentation 
 
The Board was informed of the upcoming special meeting of City Council and was 
invited to attend. 
 
 
 
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
 
Resolution:    DD-06-32 
Moved by:    Hodges 
Seconded by:  Culpepper 
 
RESOLVED, That Weiss be excused. 
 
Yeas:   All (12) 
Absent:  Weiss 
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
 



MEMBER COMMENT 
 
None 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:46 a.m. 
 
 
Next Meeting:  August 16, 2006 @ 7:30 a.m. @ Lower Level Conference Room, 
City Hall. 
 

 
         
________________________________________ 

Alan Kiriluk, Chair   
 
 

________________________________________ 
      John M. Lamerato, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
JL/pg 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 1

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, July 
24, 2006 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:32 pm. 
 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 

Bob Berk Kessie Kaltsounis 
Cele Dilley Connie Huang, Student Rep 
Bill Hall Mike Gonda  
Cheryl Whitton Bob Preston  
Marilyn Musick 
 
City Staff: Cindy Stewart 
 Bob Matlick 
 Jeff Biegler 
 

 Festival Chairman:   Tom Kaszubski 
 
     

Absent:    Jeff Stewart   
  Kasey Wang, Student Rep 

 
  
Resolution #TD-2006-07-88 
Motion to excuse absent members: by Bill Hall, seconded by Bob Preston. 
 
RESOLVED that Jeff Stewart and Kasey Wang are excused from the July 
meeting. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C. ADDITION/DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 
New Business 
 
2.  Leadership Troy outstanding volunteer 
3.  Police Honor Guard Proposal 
4.  Troy Jaycee Proposal 
5.  Update on Arnold’s Amusement 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 2

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution #TD-2006-07-89 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Cheryl Whitton                           
to approve the June 27, 2006 minutes  with corrections  
 
pg 6 – 2nd bullet: accepts = accepted 
pg 9 – one = on 
         - sated = stated 
pg 4 – to approve written twice 
pg 11 – remove sentence (all 3 companies will quote on both) 
 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the June 27, 2006 advisory committee meeting 
are approved with corrections. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
E. TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
Deposits $ 23,395.00    City                     
          4,500.00    Community Foundation 
                $27,895.00 
No June statement from the City yet 
  
Resolution #TD-2006-07-89 
Moved by Kessie Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Mike Gonda       
 to accept the Treasurer’s Report of June 30, 2006. 
 
RESOLVED that the Treasurer’s Report of June 30, 2006 is approved. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
F. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1.  Appointment of Troy Daze Festival Activity Chairpersons – NONE 

 
2. Leadership Troy Outstanding Volunteer –  
 
 Names needed by August meeting.  Also business nominations. 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 3

 
3.  Police Honor Guard Proposal – 
 
They would like an outside booth for a dunk tank.  Normal size for outside booth 
area is 25’ x 20’.  Would City Council approve a dunk tank?  City will add the 
request onto August 14 report to Council.  Is space sufficient?  They will need 
access to water.  
 
Resolution #TD-2006-07-90 
Moved by Bob Berk 
Seconded by Mike Gonda       
Motion to send the proposal for Police Honor Guard dunk tank to City Council for 
the August 14th agenda. 
 
RESOLVED that the proposal for Police Honor Guard dunk tank is sent to City 
Council for the August 14th agenda. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
4.  Troy Jaycee Proposal 
Cutest Pet Contest – Fundraiser for Jaycees.  Picture of animals to be placed on 
jars.  $10 entry fee.  People vote by putting money in the jars.  They need to rent 
booth space in main tent.  If they rent a booth they can do this.  Cele will call 
them. 
 
5.  Update on Arnold Amusements –  
 
Cheryl and Tom met with the Arnold’s regarding reduced hours.  There are a few 
suggestions and minor changes.   
 
There will be a meeting with the Police, the Troy Daze Board and Tom Kaszubski  
on Thursday morning regarding the logistics on closing the festival in the 
evening.   
 
Wristbands: 
 Sat: 11 am – 5 pm (same as 2005) 
 Sun 12 – 5 pm (change from 2005) 
 Price increase from $18 to $20 
 
Thursday special 
 1 less ticket per ride (example: 3 tickets/ride; special = 2 tickets) 
 
Layout discussed.  They will come back with a drawing of changes. 
 
Eliminate rides for Senior Sensation.  Last year no one took advantage of rides. 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 4

 
The changes will be in a memo to Council for the August 14th meeting.  They met 
with Brian Murphy and he doesn’t anticipate any problems.  He will make the 
recommendation to Council. 
 
Arnold’s is not in favor of selling pre-sale ride bracelets.  What if it rains?  How 
would they handle refunds?  We will re-look at this for 2007. 
 
The need for more ticket booths was discussed with Arnolds and they will 
comply. 
 
 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 
1. Committee Manual – Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 

 
Gave an overview of changes/editions/edits to manual.  Discussion was held. 

 
 

Resolution #TD-2006-07-91 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis       
Motion to approve the Committee Operations Manual with changes & corrections 
per the City Attorney. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee Operations Manual is approved with changes & 
corrections per the City Attorney. 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
Approved unanimously 
 
Discussion to have more clarity with bid procedures.  Bob Berk said we can    
modify as needed. 

 
2.  Demographics 
 
Suggestion: make household income question optional.  If they don’t want to fill 
out, they will leave blank. 
 
Remove ability expo and parade.  Add Miss Troy, Petting Zoo. 
 
Send suggestions to Bob Preston. 
 
3.  Update on Contracts 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 5

 
a. Shirts – decide quantity.   Color is jade and they will have the wizard logo 

and Comcast logo on the sleeves. 
 

b. Pony Rides/Petting Zoo – No info received 
 

c.   Golf Carts -  Info in JDE 
 

d.  Stage/Lighting/Platforms/Flooring - Waiting for one more quote. 
 
e. Porta-Johns - Info entered 
 
f. Portable Lights/Generators - Jeff W looking at specs from 2005.  Info 

entered in JDE. 
 
g. Tents - Formal bid to be opened July 28. 
 
h. Electric Message Boards – Jeff spoke with vendor. 
 
i. Trailers - Info entered in JDE 
 
j. Electrical - No info received from Jeff Winiarski re: price 
 
k. Tables/Chairs - Info entered into JDE 

 
l. Fireworks - Approved by Council  on July 10, 2006. 
 
m. Lawn Signs - Double the order from 2005 

 
n. Sound - Quote sent based on what Bob Broquet provided as well as 

update for new bands. 
 
Low bid is Advance Lighting and Sound $2,400.  Plus $2,800 for the 
upgraded system the bands require.  If using both systems, there would be a 
$500 deduction from the total price. 

 
 In the past, Bob Broquet quoted the equipment with the work done by 

volunteers in the past. 
 
Discussion:  
 
Radios – what is included? Exactly what Bob Broquet listed in his spec 
Other prices: 
 
 
Advanced $2400 and $2800 for Option 2 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 6

    
 
Jeff Winiarski $4000 – quoted Option 1 only  
 
Visionary $6325 
 
Reinforcements $9800 
 
O + A           $22,000 
 
Midwest Visual       $43,000 
 
Will there be someone on site?  What if there is a problem? 
 
Cheryl Whitton: They will set up all systems but provide no one to run it? 
 
Tom Kaszubski : Tie them into a 3-year contract since next year we’ll lose Bob 
Broquet. 
 
Mike Gonda: Can we ask Advanced Lighting & Sound if they are going to provide 
someone? 
 
Tom Kaszubski: Or will we need more than one person? 
Are they are insured?  Yes. 
 
Cheryl Whitton – Do we need this equipment? 
 
Jeff Biegler: Some bands do need this equipment.  There is additional money in 
the entertainment budget to make up the difference. 
 
Cele Dilley: Have we gone out with electrical contracts? 
 
Jeff Biegler: No 
 
Tom Kaszubski: Is electrical an extended contract? 
 
Jeff Biegler: No, it is year to year.  There is no time now. 
 
Lori Bluhm: You should get informal quotes at a minimum for $8000 electrical 
contract. 
 
Cheryl Whitton:  In the past, quotes came back two or three times this amount. 
 
Lori Bluhm: I recommend you get 3 quotes on electrical to protect yourself. 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 7

Kessie Kaltsounis: In past we took a low bid on an amusement vendor and then 
they went out of business.  Can we override?  
 
Lori Bluhm:  You could get criticized for not going with low bidder if they are 
qualified.   
 
Kessie Kaltsounis:  I would feel better if the low bidder would supply a person to 
operate the equipment. 
 
Mike Gonda:  Have the Entertainment Chair man the equipment.  We could 
approve with Entertainment Chair and Co-Chair being responsible for all sound 
equipment. 
 
Cheryl Whitton: What if there are other problems elsewhere? 
 
Jeff Biegler:  Quotes opened Monday, July 24, 2006.  Prices held for 60 days.  
Quotes include set up and tear down. 
 
Bob Berk:  Equipment was leased in the past with guaranteed volunteer. 
 
Kessie Kaltsounis:  Motion we go with bid that guarantees us a volunteer. 
 
Lori Bluhm: There is no bid that offers a volunteer. 
 
Bob Bishop:  Call Troy Schools, do they have volunteers that could operate the 
equipment? 
 
Lori Bluhm: Now you have no choice but to approve the low bid.  You are 
resourceful, you can find volunteers.  You can go back and ask them if they’d 
provide staffing. 
 
Cele Dilley: Can we go out and get a quote for manpower?  We have so much 
that’s new this year.  Can we contact the companies and get prices on manpower 
to run the equipment? 
 
Bob Berk: If they operate the equipment, do they need to be insured? 
 
Lori Bluhm:  Yes 
 
Mike Gonda: Can we vote on this or will City tell us who is low bid?  How can we 
tell who is a qualified technician? 
 
Kessie Kaltsounis: Can Jeff get quotes for manpower within a week so Troy 
Daze can meet at a special meeting? 
 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 8

Resolution #TD-2006-07-92 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis that Jeff Biegler goes out for quotes for 
manpower for the sound equipment. 
  
RESOLVED that Jeff Biegler gets new quotes for manpower for the sound 
equipment.   
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED    
 
Jeff will let the Board know what quotes are received and if a special meeting 
needs to be called. 
 
 
Public Comment 
 
Laura McCall: Upset at Board’s decision related to Junior Miss pageants.  It has 
been a classy event.  Where will the girls get changed?  Will there be enough 
room for this event?  She does not believe there will be as many contestants and 
it will not be as professional as it has been in the past.  They do pay an entry fee 
to be in it. 
 
Member Comment  - None 

 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
Resolution #TD-2006-07-93 
Moved by Mike Gonda 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 

 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting be adjourned at 
9:32 p.m. 

 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED    

  



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 9

Committee Meeting 
 
Call to order 9:33 pm 

 
Attendance: 
 
Mike Gonda      Jim Hattan    
Bill Hall      Cele Dilley     
Tom Kaszubski     Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski   
Marilyn Musick     Robert Preston    
Doris Schuchter     Susan Regina    
Tarcisi Massaini     Tom Tighe     
Jeffrey Super      Connie Huang    
Bob Berk      Tammy Duszynski    
Tom Duszynski     Padma Kuppa    
Darcel Connors     Reuben Ellis     
Diane Mitchell     Kessie Kaltsounis    
Kathie Troshynski     Danielle Cheli    
Dan O’Brien 
 
City Staff 
Bob Matlick      Jeff Biegler    
Cindy Stewart     Lori Bluhm    
 
 
Motion by Kessie Kaltsounis, seconded by Cheryl Whitton to approve the April 
25, 2006 meeting minutes.  Approved unanimously. 
 
Request Reminders 
Please turn them in to Cheryl Whitton asap.  Certificates for prizes will be in the 
festival headquarters.  Chairpersons please pick them up. 
 
 
General Chairman’s Report 
 
Rosters – Keep them when included with your packet.  They will only be added to 
packet when there are new changes. 
 
Classic Auto Show – cancelled due to tennis court resurfacing. 
 
Time Schedules for evening events – Mr. Troy, Miss Troy, Talent Show, etc. 
please note, Festival will close at 10 pm.  General public will adhere to this rule.  
Police will strictly enforce.  Be sure you have enough time for your event to end 
on time.  Tight scheduling. 
 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 10

Checks – if received they must go through the Festival Treasurer first and she 
will turn them into the Finance Department 
 
Communications – Call Cele Dilley and Tom Kaszubski. 
 
 
Event Chairperson Reports 
 
Talent Show - Diane Mitchell:  8 applications submitted to date.  Still looking for 
an emcee.  Diane will call Jeff Stewart, Entertainment Chair. 
 
New Car – same as last year with face parking at entrance. 
 
Cutest Toddler – same as last year. 
 
Magic Cauldron - Marilyn Musick: same 
 
Shuttles - Jeff Super: all set 
 
Photography Show - Tom and Tammy Duszynski:  free portraits will be done by 
high school students.  Additional lighting is needed under the tent.  Flats have 
been painted.  Tent will be moved north-south for equal exposure for both 
photography and student art. 
 
EthniCity – Padma Kuppa:  Three booth applications in with 4 - 6 in process. 
 
Student Volunteers: Send info re: time slots and jobs needing students to Sandy 
Macknis.    
Volunteer shirts to be ordered = 250 
Shuttle drivers shirts = 95 
Senior Sensation shirts = 20 
 
Demographics – Bob Preston: plan to use seniors for 4-hour time blocks on 
Saturday and Sunday in the food court and the Magic Cauldron area from 
approx. 1 – 5 pm. 
 
Magic Cauldron Crafts – all set 
 
Student Art -Kathy T:  Stress that more lighting is important in the evening.  Hope 
to get sponsor involved re: judging, etc. 
 
Junior Miss Troy - Danielle Cheli: Most concerned with electricity for pageant in 
dressing room tent.  27 applicants -  all age groups but the 5-7 year old category 
are closed.  August 4 deadline for Little Miss Pageant.  They only have 2 
applications.  Flooring in the tent – no vendors found yet.  Program – send info to 
Cindy Stewart for printing. 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 11

 
Microphones – need 3 on the stage.  Chairs in tent need to be reorganized 
audience style.  Miss Troy currently has one contestant.  Danielle will send out 
the info on the pageant to help.  If there are only 3 contestants what about 
combining with other pageants?  Miss Troy is scheduled 7:30 – 9:30 pm on 
Friday. 

 
Motion by Cheryl Whitton, seconded by Mike Gonda that if it is acceptable to 
Susan Regina, Miss Troy Chair and if her Miss Troy contestants number is under 
8, we will combine the Miss Troy and Junior Miss pageants for Friday evening 
7:30 – 9:30 pm.   
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED    
 
 
Naturalization Ceremony - Cindy Stewart, Dan O’Brien:  All set.  Federal Judge 
Lawson all set.  Judge Martone spoke with INS – Jack Linn is coordinating new 
citizens. 
 
Fire Dept. – Bob Matlick: Tentative Water Battle 
 
Sponsors – Cindy Stewart: Listed below are the sponsors in to date. 
 
Comcast   $8,000  Entertainment Tent 
Henry Ford Hospital  $3,000 inkind Medical Services 
Tringali Sanitation  $2,500  Fireworks 
National City Bank  $2,500  Magic Cauldron Entertainment 
WOW    $2,500  Special Childrens/Special Adults 
MI School/Govt CU  $2,000  Shuttles 
President Tuxedo  $2,000 inkind Mr. Troy 
Beaumont Hospital  $1,500  Senior Sensation 
International Transmission $1,000  Magic Cauldron 
Garry Carley   $ 200  Special Childrens/Special Adults 
Zumba’s Mexican Grill  $100  Mr. Troy (10 $10 gift certificates) 
 
 
Need logos from sponsors for golf carts.  Also volunteer shuttle drivers 
 
Petting Zoo & pony rides - need contract/ins from Wilson 
 
Radios from the school district. 
 
Mr. Troy – Bill Hall:  2 applications turned in to date.  Will need two Miss Troy 
winners for escorting  contestants. 
 
Info Booth – Can they get electricity this year?  Yes.   6 helium tanks are on 
order.  Balloons are in. 



TROY DAZE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT        JULY 24, 2006 

 12

 
Booths –  Cele Dilley: 15 food, 50 under the tent and 5 outside. 
 
Special Children – Linda Hannan is going to limit the number to 600 including 
children and chaperones. 
 
Senior Sensation – need tables for breakfast 
 
Alliance Mobile Health – ok for free booth 
 
Outside Stage – 27 entertainers scheduled. 
 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 
Moved by Bill Hall 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 

 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Festival Committee Meeting be adjourned at 
10:30 pm. 

 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED    

  
 
 

 
 
_____________________________ 
Cele Dilley, Chairperson 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on July 25, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mary Kerwin Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz David T. Waller 
Thomas Strat Wayne Wright 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative (arrived 7:50 p.m.) 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-121 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts, Littman, Waller and Wright are excused 
from attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Littman, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-122 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published.  
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Littman, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-123 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 27, 2006 Special/Study meeting minutes and the 
July 11, 2006 Regular meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Littman, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING (BZA) APPEALS REPORT 
 
In the absence of BZA representatives to report on the July 18, 2006 Board of 
Zoning Appeals meeting, this item will be placed on the August 1, 2006 
Special/Study meeting agenda. 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the BZA granted a variance to Beaumont Hospital to allow a 
reduction in the required width of parking spaces for the hospital’s expansion 
project.  He said the petitioners would come before the Planning Commission with 
an amended site plan that provides 9-foot wide parking spaces.   
 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following item acted upon by the Downtown Development 
Authority (DDA) at its July 19, 2006 meeting.   
 
• Contract agreement with Grissim Metz Andriese Associates for schematic 

landscape/design proposal on the northeast corner of Rochester Road and Big 
Beaver Road, next to Fire Station No. 1. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following City Council action items and future Planning 
items: 
 
• Big Beaver Corridor Study – Presentation was given to City Council at its 

July 24, 2006 Special Meeting. 
• Big Beaver Corridor Study – Presentation to Planning Commission scheduled for 

August 22, 2006 Special/Study meeting. 
• City of Troy Master Plan – Contract with City’s Planning Consultant, Richard 

Carlisle, scheduled for August 14, 2006 City Council meeting.   
• ZOTA 219 Conditional Rezoning – Approved by City Council, 07/24/06. 
• ZOTA 215-C Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals – Tabled by City Council to 

its September 18, 2006 meeting, 07/24/06. 
• Postponed rezoning requests [Z 180-B Binson’s Home Health Care, Z 717 

Rochester Professional Building and Z 704 Dunkin Donuts] – Scheduled for 
August 14, 2006 City Council meeting.   

• Future Land Use Plan Amendment, Rochester Road Overlay District – 
Authorized by City Council to distribute Plan amendment for review and 
comment, 07/24/06. 

• ZOTA 214 Group Child Care Homes – Postponed by City Council to its 
September 11, 2006 meeting, 07/10/06. 

• Tuscany Estates Site Condominium – Received preliminary approval by City 
Council, 7/10/06. 

• Longfellow Site Condominium – Received final approval by City Council, 
7/10/06. 

• PUD 6 Centennial Park – New PUD application scheduled for future Planning 
Commission study meeting.   

 
 

8. DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – 
Consider permitting Ambulance Facilities in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District and 
reconsideration of current permitted locations in the B-3 (General Business), H-S 
(Highway Service) and O-1 (Low Rise Office) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller gave a brief overview of the potential zoning ordinance text amendment to 
permit ambulance facilities in the M-1 light industrial district.  
 
Laurie Thiel of Alliance Mobile Health and Oakland Healthcare Alliance, 1625 Star 
Batt, Rochester Hills, was present.  Ms. Thiel provided a brief overview of the daily 
operation of an ambulance facility.   
 
Overview highlights: 
• Alliance Mobile Health has agreement to purchase building at 2045 Austin, Troy. 
• Site provides adequate parking, a criterion difficult to meet. 
• Site would be home to 25 ambulances; approximately 18 operate daily and 6 are 

budgeted for future expansion. 
• Site would be facility headquarters. 
• Facility is not a 24-hour operation and would not have sleeping quarters. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

• Ambulances are positioned at various locational posts, from which they are 
dispatched for emergency services. 

• Sirens are rarely heard at ambulance facility/headquarters.   
• Ambulance facility is not conducive to office district because of parking capacity 

needed, on-site vehicle maintenance and ambulance movements.   
 
 

[Mr. Shin arrived at 7:50 p.m.] 
 
 
Members discussed the appropriateness of ambulance facilities in the M-1 zoning 
district, and agreed that consideration should be given to eliminating the facilities in 
the B-3, H-S and O-1 zoning districts. 
 
The following conditions were noted:   
• Required distance between ambulance facility and residential. 
• Approval as Special Use. 
• Cognizant of amount of parking. 
• Vehicle maintenance on-site. 
 
Mr. Miller said a public hearing on the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
would be scheduled in August, unless time constraints would prohibit proper 
notification to the public.  
 
 

___________ 
 
The members welcomed the newly appointed student representative, Jonathan 
Shin.  Mr. Shin briefly shared his background, and introductions were made around 
the table. 
 

___________ 
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 224) – Articles 02.10.00, 
02.10.01, 02.20.00, 03.25.00, 03.34.00, 10.20.08, 10.25.03, 34.30.05, 35.60.03, 
43.10.00, 43.45.00, 43.46.00 and 43.65.00 – Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 
 
Mr. Miller reported a Public Hearing on the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment is scheduled at the August 8, 2006 Regular meeting. 
 
Mr. Motzny reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment as relates to 
compliance with the new legislation. 
 
Members briefly discussed Section 02.20.00 that states “The City Planning 
Commission shall at least once per year prepare for the Troy City Council a report 
on the administration and enforcement of the zoning ordinance and 
recommendations for amendments or supplements to the ordinance.”  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212-B) – Articles 25.00.00, 
26.00.00, 27.00.00 – Improving Design and Strengthening the Relationship of 
Freestanding Restaurants, Day Care Centers and Banks and the Abutting Streets in 
the R-C (Research Center), O-M (Office Mid-rise), and O-S-C (Office-Service-
Commercial) Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the intent of the proposed ZOTA 212-B.   
 
Items addressed and noted by the Planning Department: 
• Orientation of entrances to child care facilities and nurseries. 
• Design of pedestrian connections. 
• Preservation of existing, mature landscaping. 
• Design standards; compatibility, rooftop, 360º. 
• Special land use approval. 
• Minimum gross floor area of building. 
• Temporary design alternatives; i.e., art. 
 
 

11. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 208-B) – Commercial Kennels, 
Pet Shops and Non Commercial Boarding – Definitions and Regulations 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment as relates to 
commercial kennels, pet shops and non-commercial boarding.  He suggested 
placing initial focus on definitions that would be provided in the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
It was agreed by the members to further study the definitions provided by the 
Planning Department, and bring the item back to a future study meeting.   
 
 

12. AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 41 SUBDIVISION CONTROL ORDINANCE 
 
Mr. Motzny provided a brief overview of the amendment to the Subdivision Control 
Ordinance that emanated from a change in State law.  He addressed one significant 
change, Section 3.00 (C), and minor housekeeping revisions.  Mr. Motzny reported 
that a public hearing on the proposed amendment is not required.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-124 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Planning Commission hereby recommends to 
the Troy City Council that the proposed ordinance amending Sections 2.00. 2.99, 
3.00, 3.01, 3.02, 3.03, 3.04, 3.05, 4.06(A) and 6.00 of Chapter 41 of the Code of the 
City of Troy, as set forth in the draft attached to the City’s Attorney’s Office 
memorandum of July 12, 2006, be approved and adopted.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Littman, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:53 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:00 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

13. DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – 
Theaters in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District, Special Use Approval 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the definition of “performance theater” and addressed standards 
that might be considered for permitting performance theaters by Special Use 
Approval in the M-1 light industrial district.   
 
Items addressed and noted by the Planning Department: 
• Place no restrictions for access/proximity to major thoroughfares. 
• Parking; i.e., complementary users, peak performance hours, valet, shuttle bus. 
• Minimize traffic volume. 
• Encourage adaptive reuse/redevelopment. 
• Consider variety of uses/performances. 
 
The Planning Department will prepare draft language for review at a future study 
meeting.   
 
 

14. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Miller welcomed Jonathan Shin and encouraged his participation in planning matters. 
 
Mr. Savidant offered Mr. Shin a tour of the Planning Department and City Hall. 
 
Mr. Vleck shared his enthusiasm in discovering the lively activity that takes place at local 
coffee shops during evening hours.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Schultz, returning from a weekend in Chicago, spoke highly of the city and its 
redevelopment. 
 
Chair Strat addressed the Notice of Intent to Plan received from the City of Clawson.   
 
Mr. Miller said members would be provided a copy of Clawson’s draft land use plan when 
the Planning Department receives a digital copy.  He noted members would have 65 days 
to review and respond to Clawson.   
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary  
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\07-25-06 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on July 25, 2006 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Mary Kerwin Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz David T. Waller 
Thomas Strat Wayne Wright 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative (arrived 7:50 p.m.) 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-121 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Drake-Batts, Littman, Waller and Wright are excused 
from attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Littman, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-122 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published.  
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Littman, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-123 
Moved by:  Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 27, 2006 Special/Study meeting minutes and the 
July 11, 2006 Regular meeting minutes as published. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Littman, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING (BZA) APPEALS REPORT 
 
In the absence of BZA representatives to report on the July 18, 2006 Board of 
Zoning Appeals meeting, this item will be placed on the August 1, 2006 
Special/Study meeting agenda. 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the BZA granted a variance to Beaumont Hospital to allow a 
reduction in the required width of parking spaces for the hospital’s expansion 
project.  He said the petitioners would come before the Planning Commission with 
an amended site plan that provides 9-foot wide parking spaces.   
 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following item acted upon by the Downtown Development 
Authority (DDA) at its July 19, 2006 meeting.   
 
• Contract agreement with Grissim Metz Andriese Associates for schematic 

landscape/design proposal on the northeast corner of Rochester Road and Big 
Beaver Road, next to Fire Station No. 1. 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following City Council action items and future Planning 
items: 
 
• Big Beaver Corridor Study – Presentation was given to City Council at its 

July 24, 2006 Special Meeting. 
• Big Beaver Corridor Study – Presentation to Planning Commission scheduled for 

August 22, 2006 Special/Study meeting. 
• City of Troy Master Plan – Contract with City’s Planning Consultant, Richard 

Carlisle, scheduled for August 14, 2006 City Council meeting.   
• ZOTA 219 Conditional Rezoning – Approved by City Council, 07/24/06. 
• ZOTA 215-C Commercial Vehicle Parking Appeals – Tabled by City Council to 

its September 18, 2006 meeting, 07/24/06. 
• Postponed rezoning requests [Z 180-B Binson’s Home Health Care, Z 717 

Rochester Professional Building and Z 704 Dunkin Donuts] – Scheduled for 
August 14, 2006 City Council meeting.   

• Future Land Use Plan Amendment, Rochester Road Overlay District – 
Authorized by City Council to distribute Plan amendment for review and 
comment, 07/24/06. 

• ZOTA 214 Group Child Care Homes – Postponed by City Council to its 
September 11, 2006 meeting, 07/10/06. 

• Tuscany Estates Site Condominium – Received preliminary approval by City 
Council, 7/10/06. 

• Longfellow Site Condominium – Received final approval by City Council, 
7/10/06. 

• PUD 6 Centennial Park – New PUD application scheduled for future Planning 
Commission study meeting.   

 
 

8. DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – 
Consider permitting Ambulance Facilities in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District and 
reconsideration of current permitted locations in the B-3 (General Business), H-S 
(Highway Service) and O-1 (Low Rise Office) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller gave a brief overview of the potential zoning ordinance text amendment to 
permit ambulance facilities in the M-1 light industrial district.  
 
Laurie Thiel of Alliance Mobile Health and Oakland Healthcare Alliance, 1625 Star 
Batt, Rochester Hills, was present.  Ms. Thiel provided a brief overview of the daily 
operation of an ambulance facility.   
 
Overview highlights: 
• Alliance Mobile Health has agreement to purchase building at 2045 Austin, Troy. 
• Site provides adequate parking, a criterion difficult to meet. 
• Site would be home to 25 ambulances; approximately 18 operate daily and 6 are 

budgeted for future expansion. 
• Site would be facility headquarters. 
• Facility is not a 24-hour operation and would not have sleeping quarters. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

• Ambulances are positioned at various locational posts, from which they are 
dispatched for emergency services. 

• Sirens are rarely heard at ambulance facility/headquarters.   
• Ambulance facility is not conducive to office district because of parking capacity 

needed, on-site vehicle maintenance and ambulance movements.   
 
 

[Mr. Shin arrived at 7:50 p.m.] 
 
 
Members discussed the appropriateness of ambulance facilities in the M-1 zoning 
district, and agreed that consideration should be given to eliminating the facilities in 
the B-3, H-S and O-1 zoning districts. 
 
The following conditions were noted:   
• Required distance between ambulance facility and residential. 
• Approval as Special Use. 
• Cognizant of amount of parking. 
• Vehicle maintenance on-site. 
 
Mr. Miller said a public hearing on the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
would be scheduled in August, unless time constraints would prohibit proper 
notification to the public.  
 
 

___________ 
 
The members welcomed the newly appointed student representative, Jonathan 
Shin.  Mr. Shin briefly shared his background, and introductions were made around 
the table. 
 

___________ 
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 224) – Articles 02.10.00, 
02.10.01, 02.20.00, 03.25.00, 03.34.00, 10.20.08, 10.25.03, 34.30.05, 35.60.03, 
43.10.00, 43.45.00, 43.46.00 and 43.65.00 – Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 
 
Mr. Miller reported a Public Hearing on the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment is scheduled at the August 8, 2006 Regular meeting. 
 
Mr. Motzny reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment as relates to 
compliance with the new legislation. 
 
Members briefly discussed Section 02.20.00 that states “The City Planning 
Commission shall at least once per year prepare for the Troy City Council a report 
on the administration and enforcement of the zoning ordinance and 
recommendations for amendments or supplements to the ordinance.”  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212-B) – Articles 25.00.00, 
26.00.00, 27.00.00 – Improving Design and Strengthening the Relationship of 
Freestanding Restaurants, Day Care Centers and Banks and the Abutting Streets in 
the R-C (Research Center), O-M (Office Mid-rise), and O-S-C (Office-Service-
Commercial) Zoning Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the intent of the proposed ZOTA 212-B.   
 
Items addressed and noted by the Planning Department: 
• Orientation of entrances to child care facilities and nurseries. 
• Design of pedestrian connections. 
• Preservation of existing, mature landscaping. 
• Design standards; compatibility, rooftop, 360º. 
• Special land use approval. 
• Minimum gross floor area of building. 
• Temporary design alternatives; i.e., art. 
 
 

11. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 208-B) – Commercial Kennels, 
Pet Shops and Non Commercial Boarding – Definitions and Regulations 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment as relates to 
commercial kennels, pet shops and non-commercial boarding.  He suggested 
placing initial focus on definitions that would be provided in the Zoning Ordinance.   
 
It was agreed by the members to further study the definitions provided by the 
Planning Department, and bring the item back to a future study meeting.   
 
 

12. AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 41 SUBDIVISION CONTROL ORDINANCE 
 
Mr. Motzny provided a brief overview of the amendment to the Subdivision Control 
Ordinance that emanated from a change in State law.  He addressed one significant 
change, Section 3.00 (C), and minor housekeeping revisions.  Mr. Motzny reported 
that a public hearing on the proposed amendment is not required.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-07-124 
Moved by:  Vleck 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Planning Commission hereby recommends to 
the Troy City Council that the proposed ordinance amending Sections 2.00. 2.99, 
3.00, 3.01, 3.02, 3.03, 3.04, 3.05, 4.06(A) and 6.00 of Chapter 41 of the Code of the 
City of Troy, as set forth in the draft attached to the City’s Attorney’s Office 
memorandum of July 12, 2006, be approved and adopted.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Drake-Batts, Littman, Waller, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

___________ 
 
Chair Strat requested a recess at 8:53 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:00 p.m. 

___________ 
 
 

13. DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT – 
Theaters in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District, Special Use Approval 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the definition of “performance theater” and addressed standards 
that might be considered for permitting performance theaters by Special Use 
Approval in the M-1 light industrial district.   
 
Items addressed and noted by the Planning Department: 
• Place no restrictions for access/proximity to major thoroughfares. 
• Parking; i.e., complementary users, peak performance hours, valet, shuttle bus. 
• Minimize traffic volume. 
• Encourage adaptive reuse/redevelopment. 
• Consider variety of uses/performances. 
 
The Planning Department will prepare draft language for review at a future study 
meeting.   
 
 

14. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Miller welcomed Jonathan Shin and encouraged his participation in planning matters. 
 
Mr. Savidant offered Mr. Shin a tour of the Planning Department and City Hall. 
 
Mr. Vleck shared his enthusiasm in discovering the lively activity that takes place at local 
coffee shops during evening hours.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JULY 25, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Schultz, returning from a weekend in Chicago, spoke highly of the city and its 
redevelopment. 
 
Chair Strat addressed the Notice of Intent to Plan received from the City of Clawson.   
 
Mr. Miller said members would be provided a copy of Clawson’s draft land use plan when 
the Planning Department receives a digital copy.  He noted members would have 65 days 
to review and respond to Clawson.   
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary  
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Final\07-25-06 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 2, 2006 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, August 02, 2006, in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Rick Sinclair 
   Tom Rosewarne  
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing Inspector Supervisor 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JULY 5, 2006. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of July 5, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 - VARIANCE REQUEST.  STEVEN VANDEN BOSSCHE, TALON 
DEVELOPMENT GROUP, INC., 5660 NEW KING (proposed address), for relief of 
Chapter 83 to install a fence in the front yard along New King Street. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 
fence at the proposed Child Care Center to be located at 5660 New King (proposed 
address).  The site plan submitted indicates a 4’ high PVC fence located in the front 
yard along New King Street, 45’ from the north property line.  Chapter 83 limits fences in 
the 50’ front yard to not more than 30” in height. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of July 5, 2006 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
Mr. Steven Vanden Bossche was present and stated that the play area will be located 
on the east side of the building and they would like to install this fence so that it will go 
from the exit doors of the classrooms to this play area.  This will increase the safety of 
the children as they will be contained and will not be able to run out to New King Street.  
The play area complies with the restrictions of the Ordinance. 
 
 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 2, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Vanden Bossche also stated that this is a unique situation because the building is 
located on a corner and the actual play area will be enclosed with a 6’ high fence.  They 
would like this 4’ high PVC fence to keep unwanted attention from the children. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had explored the possibility of moving the building back 5’ in 
order for this fence to comply.  Mr. Vanden Bossche stated that they had looked at it but 
were in fact told that moving the building back would not make a difference, because 
the Ordinance does not allow for fences in the front yard. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if they were going to add more landscaping to the perimeter of the 
building.  Mr. Vanden Bossche stated that the building sits about 4’ or 5’ below New 
King and is actually in a depression, which makes the slope act like a berm.  Mr. 
Vanden Bossche also stated that they have received site plan approval as well as 
landscape approval from the City of Troy. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they were going to add more landscaping to the berm and Mr. 
Vanden Bossche stated that they were planning to remove some of the existing 
landscaping in order to construct the building and re-grade the site, but they do plan to 
replace it.  Their proposed landscaping exceeds the requirements of the City. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the petitioner was correct in stating that the Ordinance dictates 
that no fence is permitted between the front setback and a building that is in a non-
residential area.  Moving the building back would not resolve the issue. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to grant Steven Vanden Bossche, Talon Development Group, Inc. 5660 New 
King (proposed address) relief of Chapter 83 to install a 4’ high PVC fence in the front 
yard along New King Street. 
 

• Additional ten (10) trees or shrubs to be added along the fence line. 
• Additional trees or shrubs to be approved by Ron Hynd, the Landscape Analyst 

for the City of Troy. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
 
 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 2, 2006 

ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  HEILEMAN SIGNS, 1950 W. MAPLE, for relief of 
Chapter 85 to install a 32.4 square foot wall sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 32.4 
square foot wall sign.  Chapter 85 limits the size of this proposed wall sign to not more 
than 20 square feet in area. 
 
Mr. Tim Heileman from Heileman Signs and Mr. Tom North of North Brothers Lincoln 
Mercury were present.  Mr. Heileman stated that this is a new owner and the lettering 
on the sign will be the same size, the only reason the sign is larger is because the name 
is longer.  They wish to increase the visibility of this dealership to the public. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if this site had received any other variances for signage.  Mr. Stimac 
said that there were two (2) variances granted in April 1999, but they were both for 
ground signs.  There have not been any variances for wall signs granted at this location. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on files. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to grant Heileman Signs, 1950 W. Maple relief of Chapter 85 to install a 32.4 
square foot wall sign. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance will not create a prohibited used in a zoning district. 
• Letter size is the same size as existing sign. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JEFF KASPARI, 3122 OTTER, for relief of Chapter 
83 to construct a 6’ high privacy fence 22’ from the front property line where 25’ is 
required. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a 6’ high privacy fence.  This property is a double front corner lot.  As such, it has 25’ 
minimum front yard requirements along Otter Drive and Arrowhead Drive.  Chapter 83 
limits the height of fences in these front setbacks to not more than 30” in height.  The 
site plan submitted indicates a 6’ high privacy fence set back 22’ from the front property 
line along Arrowhead. 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                              AUGUST 2, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. & Mrs. Kaspari were present.  Mr. Kaspari stated that the reason they would like to 
put this fence up was to add privacy to their home.  If they are in their family room, or 
out on the patio, anyone walking by can see into their yard.  If they are required to put 
the fence at the 25’ setback it will create a huge problem getting in and out of the 
garage. They want to put up something that will look nice at the same time giving them 
the privacy they desire.  Mr. Kaspari said that they plan to put up a 5’ high PVC fence 
with a 1’ lattice border at the top.  They have spoken to all of their neighbors and have 
received approval of this request. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if they had spoken to the neighbor directly behind them.  Mr. Kaspari 
said that they had and the neighbor approved of this request.  The neighbor would not 
like to see a fence in back of the garage but do not have a problem with this request. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Sinclair 
 
MOVED, to grant Jeff Kaspari, 3122 Otter, relief of Chapter 83 to construct a 6’ high 
privacy fence 22’ from the front property line where 25’ is required. 
 

• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• There are no objections on files. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:00 A.M. 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 4



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



DATE:        August 1, 2006
TO:            Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of July 2006

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Tenant Completion 1 $100,000.00 $845.00
Add/Alter 15 $434,919.00 $4,792.00
Parking Lot 1 $14,000.00 $25.00

Sub Total 17 $548,919.00 $5,662.00

COMMERCIAL
New 1 $1,300,000.00 $8,645.00
Accessory Structure 1 $10,000.00 $215.00
Add/Alter 37 $4,747,019.00 $37,428.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $100.00

Sub Total 40 $6,057,019.00 $46,388.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 6 $2,156,530.00 $15,976.00
Add/Alter 32 $796,556.00 $9,089.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 9 $92,100.00 $1,417.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 11 $136,026.00 $1,976.00
Repair 2 $20,500.00 $320.00
Fire Repair 2 $181,241.00 $1,564.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $50.00

Sub Total 63 $3,382,953.00 $30,392.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 10 $1,208,600.00 $9,934.00
Add/Alter 5 $72,411.00 $970.00

Sub Total 15 $1,281,011.00 $10,904.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 1 $0.00 $30.00

Sub Total 1 $0.00 $30.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 41 $0.00 $4,675.00
Fences 21 $0.00 $315.00

Sub Total 62 $0.00 $4,990.00

TOTAL 198 $11,269,902.00 $98,366.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JULY 2006
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 316 $3,160.00
Cert. of Occupancy 62 $3,746.35
Plan Review 145 $9,492.00
Microfilm 55 $435.00
Building Permits 198 $98,366.00
Electrical Permits 191 $14,654.00
Heating Permits 125 $6,380.00
Air Cond. Permits 55 $2,330.00
Plumbing Permits 121 $10,079.00
Storm Sewer Permits 13 $766.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 19 $779.00
Sewer Taps 15 $2,960.00

TOTAL 1315 $153,147.35

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JULY 2006
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 17 $85.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 32 $480.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 22 $22.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 5 $250.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 5 $50.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 2 $30.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 3 $30.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 28 $280.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 2 $30.00

TOTAL 25 $1,257.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2005 2005 2006 2006

JANUARY 93 $6,617,765.00 116 $7,273,163.00

FEBRUARY 133 $8,586,755.00 94 $6,659,691.00

MARCH 143 $19,405,253.00 127 $5,629,425.00

APRIL 234 $16,039,899.00 174 $5,766,996.00

MAY 229 $8,974,377.00 216 $11,290,598.00

JUNE 207 $14,432,280.00 218 $10,681,352.00

JULY 176 $7,490,327.00 198 $11,269,902.00

AUGUST 202 $13,132,327.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 207 $11,424,698.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 169 $12,606,760.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 137 $9,014,642.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 91 $13,489,338.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 2021 $141,214,421.00 1143 $58,571,127.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2006

12 9 4 9 7 9 6

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Aug 3, 2006 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JULY 2006Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter DORIAN CONSTRUCTION 5875 NEW KING  140,000
Commercial, Add/Alter COMFORT CRAFT CONSTRUCTION 901 TOWER 200  270,500
Commercial, Add/Alter COMMERCIAL CONTRACTORS INC 2800 W BIG BEAVER P-139  245,000
Commercial, Add/Alter WARWICK CONST 2800 W BIG BEAVER V-368  334,000
Commercial, Add/Alter RECTENWALD BROTHERS CONSTRUCTIO 2800 W BIG BEAVER R-236  650,000
Commercial, Add/Alter KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC 101 W BIG BEAVER 425  250,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SYNERGY GROUP 755 W BIG BEAVER 19 FL  150,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SYNERGY GROUP 755 W BIG BEAVER 19 FL  150,000
Commercial, Add/Alter RESTAURANT SPECIALTIES INC 2800 W BIG BEAVER Q-123  1,500,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  3,689,500

Commercial, New Building PHOENIX  CONTRACTORS INC 1484 COOLIDGE  1,300,000

Commercial, New BuildingTotal  1,300,000

Industrial, Add/Alter GREAT LAKES AIR SYSTEM 1225 E MAPLE  111,000
Industrial, Add/Alter CERTIFIED CONTRACTING INC 1307 ALLEN H  105,532

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  216,532

Total Valuation:  5,206,032Records  13



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



campbellld
Text Box
J-03e



campbellld
Text Box
J-03f



campbellld
Text Box
J-03g



1

Mary F Redden

From: Ping wang [woops11@yahoo.com]
Sent: Tuesday, August 01, 2006 10:00 AM
To: Phillip L. Nelson

Good morning,Mr. Nelson:

Congratulations for your new position!

I am writing to praise a good employee of yours, Mr.
Lance Oakley, at Engineering Dept. On a Saturday two
weeks ago, we got a notice regarding the erosion
measure violation. We fixed the problem on the same
day, and attempted to call the number for inspection.
Unfortunately, the mail box was full. So on the
following Monday morning, I went to the city and met
with Mr. Oakley. After he learned that we had
sprinkler company scheduled to work on the very next
day, he came to inspect right away and removed the
notice. Because of his hard work, his thoughtfulness,
we were able to install the sprinkler and sod in short
time. We really appreciate his good work! 

Wish you best with your new job!

Sincerely,

Ping Wang
4896 River Bank Ct.

__________________________________________________

campbellld
Text Box
J-03h



2

Do You Yahoo!?
Tired of spam?  Yahoo! Mail has the best spam protection around 
http://mail.yahoo.com 



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







campbellld
Text Box
J-06























campbellld
Text Box
J-07





TO: Mayor and Members of the Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: August 1, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: In Re:  Hooters lawsuit 
 

 Enclosed please find a copy of the Order dismissing the lawsuit filed by Hooters Inc. 
of Troy against the City of Troy.  Oakland County Circuit Court Judge John McDonald 
entered this order on July 28, 2006 after oral argument by the parties.   

Hooters of Troy, Inc. filed its complaint seeking an Order of Superintending 
Control.  This is an order of extraordinary relief, and if granted, it would have essentially 
overruled the City Council, and required a reversal of its decision to deny Hooter’s 
request for a transfer of the Sign of the Beefcarver Class C liquor license and 
entertainment permit.  Hooters also requested costs, attorney fees, and incidental 
damages caused by a delay in opening the restaurant at the Wagon Wheel location (Big 
Beaver and Rochester Road), since the new location was intended to be opened in 
September 2006.  In support of its request, Hooters claimed that the Troy City Council 
acted arbitrarily and capriciously in denying the requested transfer of the Class C liquor 
license and entertainment permit.  Hooters also alleged that the City violated its due 
process rights and/or equal protection rights that are guaranteed under the Michigan and 
United States Constitutions.   

 
The Court rejected these arguments.  Under the Michigan Liquor Control Act, 

there is no right to a new or a transfer of a liquor license request.  Municipalities have the 
discretion to approve or deny liquor license requests, as long as the municipality does 
not act in an arbitrary or capricious fashion.  An action is not arbitrary or capricious when 
there is a reasonable and legitimate basis for it.   

 
Judge McDonald found that the City of Troy had a reasonable and legitimate 

basis for denying the requested transfer of the liquor license and entertainment permit, 
and therefore he denied Hooter’s requested relief, and also dismissed the lawsuit.  The 
Court’s opinion does not break down the reasonable and legitimate basis for Troy’s 
decision.  However, we argued that the following are just some of the reasons that 
support the City Council denial of the transfer of the liquor license and entertainment 
permit:  Hooter’s three liquor code violations during the past ten years; the number of 
police calls to Hooter’s current location, which is substantially more than police calls to 
other Class C licensed establishments; and the fact that a Hooters located at the 
intersection of Rochester and Big Beaver would be highly visible to motorists traveling on 
Big Beaver or existing I-75 freeway from Rochester Road.  The presence of a Hooters 
(whose motto is “delightfully tacky yet unrefined”) at this location would be aesthetically 
incompatible with the upscale shopping, fine dining restaurants, and corporate 
headquarters that exist in the Big Beaver Corridor or are proposed with the new Big 
Beaver Corridor study for a world class corridor.  

 
If you have any questions, please let us know. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08









Bound copies of  
The Report of the Twenty-Sixth Annual 

Actuarial Valuation of the City of Troy Incentive 
Plan for Volunteer Firefighters 

December 31, 2005 
are included with Council’s agenda packets  

   and available for viewing at the City Clerk's  
          Office and the Troy Public Library 

campbellld
Text Box
J-09



Bound copies of  
The Report of the Forty-Second Annual 
Actuarial Valuation of the City of Troy 

Employees’ Retirement System 
December 31, 2005 

are included with Council’s agenda packets 
and available for viewing at the City Clerk's 
       Office and the Troy Public Library 

campbellld
Text Box
J-10



 
 
DATE:   August 4, 2006 

  
 

 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item  
   Results of Blight Strategies Survey and  
   Suggested Action Plan 
 
 
 
 
Attached is the most recent tabulation of the surveys that were completed by City 
Council members after the Blight Strategies presentation at the June 19, 2006 
Council Meeting.  Based upon our analysis of the results we have prepared the 
following action plan in order to implement Council’s directions.  Unless otherwise 
directed, City Staff will begin to implement the suggested actions. 
 
Item 
# 

Question Action Plan 

1 Do we want to increase 
our enforcement activities 
on vacant structures? 

We will prepare cases to come before City Council 
for dangerous building determinations and orders 
for removal. 

2 Do we want to toughen our 
restrictions on outdoor 
storage on industrial 
properties? 

Ordinance language is in place.  Enforcement will 
be prioritized. 

3 Do we want to find ways 
to eliminate older non-
conforming industrial 
storage sites? 

Continue current enforcement.  Suggest screening 
in trade for reduced setbacks. 

4 Do we want to regulate the 
location of the parking of 
fleet vehicles? 

Prepare language for Zoning Ordinance revision to 
restrict fleet vehicle parking. 

5 Do we want to regulate the 
location and screening of 
collection boxes? 

We will try to enforce with existing language.  If 
court actions are unsuccessful we will propose new 
language. 

   

campbellld
Text Box
J-11



   
Item 
# 

Question Action Plan 

6 Do we want to pursue 
additional dumpster 
enclosures on older 
shopping centers with no 
or too few dumpster 
enclosures? 

Conduct survey of current shopping centers.  We 
will work with owners to find ways to reduce or 
enclose dumpsters on sites. 

7 Do we want to change the 
regulations regarding 
outdoor storage of 
recreational vehicles 
limiting the number, 
location size, or type? 

Prepare language for a Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment for consideration and recommendation 
by the Planning Commission. 

8 Do we want to limit the 
number of vehicles parked 
outdoors on a residential 
site? 

No Action 

9 Do we want to reduce our 
maximum weed/grass 
height limit from the 
current 9”? 

No Action 

10 Do we want new 
regulations regarding dead 
tree removal in light of the 
effects of emerald ash 
borer infestation? 

No Action 

11 Do we want to eliminate 
non-conforming uses by 
condemnation or rezoning? 

No Action 

12 Do we want to adopt 
regulations regarding 
storage, litter and 
protection of construction 
sites? 

Prepare language for an amendment to the Property 
Maintenance Code for consideration by City 
Council 

 
Prepared by: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 



Revised July 27, 2006 
 
 

TO:   John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 
SUBJECT:  Summary of City Council’s Comments on Blight Reduction Strategies 
 
Staff made a presentation on the issue of blight at the June 19, 2006 regular City Council 
meeting.   Council members were given a questionnaire about strategies that could be 
employed to reduce blight in Troy.  At Council’s direction, staff compiled the feedback we 
received: 
 
VACANT PROPERTIES 
 
  Yes No Comments/Questions
     
1. Do we want to increase our 

enforcement activities on vacant 
structures? 

4 1 • What does this mean?  Add to or 
enforce what we already have? 

     
DANGEROUS BUILDINGS, COMMERCIAL STORAGE 
 
2. Do we want to toughen our 

restrictions on outdoor storage on 
industrial properties? 

4 2  

     
3. Do we want to find ways to 

eliminate older non-conforming 
industrial storage sites? 

3  • Not sure. 
• Not sure. 
• No response. 

     
4. Do we want to regulate the  

location of the parking fleet  
vehicles? 

5  • [Yes] More than one fleet. 
• [Yes] But I would not want to 

entirely prohibit them. 
• [Yes]  Behind the building. 
• ? 

     
5. Do we want to regulate the 

location and screening of collection 
boxes? 

5  • [Yes] Through reasonable rules 
and maybe licensing.  Would this 
also apply to newspaper boxes? 

• ? 
     
6. Do we want to pursue  

additional dumpster enclosures  
on older shopping centers  
with no or too few dumpster 
enclosures? 

4 2 • [No] Pursue landlord 
responsibility. 

• [No] Get rid of the junk. 



RECREATIONAL VEHICLE STORAGE 
 
  Yes No Comments/Questions
     
7. Do we want to change the  

regulations regarding outdoor  
storage of recreational vehicles, 
limiting the number, location, size 
or type? 

5 1 • [No] It’s not blight. 
• [Yes] But I would prefer that 

regulations be sensitive to 
neighborhood identity and 
targeted at those property owners 
who are creating conditions 
detrimental to neighborhood 
property values. 

• [Yes] We need to tighten it up. 
     
VEHICLE STORAGE 
 

   

8. Do we want to limit the number of  
vehicles parked outdoors on a 
residential site? 

1 4 • [No] It’s not blight. 
• [No] Don’t think we can enforce 

ownership “match”. 
• [No] However, I would support a 

requirement that vehicles be 
parked on a driveway or 
appropriate surface (not on the 
lawn) and that they cannot block 
public access or endanger public 
safety. 

• As long as they are parked 
legally, probably not. 

     
WEEDS, TREES 
 
9. Do we want to reduce our 

maximum weed/grass height limit 
from the current 9”? 

2 3 • [Yes] Change to 6”. 
• Maybe; if our height limit is not 

reasonable compared to nearby 
communities I would be willing to 
support moderate changes.  I 
would want us to accommodate 
property owners who have rain 
gardens or ornamental grasses. 

     
10. Do we want new regulations  

regarding dead tree removal, in 
light of the effects of Emerald Ash 
Borer infestation? 

1 2 •  [No] It’s not blight. 
• Maybe; I’m thinking of open 

space, sub-forests. 
• Maybe; only if the tree endangers 

public safety or public health, or 
that of adjacent property owners. 

• ? 



NON-CONFORMING USES 
 
  Yes No Comments/Questions
     
11. Do we want to eliminate non-

conforming uses by condemnation 
or rezoning? 
 

2 1 • We can now. 
• Not sure. 
• Not through condemnation, but 

through rezoning. 
     
CONSTRUCTION SITES 
 
12. Do we want to adopt regulations 

regarding storage, litter and 
protection of construction sites? 

6  • [Yes] Include cell towers, capacity 
of maintenance buildings. 

• [Yes] Tighten up enforcement. 
 
OVERALL COMMENTS 
 
It’s all about enforcement - the ordinances are there. 
 
• In the Comments/Questions column, items that are preceded with [Yes] or [No] have 

been included in the “yes” and “no” counts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MR\AGENDA ITEMS\2006\REVISED Summary of Council Comments on Blight Reduction Strategies 



 
August 7, 2006 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Stephen Cooperrider, Risk Manager 
   
SUBJECT: Agenda Item –  
                      2307 Rochester Court Sewer Backup 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On July 13, 2006 there was basement flooding at 2307 Rochester Court, Troy 
Michigan. The Water and Sewer Division of the City of Troy cleared a restriction 
downstream from this residence.  The sanitary sewer restriction was located 
between manhole 4 and manhole 160 located just north of the intersection of 
Rochester Court and Robinwood Drive (See the Attached Map). This sewer line 
has the following building connections upstream from this location: 
 
2   hotels (Holiday Inn & Red Roof Inn) 
2   restaurants (Holiday Inn & Mountain Jacks) 
2   commercial office buildings 
9   residential single-family homes 
65 apartments (Eagle’s Landing) 
 
This entire system upstream from manhole 4 has been cleaned three times since 
2002 and most recently as of October 1, 2005 (9 months ago). Within this section 
of the sanitary sewer system we have an area that we clean on a quarterly basis.  
This quarterly cleaning is performed on the following three sections of line: 
 
305’ of sewer from manhole 162 to manhole 233 

• This section of sewer has a direct connection from the Mountain Jacks 
restaurant to manhole 233. It also has two sanitary sewer connections to 
the Red Roof Inn. A restriction in this line some 10 to 15 years ago was 
the primary factor in placing this section of sewer on the quarterly cleaning 
list. 

 
130’ of sewer from manhole 162 to manhole 163 
311’ of sewer from manhole 163 to manhole 164 
 

• These two sections were also included in the quarterly cleaning as they 
contained a hotel and a restaurant connection to the Holiday Inn. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-12



When cleaning sanitary sewer lines, City staff uses a high-pressure hose with 
specially designed cleaning heads that scour the line with 1500 lbs of water 
pressure.  
 
Restrictions that are generally described as a grease clog are a combination of 
grease, soap, paper, plastic and waste.  Restrictions of this nature more often 
occur downstream from restaurants but are not exclusive to them. There are 
records of grease clog restrictions in the middle of subdivisions and they are 
attributed to holiday and family cooking preferences that use oils in the cooking 
process.  Similar to the sections of line mentioned in the specific area, the City 
has a practice of conducting quarterly cleaning of lines where restrictions are 
more likely to develop. 
 
The recent restriction between manhole 4 and manhole 160 occurred 
approximately 370’ south of manhole 162.  We have no record of any previous 
restriction in this line. Staff communication and contact with the Jonas family 
included the following:  
 
Ralph Houck is the sewer jet truck operator and at the time he was out at the site 
clearing the restriction he informed the Jonases that he would add this location to 
the list of trouble spots that we clean quarterly. He also advised that they take 
photos of the basement flooding.  
 
The following day Steve Bauman (Water and Sewer Field Supervisor) and the 
manager of Mountain Jacks met with the Jonases.  Mr. Bauman informed the 
Jonases that he would be inspecting and televising the sewer.  He also directed 
them to Stephen Cooperrider (Risk Manager) of the City of Troy’s Risk 
Management Department. 
 
The Jonases contacted Stephen Cooperrider on July 14, 2006. During this 
conversation Mr. Cooperrider listened to all the information and created an 
incident report.  He explained Public Act 222 and its purpose as it clarifies a 
municipality’s liability for sewer backups.  Additionally claim forms were mailed 
out to 2307 Rochester Court on July 14, 2006 and returned by the post office as 
NO SUCH ADDRESS. A copy of the returned envelope is attached.  The claim 
form was again mailed to 2305 Rochester Court on July 31, 2006.  There is some 
discrepancy as to the address. 
 
Mr. Cooperrider also informed the Jonases that he would investigate this issue. 
During Mr. Cooperrider’s investigation he contacted the Public Works, 
Engineering, and Building Departments. It was determined that no design flaws 
contributed to this restriction. 
 
John Lamerato (Assistant City Manager/Finance) spoke with the Jonas family 
and encouraged them to get their insurance adjuster out and to get all claim 
forms filed as soon as possible.  He also informed them of the availability of a 
dumpster rental from Tringali Sanitation. 
 
 
Prepared by: Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 



          

 
   



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TO: Mayor and Members of the Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: August 7, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Appeal of In Re:  Hooters lawsuit 
 

  

 

Hooters Inc. of Troy has filed an appeal of the decision in the In Re: Hooters lawsuit.  
In this appeal, Hooters has asked the Michigan Court of Appeals to reverse Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge Mc Donald’s opinion of July 28, 2006. Judge McDonald ruled against 
Hooters, and found that the City Council legitimately denied Hooter’s request for a transfer of 
the Sign of the Beefcarver Class C liquor license and entertainment permit.  Hooters argues 
that Judge McDonald’s decision was “reversible error so manifest that an immediate reversal 
of the order should be granted without formal submission.”   

Just as in the Oakland County Circuit Court, Hooters has asked for an expedited 
hearing of the matter.  Hooters has also asked to deviate from the normal Court of Appeals 
process.  Hooters is seeking an immediate decision of the Court of Appeals that essentially 
overrules the Troy City Council, and requires a reversal of the decision to deny Hooter’s 
request for a transfer of the Sign of the Beefcarver Class C liquor license and entertainment 
permit.  In order to obtain this extraordinary relief, Hooters is required to obtain a unanimous 
vote of the Court of Appeals panel.       

A copy of the appeal is attached for your review.  Due to the expedited nature of 
the appeal and the alleged emergency basis of the filing, Troy’s response is due on 
Wednesday, August 9, 2006.  This date is before Council would have an opportunity to 
authorize our appearance in the case.  However, our office has timely filed a response, 
based on the previous direction of City Council.  We will continue to represent the City’s 
interest in this case, absent objection from the Troy City Council.  

 
If you have any questions, please let us know. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-13















































 Page 1 

Memo 
To:  Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

From:  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 

Date:  Aug 1, 2006  

Re:  Mowing of Ditches on County Roads 

In review of the Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) mowing operation in ditches along 
county roads in the City of Troy we have the following.   

RCOC provides only mowing for sight distance issues. Until they receive a call for a sight distance 
issue no mowing is scheduled. The City of Troy DPW has been mowing the right of way on county 
roads on a 4 to 5 week schedule for many years. Neither the City of Troy nor our mowing contractors, 
own equipment that is equipped to mow the deeper drainage ditches. 

The county roads in the City of Troy have approximately 3.5 miles of ditches on Dequindre and 
Livernois that vegetation grows tall enough to become a sight distance issue.  The county will cut these 
but must schedule the equipment in from their Lake Orion facility.  

The cost to purchase this articulating boom mowing equipment is very expensive.  The unit itself is 
approximately $25,000 and the tractor unit that it is mounted on would cost additional $40,000. Being 
this equipment is a specialize use it is not available at local rental businesses. Labor per mowing would 
include approximately 16 man-hours  ($560). 

Additionally the two miles of ditch on Dequindre will be enclosed in the future.  Currently funding has 
been approved for the engineering phase of the road project but construction funding is not expected 
until 2010 or beyond. 

 

 

 

Public Works 
 
  Department 

campbellld
Text Box
J-14



campbellld
Text Box
K-01


























	AGENDA: August 14, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	a\) Proclamation International Day of Pe�


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Rezoning Application (File Number Z 716) – Proposed City

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 704) – Proposed Dunkin 
	D-2 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 180-B) – Proposed Binso
	D-3 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 717) – Proposed Medical

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation:
	a\) International Day of Peace – Septemb�

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 5: Ap�

	E-5 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakla
	E-6 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water
	E-7 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Detention Ba
	E-8 Request for Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Waterma
	E-9 Request for Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Sapphire Est
	E-10 Private Agreement for Hyundai and Infiniti – Project No
	E-11 Private Agreement for Briggs Park Condominiums – Projec
	E-12 Relocation and Renovation of the Engineering Field Offi
	E-13 Amendment #1 – Troy Daze Amusement Rides Contract
	E-14 Application for Transfer of Class C License for Troy Pa
	E-15 Sole Source – Lifeguard and CPR Supplies for the Troy F

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Di
	F-2 Designation of Voting Delegates at the Annual Meeting of
	F-3 Bid Waiver – Purchase of Eight Ellipticals for Troy Comm
	F-4 Approval of MDOT Contract No. 06-5352 for CMAQ Projects 
	F-5 City of Troy Master Plan
	F-6 Schedule a Special Meeting to Discuss the Big Beaver Cor
	F-7 Amendatory Cost Participation Agreement for the Long Lak
	F-8 Traffic Committee Recommendations – July 19, 2006
	F-9 Sale of Rochester Road Remnant Parcel #88-20-22-426-057,
	F-10 Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Hauling and Dispo
	F-11 Bid Waiver- Troy Daze Large Tents

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a\) Rezoning Application \(File Number:
	b\) Proposed Amendment to Planned Unit D�
	c\) Parking Variance Request – 35 W. Squ�

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – April 18, 2006
	Library Advisory Board/Final – May 11, 2006
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – Jun
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Final – Jun
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 20, 2006
	Downtown Development Authority/Final – June 21, 2006
	Traffic Committee/Final – June 21, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 27, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 27, 2006
	Planning Commission/Draft – July 11, 2006
	Planning Commission/Final – July 11, 2006
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – July 18, 2006
	Downtown Development Authority/Final – July 19, 2006
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – July 24, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – July 25, 2006
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – July 25, 2006
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft- August 2, 2006

	J-2 Department Reports:
	a\) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Tr�
	b\) Building Department – Permits Issued�

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholomew from Mark Weigand Regarding the Election Sensitivity Training
	b\) Letter of Thanks to Tonni Bartholome�
	c) Letter of Appreciation to Carol Anderson and Staff from Vicki Richardson Regarding the Outstanding Efforts during the Family Festival
	d) Letter of Appreciation to the Aquatic Center from Melissa Watkins Regarding the Dedicated, Helpful and Cautious Lifeguards
	e) Letter of Appreciation to Ann Blizzard from Diana Rae Regarding the Professionalism of the Lifeguards at the Aquatic Center
	f) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Cindy Eisenbraun in Appreciation of the Kindness of Officer Dungjen
	g\) Letter of Appreciation to Tonni Bart�
	h) Letter of Thanks to Phillip Nelson from Ping Wang Regarding the Efforts and Thoughtfulness of Lance Oakley

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from Rehmann Robson Regarding the Financi
	J-7  Communication from Michigan Municipal League Regarding 
	J-8  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding the
	J-9  Report of the Twenty-Sixth Annual Actuarial Valuation o
	J-10  Report of the Forty-Second Annual Actuarial Valuation 
	J-11  Communication from Director of Building and Zoning Mar
	J-12  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richn
	J-13  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Ap
	J-14  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richn

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Disposal/Sale of Excess Property

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



